
1 
 

CITY OF DELAWARE 
CITY COUNCIL 

CITY COUNCIL CHAMBERS 
1 SOUTH SANDUSKY STREET 

7:00 P.M.  
 

AGENDA 
 
6:30 P.M. EXECUTIVE SESSION: pursuant to Ohio Revised Code Section 
121.22 (G) (3) pending or imminent court action, Section 121.22 (G) (1) 
personnel, Section 121.22 (G) (5) matters required to be kept confidential by 
State statute, Section 121.22 (G) (2) acquisition of property for public purpose 
and 121.22(G) (8) consideration of confidential information related to a request 
for economic development assistance.  
 
7:00 P.M. REGULAR MEETING November 25, 2019 
 
1. ROLL CALL 

 
2. INVOCATION – Reverend Mike Cheek 

 
3. PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE led by the American Heritage Girls 

 
4. APPROVAL of the Motion Summary of the regular meeting of Council 

held on November 11, 2019, as recorded and transcribed. 
APPROVAL of the Motion Summary of the organizational meeting of 
Council held on November 18, 2019, as recorded and transcribed.  
 

5. CONSENT AGENDA 
A. Acceptance of the Motion Summary of the Board of Zoning Appeals 

meeting held on September 11, 2019, as recorded and transcribed.  
B. Acceptance of the Motion Summary of the Parks and Recreation 

Advisory Board meeting held on September 17, 2019, as recorded 
and transcribed. 

C. Resolution No. 19-50, a resolution appointing the initial city 
appointed member of the Board of Directors of the Berkshire 
Township Joint Economic Development District No. 2.  
 

6. LETTERS, PETITIONS, AND PUBLIC COMMENTS 
 

7. COMMITTEE REPORTS 
 
 

8. DIRECTOR’S UPDATE 



2 
 

A. Dave Efland – Planning and Community Development Director 
 

9. CONSIDERATION OF A LIQUOR PERMIT TRANFER 
A. To Penn Strikes LLC DBA Colony Lanes, 451 Pennsylvania Avenue, 

Delaware, Ohio 43015 from Dwight and Patricia Green DBA Colony 
Lanes, 451 Pennsylvania Avenue, Delaware, Ohio 43015.  Permit 
Class:  D1 

B. To Olivina Taproom, LLC DBA Olivina Taproom, 44 South 
Sandusky Street, Delaware, Ohio 43015, from Mystic Golf and 
Games LLC, 1159 Columbus Pike, Delaware, Ohio, 43015. Permit 
Class D2 

 
10. CONSIDERATION OF A NEW LIQUOR PERMIT 

A. Olivina Taproom, LLC DBA Olivina Taproom, 44 South Sandusky 
Street, Delaware, Ohio 43015.  Permit Class D3 

 
11. 7:30 P.M. PUBLIC HEARING AND FIRST READING of Ordinance No. 19- 

69, an ordinance making appropriations for the Year 2020 and declaring 
an emergency.  

 
12. SECOND READING of Ordinance No. 19-63, an ordinance accepting the 

annexation of 43.847± acres of land more or less, description and map 
are attached hereto as exhibits “A” and “B” for the annexation known as 
the Evans Farm Delaware, LLC Annexation by Andrew Wecker, Agent for 
the Petitioners.  
 

13. SECOND READING of Ordinance No. 19-65, an ordinance approving a 
Preliminary Development Plan request by T & R Properties for the 
Enclave at the Ravines at Olentangy containing 87 single family attached 
units on approximately 14.906 acres on property zoned R-6 PMU (Multi-
Family Residential District with a Planned Mixed-Use Overlay District) 
located on the north side of Curve Road and west of Rochdale Run.  
 

14. SECOND READING of Ordinance No. 19-66, an ordinance approving a 
Preliminary Subdivision Plat request by T & R Properties for the Enclave 
at the Ravines at Olentangy containing 87 single family attached units 
on approximately 14.906 acres on property zoned R-6 PMU (Multi-Family 
Residential District with a Planned Mixed-use Overlay District) located on 
the north side of Curve Road and West of Rochdale Run.  
 

15. 8:00 PUBLIC HEARING AND SECOND READING of Ordinance No. 19-67, 
an ordinance approving a Development Text Amendment for Delaware 
Development Plan LTD., for Coughlin’s Crossing to Sub-Areas 2, 5, and 6 
on approximately 80 acres located east of US 23, west of Stratford Road, 



3 
 

north of Meeker Way and south of Elliot Estates Subdivision and zoned 
A-1 PMU (Agricultural District with a Planned Mixed-Use Overlay 
District).  
 

16. SECOND READING of Ordinance No. 19-68, an ordinance approving an 
Amended Preliminary Development Plan for Delaware Development Plat, 
LTD., for Coughlin’s Crossing Sub-Areas 2, 5, and 6 on approximately 8- 
acres located east of US 23, west of Stratford Road, north of Meeker Way 
and south of Elliot Estates Subdivision and Zoned A-1 PMU (Agricultural 
District with a Planned Mixed-Use Overlay District).  
 

17. CONSIDERATION of Resolution No. 19-51, a resolution of no objection to 
the expansion of the Concord/Scioto Community Authority, a New 
Community Authority under Chapter 349 of the Ohio Revised Code.  
 

18. CONSIDERATION of Ordinance No. 19-70, an ordinance amending the 
Delaware Municipal Court and Clerk of Court Employee Benefits and 
Leave Policies, and declaring an emergency.  
A. 2020 Budget Presentation by Judge David Sunderman and Cindy 

Dinovo, Clerk of Courts 
 
19. CONSIDERATION of Ordinance No. 19-71, an ordinance amending 

Ordinance No. 18-111, establishing the pay and benefits for various part-
time and intermittent/seasonal employees of the City of Delaware and 
declaring and emergency.  
 

20. CONSIDERATION of Ordinance No. 19-72, an ordinance amending the 
Management, Professional, Technical, Confidential, and Supervisory 
Employees Pay Plan and declaring an emergency.  
 

21. FINANCE DIRECTOR’S REPORT 
 

22. CITY MANAGER’S REPORT 
 

23. COUNCIL COMMENTS 
 

24. ADJOURNMENT 































FACT SHEET

AGENDA ITEM NO:  CONSENT ITEM C DATE: 11/25/2019 

ORDINANCE NO:  RESOLUTION NO: 19-50 

READING: FIRST  PUBLIC HEARING: NO 

TO: Mayor and Members of City Council 

FROM: R. Thomas Homan, City Manager 

VIA: Darren Shulman, City Attorney 

TITLE OF PROPOSED ORDINANCE/RESOLUTION:  
A RESOLUTION APPOINTING THE INITIAL CITY APPOINTED MEMBER OF 
THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS OF THE BERKSHIRE TOWNSHIP JOINT 
ECONOMIC DEVELOPMENT DISTRICT NO. 2. 

BACKGROUND: 
In 2015, the City and Berkshire Township entered into a Joint Economic 
Development District agreement.  That agreement included a provision for the 
parties to work together on future agreements. Based on expected 
development, the parties approved a second JEDD. Under the JEDD agreement 
between the City and Berkshire Township, the first step in creating the JEDD 
is to appoint a Board.  Per the agreement, this should be done within 60 days 
after the effective date. The City and Township each get an appointment, and 
then three additional members are selected.  This is similar to the existing 
arrangement with Berkshire Township on the first JEDD.  This appointment if 
for the City Manager, as he already on the first JEDD.  Future legislation will 
be brought before Council to appoint a second City appointee. 

REASON WHY LEGISLATION IS NEEDED: 

COMMITTEE RECOMMENDATION: 
N/A 

FISCAL IMPACT(S): 



 
POLICY CHANGES: 
N/A 
 
PRESENTER(S): 
R. Thomas Homan, City Manager 
Darren Shulman, City Attorney 
 
RECOMMENDATION: 
Approval  
 
ATTACHMENT(S) 
Berkshire Township Draft Resolution 



RESOLUTION NO. 19-50 
 

A RESOLUTION APPOINTING THE INITIAL CITY 
APPOINTED MEMBER OF THE BOARD OF 
DIRECTORS OF THE BERKSHIRE TOWNSHIP JOINT 
ECONOMIC DEVELOPMENT DISTRICT NO. 2. 

 
WHEREAS, Berkshire Township (Delaware County), Ohio (the 

“Township”) and the City of Delaware, Ohio (the “City”) have approved, 
executed and delivered a Joint Economic Development District Contract (the 
“JEDD Contract”) creating the Berkshire Township Joint Economic 
Development District No. 2 (the “JEDD”); and 
 

WHEREAS, the JEDD Contract provides that the City is to appoint one 
member to the Board of Directors of the JEDD (the “Board”) to represent the 
City; 

 
NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED by the Council of the City of 

Delaware, State of Ohio, that: 
  
SECTION 1.   R. Thomas Homan is hereby appointed to the Board to 

represent the City for a term commencing the first day of the month in which 
the Board holds its first meeting and terminating one year thereafter. 

 
SECTION 2.   All formal actions of this Council and any of its committees 

concerning and relating to the adoption of this Resolution, and all deliberations 
of Council and of any of its committees that resulted in those formal actions, 
occurred in meetings open to the public in compliance with the law. 

 
SECTION 3.   This Resolution shall be in full force and effect immediately 

upon its adoption. 
 
 

PASSED: _________________________, 2019 YEAS____ NAYS____ 
      ABSTAIN ____ 
 
 
ATTEST: _______________________________     ________________________ 

CITY CLERK    MAYOR 
 
 



RESOLUTION NO. ________ 
 

A RESOLUTION APPOINTING MEMBERS OF THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS OF THE 
BERKSHIRE TOWNSHIP JOINT ECONOMIC DEVELOPMENT DISTRICT No. 2 

 
PREAMBLE 

 
WHEREAS, Berkshire Township (Delaware County), Ohio (the “Township”) and the City of 

Delaware, Ohio (the “City”) have approved, executed and delivered a Joint Economic Development District 
Contract (the “JEDD Contract”) creating the Berkshire Township Joint Economic Development District 
No. 2 (the “JEDD”); and 
 

WHEREAS, the JEDD Contract provides that this Board of Trustees is to appoint one member to 
the Board of Directors of the JEDD (the “Board”) to represent the Township, and one member to represent 
the persons working within the JEDD; 

 
RESOLUTION 

 
NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED by the Board of Township Trustees of Berkshire 

Township (Delaware County), Ohio, that: 
  
Section 1.       is hereby appointed to the Board to 

represent the Township for a term commencing the first day of the month in which the Board holds its first 
meeting and terminating two years thereafter. 

 
Section 2.       is hereby appointed to the Board to 

represent the persons working within the JEDD for a term commencing the first day of the month in which 
the Board holds its first meeting and terminating four years thereafter. 

 
Section 3.  All formal actions of this Board and any of its committees concerning and relating 

to the adoption of this Resolution, and all deliberations of this Board and of any of its committees that 
resulted in those formal actions, occurred in meetings open to the public in compliance with the law. 

 
Section 4. This Resolution shall be in full force and effect immediately upon its adoption. 

 
Adopted:     , 2019   BOARD OF TRUSTEES 
       BERKSHIRE TOWNSHIP 
       DELAWARE COUNTY, OHIO 
 
ATTEST:             
       Bill Holtry, Chairman 
 
              
Melody George, Township Fiscal Officer  Mike Datillo, Trustee 
 
              
       Rod Myers, Trustee 
 
\\bjgserver\Shares\Public\L&Bdocs\Local Gov't\Berkshire\JEDD 2\Resolution Appointing Board Members.docx 
 





















  FACT SHEET 
 
 
AGENDA ITEM NO:  11    DATE: 11/25/2019 
 
ORDINANCE NO: 19-69    RESOLUTION NO: 
 
READING: FIRST     PUBLIC HEARING: YES 
       November 25, 2019 at 7:30 p.m. 
       December 9, 2019 at 7:30 p.m. 
 
TO:  Mayor and Members of City Council  
 
FROM: R. Thomas Homan, City Manager 
 
VIA:  -- 
 
 
TITLE OF PROPOSED ORDINANCE/RESOLUTION:  
AN ORDINANCE MAKING APPROPRIATIONS FOR THE YEAR 2020 AND 
DECLARING AN EMERGENCY. 
 
BACKGROUND: 
This is the first reading and first public hearing of the budget.  The budget is 
required to be adopted by Council pursuant to Section 78 of the City Charter. 
 
The second reading and second public hearing is scheduled for December 9 
and work sessions are scheduled for December 2, December 5 and tentatively 
December 12. 
 
REASON WHY LEGISLATION IS NEEDED: 
 
COMMITTEE RECOMMENDATION: 
N/A 
 
FISCAL IMPACT(S): 
 
POLICY CHANGES: 
N/A 
 
PRESENTER(S): 



R. Thomas Homan, City Manager 
Dean Stelzer, Finance Director 
 
RECOMMENDATION: 
Approval at third reading 
   
ATTACHMENT(S) 



ORDINANCE NO. 19-69

AN ORDINANCE MAKING APPROPRIATIONS FOR THE
YEAR 2020 AND DECLARING AN EMERGENCY

BE IT ORDAINED by the Council of the City of Delaware, State of Ohio:

SECTION 1.  That from and out of the balances in the various funds of the City
of Delaware, and from money anticipated to be received into said funds, there are hereby 
appropriated the following sums for use by the various departments of the City in 
performance of their functions and activities during the year ending December 31, 2020.

GENERAL FUND
CITY COUNCIL

Personnel 168,020       
Other 18,500         

CITY MANAGER
Personnel 798,179       
Other 129,046       

ADMINISTRATIVE SERVICES
Personnel 253,903       
Other 170,350       

ECONOMIC DEVELOPMENT
Personnel 242,019       
Other 261,636       

LEGAL AFFAIRS/PROSECUTOR
Personnel 788,938       
Other 91,698         

FINANCE
Personnel 1,299,861    
Other 1,041,276    

GENERAL ADMINISTRATION
Other 6,410,873    

RISK MANAGEMENT
Other 349,100       

POLICE
Personnel 8,553,056    
Other 1,124,486    

PLANNING
Personnel 1,314,596    
Other 199,837       

ENGINEERING
Personnel 1,065,974    
Other 968,575       

MUNICIPAL BUILDINGS
Personnel 171,317       
Other 400,450       

TOTAL GENERAL FUND 25,821,690    

STREET MAINTENANCE & REPAIR
Administration

Personnel 692,607       
Other 290,300       

Street Maintenance
Personnel 822,252       
Other 1,665,773    

Traffic Division
Personnel 430,363       
Other 461,184       

TOTAL STREET MAINTENANCE 4,362,479      



STATE HIGHWAY IMPROVEMENT 180,000         

LICENSE FEE FUND 480,000         
  

STORM SEWER FUND  
Operations

Personnel 257,186       
Other 311,330       

Projects
Other 1,095,000    

TOTAL STORM SEWER 1,663,516      

PARKS & RECREATION FUND
Park Maintenance

Personnel 993,167       
Other 325,775       

Recreation
Other 208,866       

Urban Forestry
Personnel 95,728         
Other 72,050         

TOTAL PARKS & RECREATION 1,695,586      

CEMETERY FUND
Personnel 226,214       
Other 119,265       

TOTAL CEMETERY FUND 345,479         

TREE FUND 65,000           

AIRPORT OPERATIONS FUND
Personnel 211,654       
Other 735,456       

TOTAL AIRPORT OPERATIONS FUND 947,110         

AIRPORT 2000 T-HANGAR FUND 94,929           

FIRE/EMS OPERATINS FUND
Personnel 9,501,589    
Other 3,544,724    

TOTAL FIRE/EMS OPERATIONS FUND 13,046,313    

MUNICIPAL COURT
 Judicial  

Personnel 1,461,444    
Other 73,000         

Mission Court
Personnel 89,426         

 Clerk of Courts
Personnel 1,203,026    
Other 85,900         

TOTAL MUNICIPAL COURT 2,912,796      

RECREATION CENTER INCOME TAX 1,773,191      

SKY CLIMBER/V&P HYDRAULICS TIF FUND 70,000           

MILL RUN TIF FUND 170,000         

IDIAM FUND 50,000           

DRUG ENFORCEMENT FUND 49,822           

INDIGENT ALCOHOL TREATMENT FUND 100,000         



OMVI ENFORCEMENT & EDUCATION FUND 4,445             

POLICE JUDGMENT FUND 21,636           

POLICE FEDERAL JUDGMENT FUND 17,044           

PARKS EXACTION FEE FUND 138,000         

COMPUTER LEGAL RESEARCH FUND 298,240         

COURT SPECIAL PROJECTS FUND 378,298         

COURT PROBATION SERVICES FUND 241,350         

POLICE DISABILITY PENSION FUND 266,850         

FIRE DISABILITY PENSION FUND 266,850         

COMMUNITY PROMOTION FUND 114,000         

COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT BLOCK GRANT FUND 11,000           

REVOLVING LOAN FUND 200,000         

GENERAL BOND RETIREMENT FUND 2,015,332      

PARK IMPROVEMENT BOND FUND 1,331,202      

CAPITAL IMPROVEMENTS FUND 5,478,779      

POINT PROJECT CAPITAL FUND 2,625,000      

FAA AIRPORT AIP GRANT FUND 303,640         
 

EQUIPMENT REPLACEMENT FUND 868,328         

PARK IMPACT FEE FUND 583,000         

POLICE IMPACT FEE FUND 58,891           

FIRE IMPACT FEE FUND 100,000         

MUNICIPAL IMPACT FEE IMPROVEMENT FUND 348,160         

GLENN ROAD SOUTH CONSTRUCTION FUND 701,050         

GLENN ROAD NORTH CONSTRUCTION FUND 148,295         

GLENN ROAD TIF FUND 4,727,932      

GOLF COURSE FUND
Personnel 57,757         
Other 120,900       

TOTAL GOLF COURSE FUND 178,657         

PARKING LOT FUND 45,800           

WATER FUND
Administration

Personnel 325,759       
Other 2,964,438    

Treatment
Personnel 930,138       
Other 1,290,700    

Distribution
Personnel 617,833       
Other 407,935       

TOTAL WATER FUND 6,536,803      



WATER CONSTRUCTION FUND 2,760,728      

WATER CAPACITY FEE FUND 1,806,981      

WATER CUSTOMER DEPOSIT FUND 32,000           

SEWER FUND
Administration

Personnel 323,556       
Other 4,229,470    

Treatment
Personnel 975,531       
Other 1,200,200    

Maintenance
Personnel 291,090       
Other 373,960       

TOTAL SEWER FUND 7,393,807      

SEWER CONSTRUCTION FUND 1,583,415      

SEWER CAPACITY FEE FUND 1,015,000      

SE HIGHLAND SEWER FUND 838,320         

REFUSE FUND
Administration

Other 445,530       
Refuse Collection

Personnel 784,850       
Other 1,910,353    

Recycling Collection
Personnel 474,996       
Other 612,700       

TOTAL REFUSE FUND 4,228,429      

GARAGE ROTARY FUND
Personnel 390,770       
Other 454,200       

TOTAL GARAGE ROTARY FUND 844,970         

INFORMATION TECHNOLOGY ROTARY FUND
Staff Support

Personnel 541,911       
Other 31,605         

System Support
Other 943,247       

GIS Operations
Personnel 162,289       
Other 61,281         

TOTAL IT ROTARY FUND 1,740,333      

SELF INSURANCE FUND 7,399,000      

WORKERS COMPENSATION RESERVE FUND 560,000         

FIRE DONATION FUND 1,000             

PARKS DONATION FUND 6,315             

POLICE DONATION FUND 9,336             

MAYOR'S DONATION FUND 2,000             

PROJECT TRUST FUND 245,000         

UNCLAIMED FUNDS TRUST FUND 8,000             

UNCLAIMED FUNDS COURT FUND 7,500             



DEVELOPMENT RESERVE FUND 10,000           

JEDD INCOME TAX FUND 555,000         

CEMETERY PERPETUAL CARE FUND 2,000             

STATE HIGHWAY PATROL FUND 75,000           

STATE BUILDING PERMIT FEE FUND 18,000           

PERFORMANCE BOND FUND 900,000         

   TOTAL APPROPRIATIONS - ALL FUNDS 113,878,627  

SECTION 2.  That the Finance Director is hereby authorized to make payment from any
of the foregoing appropriations to the extent of the amounts contained in the respective
appropriations whenever claims, duly approved by the officer authorized by law to approve such
claims, are presented.

SECTION 3.  That the Finance Director is hereby authorized and empowered to make
necessary changes which are not in conflict with this ordinance within a given appropriation to
carry out the functions of the City.  No changes to the total amount of a departmental or fund
appropriation may be made without the legislative action of the City Council.

SECTION 4.  That any sums which shall be expended from the above appropriation and
which are a proper charge against any other department, or against any person, firm or corporation,
shall, if repaid within the period covered by such appropriation, be credited to the fund from which
such payment was made.

SECTION 5.  In accordance with Ohio Revised Code Sections 5705.14, 5705.15, 
and 5705.16 the Finance Director is hereby authorized to make the interfund transfers
identified in the 2020 Budget Detail presented to, and approved by, City Council as part of 
the 2020 Budget adoption process.

SECTION 6.  That the Clerk of Council is directed to certify a copy of this ordinance to
the Budget Commission of Delaware County.

SECTION 7. Emergency Clause.  That this ordinance is hereby declared to be an
emergency measure necessary to provide for the public peace, safety, health and welfare of the
City, and further to provide lawful appropriations available for expenditure by January 1, 2020, and
as such will be in full force and effect immediately upon its passage.

VOTE ON EMERGENCY CLAUSE: Yeas ____ Nays ____

PASSED: ________________, 2019 Yeas ____ Nays ____

ATTEST:
Clerk Mayor



  FACT SHEET 
 
 
AGENDA ITEM NO:  12    DATE: 11/25/2019 
 
ORDINANCE NO: 19-63    RESOLUTION NO: 
 
READING: SECOND    PUBLIC HEARING: NO 
 
 
TO:  Mayor and Members of City Council  
 
FROM: R. Thomas Homan, City Manager 
 
VIA:  Dave Efland, Planning and Community Development Director 
 
 
TITLE OF PROPOSED ORDINANCE/RESOLUTION:  
AN ORDINANCE ACCEPTING THE ANNEXATION OF 43.847± ACRES OF LAND 
MORE OR LESS, DESCRIPTION AND MAP ARE ATTACHED HERETO AS 
EXHIBITS “A” AND “B” FOR THE ANNEXATION KNOWN AS THE EVANS FARM 
DELAWARE, LLC ANNEXATION BY ANDREW WECKER, AGENT FOR THE 
PETITIONERS. 
 
BACKGROUND: 
11/18 Update: In consultation with the applicant’s attorney, staff has 
determined that the date the annexation must be voted on is March 9, 2020, 
which is a significant extension from the previously calculated date.  The City 
continues to work with the applicant on a resolution to the overlapping of New 
Community Authorities.  
 
This process involves several steps and actions by the County and City in order 
for an annexation to ultimately be accepted by the City.  The City took the first 
city step in the process which required determination of services the City could 
provide – the Resolution of Services passed August 12, 2019 via Resolution 19-
37.  The legislation before City Council currently is the final acceptance of 
annexation which would bring the property into the City.  City Council must 
decide to accept, accept with conditions, or deny the annexation.  If no action 
is taken by the ORC dictated time frame ending on March 9, 2020, ORC 
dictates that the annexation will be automatically denied.   The Applicant has 
brought a concept plan forward to Planning Commission for initial feedback 



which was generally well received by the Commission.  The Applicant has 
previously stated they wished to begin their zoning, preliminary plan, and 
preliminary plat process prior to annexation acceptance though Staff has not 
received applicants as of the date of writing.  At this time the earliest hearing 
date for these if applied for today would be the January 6, 2020 Planning 
Commission meeting.   
Perhaps the most important issue remaining to be agreed upon with the 
annexation is related to the inclusion of the property into the Delaware South 
New Community Authority as other properties are within this southeast area of 
the community.  Evans Farm is already included within its own NCA which is a 
complicating factor in this discussion.  City administration has offered the 
Applicant several alternatives that would address the issue but no conclusion 
has been reached as of the time of writing.  The options presented include:  (1) 
Pay the present value of the expected Delaware South NCA revenue that would 
have been collected if they joined the Delaware South NCA; (2) Direct the 
existing Evans Farm NCA to pay the City what the Delaware South NCA charge 
would collect until the Delaware South NCA debt is paid.  
 
Multiple readings of this annexation are anticipated as a result.  Because the 
final ORC required deadline is March 9, 2020, Council’s 3/19/20 is the final 
meeting date at which a decision would need to be made to avoid an automatic 
ORC denial of the annexation. 
 
Finally, as was noted in the Fact Sheet for the Resolution of Services for this 
annexation, Staff suggests several conditions of annexation that will provide 
certainty and clarity to the City as well as the Applicant: 
 

1. The applicant shall include the property in the Delaware South New 
Community Authority or make an equivalent financial contribution as 
determined by the City. 

2. A $1,000 per dwelling unit additional transportation fee shall be required 
similar to other properties in the area to ensure needed transportation 
improvements in the area. 

3. The property is within the South East Highland trunk sewer district 
requiring an additional sewer capacity charge of $3,200 per dwelling unit 
in addition to the standard and customary capacity fees of the city in 
effect at the time of permitting. 

4. The extension of any needed infrastructure for water, sewer, or roadways 
shall be at the cost to the development and as required by the City 
through the normal and customary development review process. 

5. Transportation considerations to be determined in final form through the 
zoning and development review process: 

a. Road connectivity shall be required to adjacent property. 
b. Any roadway connections to Peachblow Rd. shall be coordinated 

with the Delaware County Engineer as well as the city. 



 
REASON WHY LEGISLATION IS NEEDED: 
The Ohio Revised Code provides the process that annexations must follow 
throughout Ohio.  This legislation is the final City step in the process to 
formally accept the annexation of the property.  The City has until March 9, 
2020 to pass this acceptance of annexation Ordinance or it is considered by 
ORC to be denied.   
 
COMMITTEE RECOMMENDATION: 
 
FISCAL IMPACT(S): 
 
POLICY CHANGES: 
 
PRESENTER(S): 
Dave Efland, Planning and Community Development Director 
 
RECOMMENDATION: 
 
ATTACHMENT(S) 
County Resolution  
Petition 
Map 
City Resolution  



ORDINANCE NO. 19-63 
 

AN ORDINANCE ACCEPTING THE ANNEXATION OF 
43.847± ACRES OF LAND MORE OR LESS, 
DESCRIPTION AND MAP ARE ATTACHED HERETO AS 
EXHIBITS “A” AND “B” FOR THE ANNEXATION KNOWN 
AS THE EVANS FARM DELAWARE, LLC ANNEXATION 
BY ANDREW WECKER, AGENT FOR THE PETITIONERS. 

 
WHEREAS, Andrew Wecker, agent for the petitioners, has filed with the 

Delaware County Commissioners for annexation of 43.847 acres of land, more or 
less, the description and map are attached hereto as Exhibits A and B; and 
 

WHEREAS, Andrew Wecker, as agent for the petitioners on August 5, 2019 
delivered to the Clerk of the Delaware City Council the notice of his filing of the 
annexation petition with the Board of County Commissioners of Delaware County 
and its clerk on August 5, 2019; and 
 

WHEREAS, the Ohio Revised Code requires that within 20 days following 
the date the petition is filed, the City Council shall, by resolution, adopt a 
statement as to what services, if any, the City will provide and an approximate 
date by which it will provide them to the territory proposed for annexation, upon 
annexation, which was completed when City Council passed a Resolution of 
Services on August 12, 2019 via Resolution 19-37; and 

 
WHEREAS, the proposed annexation applied for in the petition to the 

Delaware County Commissioners has been approved, by them for annexation to 
the City of Delaware on September 5, 2019 (See attached).  The territory to be 
annexed is described in the attached Exhibits “A” and “B”; and 
 

WHEREAS, the certified transcript of the proceedings for annexation, with 
an accurate map of the territory, together with the petition of annexation and 
other papers relating to the proceedings of the County Commissioners, are on file 
with the Clerk of Council, and have been for more than sixty days. 

 
NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT ORDAINED by the Council of the City of 

Delaware, State of Ohio: 
 
 SECTION 1.  That Council hereby accepts the annexation of 43.847 acres of 
land, description and plat of which are hereby attached as Exhibits “A” and “B” on 
the annexation known as the Evans Farm Delaware, LLC by Andrew Wecker, 
agent for the petitioners with the following conditions that: 
 



1. The applicant shall include the property in the Delaware South New 
Community Authority or make an equivalent financial contribution as 
determined by the City. 

2. A $1,000 per dwelling unit additional transportation fee shall be required 
similar to other properties in the area to ensure needed transportation 
improvements in the area. 

3. The property is within the South East Highland trunk sewer district 
requiring an additional sewer capacity charge of $3,200 per dwelling unit in 
addition to the standard and customary capacity fees of the city in effect at 
the time of permitting. 

4. The extension of any needed infrastructure for water, sewer, or roadways 
shall be at the cost to the development and as required by the City through 
the normal and customary development review process. 

5. Transportation considerations to be determined in final form through the 
zoning and development review process: 

a. Road connectivity shall be required to adjacent property. 
b. Any roadway connections to Peachblow Rd. shall be coordinated with 

the Delaware County Engineer as well as the city. 

 
SECTION 2.  That the Clerk of Council is directed to make five copies of this 

ordinance, to each of which shall be attached a copy of the map accompanying the 
petition for annexation, a copy of the transcript of proceedings of the Board of 
County Commissioners relating thereto, and a certificate as to the correctness 
thereof. The Clerk shall then forthwith deliver one copy to the Secretary of State, 
and shall file notice of annexation with the Board of Elections, the County Auditor, 
the County Recorder, and the County Engineer within thirty days after it becomes 
effective, and the Clerk shall do all other things required by law. 

 
SECTION 3.  This Council finds and determines that all formal actions of 

this Council and any of its committees concerning and relating to the passage of 
this Ordinance were taken in an open meeting of this Council, and that all 
deliberations of this Council and any of its committees that resulted in those 
formal actions were in meetings open to the public, all in compliance with the law 
including Section 121.22 of the Revised Code. 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



VOTE FOR RULE SUSPENSION:    YEAS____ NAYS____ 
      ABSTAIN ____ 
 
PASSED: _________________________, 2019 YEAS____ NAYS____ 
      ABSTAIN ____ 
 
 
ATTEST: _______________________________       ________________________ 

CITY CLERK    MAYOR 

































  FACT SHEET 
 
 
AGENDA ITEM NO:  13    DATE: 11/25/2019 
 
ORDINANCE NO: 19-65    RESOLUTION NO: 
 
READING: SECOND    PUBLIC HEARING:  NO 
 
 
TO:  Mayor and Members of City Council  
 
FROM: R. Thomas Homan, City Manager 
 
VIA:  David Efland, Planning and Community Development Director 
 
 
TITLE OF PROPOSED ORDINANCE/RESOLUTION:  
AN ORDINANCE APPROVING A PRELIMINARY DEVELOPMENT PLAN REQUEST 
BY T&R PROPERTIES FOR THE ENCLAVE AT THE RAVINES AT OLENTANGY 
CONTAINING 87 SINGLE FAMILY ATTACHED UNITS ON APPROXIMATELY 
14.906 ACRES ON PROPERTY ZONED R-6 PMU (MULTI-FAMILY RESIDENTIAL 
DISTRICT WITH A PLANNED MIXED-USE OVERLAY DISTRICT) LOCATED ON 
THE NORTH SIDE OF CURVE ROAD AND WEST OF ROCHDALE RUN. 
 
BACKGROUND: 
See attached report and updated fact sheet recommendation.   
 
REASON WHY LEGISLATION IS NEEDED: 
To achieve compliance with Chapter 1129 Procedures of the zoning code. 
 
COMMITTEE RECOMMENDATION: 
Planning Commission approved this case 7-0 on November 6, 2019. 
 
FISCAL IMPACT(S): 
N/A 
 
POLICY CHANGES: 
N/A 
 
 



PRESENTER(S): 
David Efland, Planning and Community Development Director 
Bill Ferrigno, Public Works Director and City Engineer 
 
RECOMMENDATION: 
UPDATE 11/25/2019: 
Staff recommends approval as submitted with the documented conditions and 
noting the following requirements per the January 16, 2008 Consent Decree 
which remain in effect: 
 
The proposed 14.9 acre 87 lot Enclave at Ravines development is impacted by 
the terms of the January 16, 2008 Consent Decree.    
 
The approved language of the consent decree requires the following with status 
of each item according to the City Engineer after each: 
 

• Preparation of an Ohio EPA Approved Explosive Gas Monitoring Plan be in 
place when an enclosed structure is located within 1000 feet of the edge of 
limits of solid waste.   

o The plan was completed and approved by the OEPA on March 14, 
2006. 

• T&R (Developer) shall pay 50% of the cost to implement and monitor the 
plan.    

o This has occurred. 
• Monitoring is to occur within 1-year after occupancy of the first structure 

within the 1000 feet landfill monitoring zone.   
o Monitoring began in early 2019. 

• 40% to 50% of the lots included in the Enclave Development are within the 
1000 feet landfill waste offset area.   

o The preliminary development site plan should include the 
appearance of the line for the 1000 feet landfill waste offset area.   

• T&R will place a notice in all deeds for all properties that have or will have 
occupied structures within the 1000 feet landfill waste offset area.  The 
notice will identify the existence of the landfill and the general distance 
between the Landfill and occupied structures.   

o This should be a development approval condition. 
• The City is to reimburse T&R for engineering costs associated with 

preparation and approval of monitoring plan.   
o This has been completed. 



• City and T&R to agree on manner of payment for implementation of the 
plan and monitoring costs.   

o This was completed by MOU dated May 25, 2018 
 
In addition to the requirements of the Consent Decree, a separate letter to the 
City by T&R dated December 1, 2004 further specified the construction of a gas 
migration trench to be generally located somewhere between the limits of waste 
placement of the Landfill and the occupied structures on the T&R parcel that 
will be within the 1000 feet landfill waste offset area.  Cost of construction is 
the responsibility of T&R.   

o The consent decree, however, does not mention a requirement concerning 
the trench.  Additional discussions are planned with the OEPA and 
environmental consultant regarding the trench on Monday, December 9th.   

 
Curve Road Landfill Facts 

• The Curve Road landfill was opened in 1973 and used through 1990. 
• There is both a Corrective Measures Plan and Explosive Gas Monitoring 

Plan in place. 
• There are (15) groundwater monitoring wells and (2) surface water 

monitoring locations subject to bi-annual sampling. 
• A total of (4) Explosive gas monitoring points have been installed on the 

landfill subject to bi-annual sampling 
• (3) additional gas monitoring points have been installed on the T&R 

property west of the railway and are sampled bi-annually. 
• All groundwater sampling and explosive gas monitoring results are 

reported to the OEPA and are available for public review in the form of 
approved reports by the OEPA. 

• The landfill has been capped with over 1000 cubic yards of clay 
• An active groundwater leachate collection system was is installed in 2006 

and connected to a gravity transfer line in 2015 that directs leachate to the 
WWTP for processing 

 
 
ATTACHMENT(S) 
Landfill Wells and Monitoring Points 
Staff Report 



 ORDINANCE NO. 19-65 
 
AN ORDINANCE APPROVING A PRELIMINARY 
DEVELOPMENT PLAN REQUEST BY T&R PROPERTIES  
FOR THE ENCLAVE AT THE RAVINES AT OLENTANGY 
CONTAINING 87 SINGLE FAMILY ATTACHED UNITS ON 
APPROXIMATELY 14.906 ACRES ON PROPERTY ZONED 
R-6 PMU (MULTI-FAMILY RESIDENTIAL DISTRICT WITH 
A PLANNED MIXED-USE OVERLAY DISTRICT) 
LOCATED ON THE NORTH SIDE OF CURVE ROAD AND 
WEST OF ROCHDALE RUN. 
 

 WHEREAS, the Planning Commission at its meeting of November 6, 2019 
recommended approval of a Preliminary Development Plan request by T&R 
Properties for the Enclave at the Ravines at Olentangy containing 87 single family 
attached units on approximately 14.906 acres on property zoned R-6 PMU (Multi-
Family Residential District with a Planned Mixed Use Overlay District) located on 
the north side of Curve Road and west of Rochdale Run  (PC Case 2019-2344).  

 
NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT ORDAINED by the Council of the City of 

Delaware, State of Ohio: 
 
 SECTION 1.  That the Preliminary Development Plan request by T&R 
Properties for the Enclave at the Ravines at Olentangy containing 87 single family 
attached units on approximately 14.906 acres on property zoned R-6 PMU (Multi-
Family Residential District with a Planned Mixed Use Overlay District) located on 
the north side of Curve Road and west of Rochdale Run, is hereby confirmed, 
approved, and accepted with the following conditions that: 

 

1. The Applicant needs to obtain final engineering approvals, including 
any storm water and utility issues that need to be worked out through 
the Engineering and Utilities Departments. All comments regarding the 
layout and details of the project are preliminary and subject to 
modification or change based on the final technical review by the 
Engineering Department. 

2. The internal access roadway network shall be comprised of 24-
foot-wide private streets built to public street standards with no 
parking permitted on the streets. 

3. The street names shall be vetted and approved by the appropriate 
agencies to ensure compliance and non-duplication prior to recording 
the Final Plat.  

4. Internal sidewalks shall be located on one side of each private street.  



5. The lots and houses shall comply with the minimum bulk and 
setback requirements as shown on this plan and the approved 
development text. 

6. The single family attached units shall achieve compliance with 
Chapter 1171 Residential Design Criteria and Performance Standards 
and typical elevations shall be provided for review with the Final 
Development Plan.  

7. The minimum dwelling unit size shall be 1,200 square feet per the 
approved development text. 

8. A deck or patio (12’x16’ maximum size) shall be permitted on the lots 
identified on the Preliminary Development Plan per the developer. The 
location, size and setback of such deck or patio is identified on the 
Preliminary Development Plan. 

9. A minimum 6-foot-high mound with a double row of staggered 6-foot-
high minimum evergreen trees planted 20 feet on center shall be 
installed along Curve Road adjacent to lots 46-59. The maintenance of 
the mound and associated landscaping shall be the responsibility of the 
Homeowner’s Association. 

10. Individual building landscaping shall be required per Chapter 1171 
Design Criteria and Performance Standards of the zoning code. 

11. All landscaping plans shall be submitted, reviewed and approved by 
the Shade Tree Commission. 

12. A lighting plan that achieves compliance with the minimum zoning 
regulations shall be submitted in the Final Development Plan submittal 

13. Any ground signage shall achieve compliance with the adopted 
Gateways and Corridor Plan and the minimum zoning requirements. 

14. The Preliminary Development Plan shall include a line demarcating 
the 1,000 feet landfill waste offset area.  

15. The Applicant shall place a notice in all deed for all properties that 
have or will have occupied structures within the 1,000 feet landfill waste 
offset area.  The notice will identify the existence of the landfill and the 
general distance between the landfill and occupied structures.  

 
SECTION 2.  This Council finds and determines that all formal actions of 

this Council and any of its committees concerning and relating to the passage of 
this Ordinance were taken in an open meeting of this Council, and that all 
deliberations of this Council and any of its committees that resulted in those 
formal actions were in meetings open to the public, all in compliance with the law 
including Section 121.22 of the Revised Code. 
 
 
 



VOTE ON RULE SUSPENSION:   YEAS____NAYS____  
          ABSTAIN ____ 
 
PASSED: _________________________, 2019 YEAS____ NAYS____ 
      ABSTAIN ____ 
 
 
ATTEST: _______________________________       ________________________ 

CITY CLERK    MAYOR 





  FACT SHEET 
 
 
AGENDA ITEM NO:  14    DATE: 11/25/2019 
 
ORDINANCE NO:     RESOLUTION NO: 
 
READING: SECOND    PUBLIC HEARING: NO 
 
 
TO:  Mayor and Members of City Council  
 
FROM: R. Thomas Homan, City Manager 
 
VIA:  David Efland, Planning and Community Development Director 
 
 
TITLE OF PROPOSED ORDINANCE/RESOLUTION:  
AN ORDINANCE APPROVING A PRELIMINARY SUBDIVISION PLAT REQUEST 
BY T&R PROPERTIES FOR THE ENCLAVE AT THE RAVINES AT OLENTANGY 
CONTAINING 87 SINGLE FAMILY ATTACHED UNITS ON APPROXIMATELY 
14.906 ACRES ON PROPERTY ZONED R-6 PMU (MULTI-FAMILY RESIDENTIAL 
DISTRICT WITH A PLANNED MIXED-USE OVERLAY DISTRICT) LOCATED ON 
THE NORTH SIDE OF CURVE ROAD AND WEST OF ROCHDALE RUN. 
 
BACKGROUND: 
See attached report and updated fact sheet recommendation.   
 
REASON WHY LEGISLATION IS NEEDED: 
To achieve compliance with Chapter 1111 Procedures of the zoning code. 
 
COMMITTEE RECOMMENDATION: 
Planning Commission approved this case 7-0 on November 6, 2019. 
 
FISCAL IMPACT(S): 
N/A 
 
POLICY CHANGES: 
N/A 
 
 



PRESENTER(S): 
David Efland, Planning and Community Development Director 
Bill Ferrigno, Public Works Director and City Engineer 
 
RECOMMENDATION: 
UPDATE 11/25/2019: 
Staff recommends approval as submitted with the documented conditions and 
noting the following requirements per the January 16, 2008 Consent Decree 
which remain in effect: 
 
The proposed 14.9 acre 87 lot Enclave at Ravines development is impacted by 
the terms of the January 16, 2008 Consent Decree.    
 
The approved language of the consent decree requires the following with status 
of each item according to the City Engineer after each: 
 

• Preparation of an Ohio EPA Approved Explosive Gas Monitoring Plan be in 
place when an enclosed structure is located within 1000 feet of the edge of 
limits of solid waste.   

o The plan was completed and approved by the OEPA on March 14, 
2006. 

• T&R (Developer) shall pay 50% of the cost to implement and monitor the 
plan.    

o This has occurred. 
• Monitoring is to occur within 1-year after occupancy of the first structure 

within the 1000 feet landfill monitoring zone.   
o Monitoring began in early 2019. 

• 40% to 50% of the lots included in the Enclave Development are within the 
1000 feet landfill waste offset area.   

o The preliminary development site plan should include the 
appearance of the line for the 1000 feet landfill waste offset area.   

• T&R will place a notice in all deeds for all properties that have or will have 
occupied structures within the 1000 feet landfill waste offset area.  The 
notice will identify the existence of the landfill and the general distance 
between the Landfill and occupied structures.   

o This should be a development approval condition. 
• The City is to reimburse T&R for engineering costs associated with 

preparation and approval of monitoring plan.   
o This has been completed. 



• City and T&R to agree on manner of payment for implementation of the 
plan and monitoring costs.   

o This was completed by MOU dated May 25, 2018 
 
In addition to the requirements of the Consent Decree, a separate letter to the 
City by T&R dated December 1, 2004 further specified the construction of a gas 
migration trench to be generally located somewhere between the limits of waste 
placement of the Landfill and the occupied structures on the T&R parcel that 
will be within the 1000 feet landfill waste offset area.  Cost of construction is 
the responsibility of T&R.   

o The consent decree, however, does not mention a requirement concerning 
the trench.  Additional discussions are planned with the OEPA and 
environmental consultant regarding the trench on Monday, December 9th.   

 
Curve Road Landfill Facts 

• The Curve Road landfill was opened in 1973 and used through 1990. 
• There is both a Corrective Measures Plan and Explosive Gas Monitoring 

Plan in place. 
• There are (15) groundwater monitoring wells and (2) surface water 

monitoring locations subject to bi-annual sampling. 
• A total of (4) Explosive gas monitoring points have been installed on the 

landfill subject to bi-annual sampling 
• (3) additional gas monitoring points have been installed on the T&R 

property west of the railway and are sampled bi-annually. 
• All groundwater sampling and explosive gas monitoring results are 

reported to the OEPA and are available for public review in the form of 
approved reports by the OEPA. 

• The landfill has been capped with over 1000 cubic yards of clay 
• An active groundwater leachate collection system was is installed in 2006 

and connected to a gravity transfer line in 2015 that directs leachate to the 
WWTP for processing 

 
ATTACHMENT(S) 
See attached 



 ORDINANCE NO. 19-66 
 
AN ORDINANCE APPROVING A PRELIMINARY 
SUBDIVISION PLAT REQUEST BY T&R PROPERTIES  
FOR THE ENCLAVE AT THE RAVINES AT OLENTANGY 
CONTAINING 87 SINGLE FAMILY ATTACHED UNITS ON 
APPROXIMATELY 14.906 ACRES ON PROPERTY ZONED 
R-6 PMU (MULTI-FAMILY RESIDENTIAL DISTRICT WITH 
A PLANNED MIXED-USE OVERLAY DISTRICT) 
LOCATED ON THE NORTH SIDE OF CURVE ROAD AND 
WEST OF ROCHDALE RUN. 
 

WHEREAS, the Planning Commission at its meeting of November 6, 2019 
recommended approval of a Preliminary Subdivision Plat request by T&R 
Properties for the Enclave at the Ravines at Olentangy containing 87 single family 
attached units on approximately 14.906 acres on property zoned R-6 PMU (Multi-
Family Residential District with a Planned Mixed Use Overlay District) located on 
the north side of Curve Road and west of Rochdale Run  (PC Case 2019-2345). 

 
NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT ORDAINED by the Council of the City of 

Delaware, State of Ohio: 
 
 SECTION 1.  That the Preliminary Subdivision Plat request by T&R 
Properties for the Enclave at the Ravines at Olentangy containing 87 single family 
attached units on approximately 14.906 acres on property zoned R-6 PMU (Multi-
Family Residential District with a Planned Mixed Use Overlay District) located on 
the north side of Curve Road and west of Rochdale Run, is hereby confirmed, 
approved, and accepted with the following conditions that: 

 

1. The Applicant needs to obtain final engineering approvals, including 
any storm water and utility issues that need to be worked out through 
the Engineering and Utilities Departments. All comments regarding the 
layout and details of the project are preliminary and subject to 
modification or change based on the final technical review by the 
Engineering Department. 

2. The internal access roadway network shall be comprised of 24-
foot-wide private streets built to public street standards with no 
parking permitted on the streets. 

3. The street names shall be vetted and approved by the appropriate 
agencies to ensure compliance and non-duplication prior to recording 
the Final Plat.  

4. Internal sidewalks shall be located on one side of each private street.  



5. The lots and houses shall comply with the minimum bulk and 
setback requirements as shown on this plan and the approved 
development text. 

6. The single family attached units shall achieve compliance with 
Chapter 1171 Residential Design Criteria and Performance Standards 
and typical elevations shall be provided for review with the Final 
Development Plan. 

7. The minimum dwelling unit size shall be 1,200 square feet per the 
approved development text. 

8. A deck or patio (12’x16’ maximum size) shall be permitted on the lots 
identified on the Preliminary Development Plan per the developer. The 
location, size and setback of such deck or patio is identified on the 
Preliminary Development Plan and Preliminary Subdivision Plat. 

9. A minimum 6-foot-high mound with a double row of staggered 6-foot-
high minimum evergreen trees planted 20 feet on center shall be 
installed along Curve Road adjacent to lots 46-59. The maintenance of 
the mound and associated landscaping shall be the responsibility of the 
Homeowner’s Association. 

10. Individual building landscaping shall be required per Chapter 1171 
Design Criteria and Performance Standards of the zoning code. 

11. All landscaping plans shall be submitted, reviewed and approved by 
the Shade Tree Commission. 

12. A lighting plan that achieves compliance with the minimum zoning 
regulations shall be submitted in the Final Development Plan submittal 

13. Any ground signage shall achieve compliance with the adopted 
Gateways and Corridor Plan and the minimum zoning requirements. 

14. The Applicant shall place a notice in all deed for all properties that 
have or will have occupied structures within the 1,000 feet landfill waste 
offset area.  The notice will identify the existence of the landfill and the 
general distance between the landfill and occupied structures.  
  

SECTION 2.  This Council finds and determines that all formal actions of 
this Council and any of its committees concerning and relating to the passage of 
this Ordinance were taken in an open meeting of this Council, and that all 
deliberations of this Council and any of its committees that resulted in those 
formal actions were in meetings open to the public, all in compliance with the law 
including Section 121.22 of the Revised Code. 
 
 
 
 
 



VOTE ON RULE SUSPENSION:   YEAS____NAYS____  
          ABSTAIN ____ 
 
PASSED: _________________________, 2019 YEAS____ NAYS____ 
      ABSTAIN ____ 
 
 
ATTEST: _______________________________       ________________________ 

CITY CLERK    MAYOR 



































  FACT SHEET 
 
 
AGENDA ITEM NO: 15    DATE: 11/25/2019 
 
ORDINANCE NO: 19-67    RESOLUTION NO: 
 
READING: SECOND    PUBLIC HEARING:  YES 
       November 25, 2019 @ 8:00 p.m. 
 
 
TO:  Mayor and Members of City Council  
 
FROM: R. Thomas Homan, City Manager 
 
VIA:  David Efland, Planning and Community Development Director 
 
 
TITLE OF PROPOSED ORDINANCE/RESOLUTION:  
AN ORDINANCE APPROVING A DEVELOPMENT TEXT AMENDMENT FOR 
DELAWARE DEVELOPMENT PLAN LTD., FOR COUGHLIN’S CROSSING TO 
SUB-AREAS 2, 5 AND 6 ON APPROXIMATELY 80 ACRES LOCATED EAST OF 
US 23, WEST OF STRATFORD ROAD, NORTH OF MEEKER WAY AND SOUTH 
OF ELLIOT ESTATES SUBDIVISION AND ZONED A-1 PMU (AGRICULTURAL 
DISTRICT WITH A PLANNED MIXED-USE OVERLAY DISTRICT). 
 
BACKGROUND: 
See attached staff report. 
 
REASON WHY LEGISLATION IS NEEDED: 
To achieve compliance with Chapter 1130 Amendments of the Codified 
Ordinances. 
 
COMMITTEE RECOMMENDATION: 
Planning Commission recommended approval by a vote of 7-0 on November 6, 
2019.  
 
FISCAL IMPACT(S): 
N/A 
 
  



POLICY CHANGES: 
N/A 
 
PRESENTER(S): 
David Efland, Planning and Community Development Director 
 
RECOMMENDATION: 
Staff recommends approval  
 
ATTACHMENT(S) 
See attached 



 ORDINANCE NO. 19-67 
 
AN ORDINANCE APPROVING A DEVELOPMENT TEXT 
AMENDMENT FOR DELAWARE DEVELOPMENT PLAN 
LTD., FOR COUGHLIN’S CROSSING TO SUB-AREAS 2, 5 
AND 6 ON APPROXIMATELY 80 ACRES LOCATED EAST 
OF US 23, WEST OF STRATFORD ROAD, NORTH OF 
MEEKER WAY AND SOUTH OF ELLIOT ESTATES 
SUBDIVISION AND ZONED A-1 PMU (AGRICULTURAL 
DISTRICT WITH A PLANNED MIXED-USE OVERLAY 
DISTRICT). 
 

 WHEREAS, the Planning Commission at its meeting of November 6, 2019 
recommended approval of a Development Text Amendment for Delaware 
Development Plan LTD., for Coughlin’s Crossing to Sub-Areas 2, 5 and 6 on 
approximately 80 acres located east of US 23, west of Stratford Road, north of 
Meeker Way and south of Elliot Estates Subdivision zoned A-1 PMU (Agricultural 
District with a Planned Mixed Use Overlay District) (PC Case 2019-1578). 
 

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT ORDAINED by the Council of the City of 
Delaware, State of Ohio: 
 
 SECTION 1.  That the Development Text Amendment for Delaware 
Development Plan LTD., for Coughlin’s Crossing to Sub-Areas 2, 5 and 6 on 
approximately 80 acres located east of US 23, west of Stratford Road, north of 
Meeker Way and south of Elliot Estates Subdivision zoned A-1 PMU (Agricultural 
District with a Planned Mixed Use Overlay District), is hereby confirmed, 
approved, and accepted with the following conditions that: 
 
1. Any new structure(s) or any change of use of any proposed buildings or 

property shall require conformance to all provisions of the Development Text. 
2. The parcels and/or sites that have a layout on the Preliminary Development 

Plan shall require Final Development Plan approval while the parcels and/or 
sites that do not have a layout shall require Preliminary and Final Development 
Approval by the Planning Commission and City Council. 

3. The development text, renderings and all associated submitted plans (including 
the Comprehensive Sign Plan) comprise the zoning and development 
requirements for the site together with all other City applicable code and 
regulations.  

4. The number of multi-family units in Sub-Area 2 shall not exceed 178 dwelling 
units. 

5. In Sub-Area 2, the one-bedroom units shall be a minimum 790 square feet and 
the two bedroom units shall be a minimum 1,100 square feet.  



6. In Sub-Area 2, the carriage apartments shall be minimum 570 square feet and 
there shall only be 10 such units. 

7. In Sub-Area 2, the maximum building height shall be increased to 47 feet from 
35 feet for the three-story structures shown on the Development Plan.  

8. Convert the storm water detention area (approximately 3.29 acres) currently 
located in Sub-Area 5 adjacent to Hawthorn Boulevard to developable land (Lot 
12724) in accordance with the Sub-Area 5 zoning text and to have the storm 
water area be relocated to Sub-Area 5 on approximately 3.202 acres (Lot 
12730) located on the northwest corner of Coughlin Lane and Meeker Way. 

9. Amend Sub-Area 5 to permit the side setback for internal collector roads to 
be 40 feet as permitted in Sub-Area 6.  

10. Amend Sub-Areas 5 and 6 to permit internal side yard setbacks to be 30 
feet instead of 60 feet.   

11. Amend Sub-Area 6 to permit minimum lot area to be as approved with the 
Final Development Plan as permitted in Sub-Area 5 instead of 1.5-acre lot 
minimum. 

12. Amend Sub-Area 6 to permit minimum lot width and frontage to be as 
approved with the Final Development Plan as permitted in Sub-Area 5 instead 
of 120 feet minimum lot width. 

13. Amend Sub-Area 6 to permit minimum building coverage to be as approved 
with the Final Development Plan as permitted in Sub-Area 5 instead of 40% 
maximum building coverage. 

 
SECTION 2.  This Council finds and determines that all formal actions of 

this Council and any of its committees concerning and relating to the passage of 
this Ordinance were taken in an open meeting of this Council, and that all 
deliberations of this Council and any of its committees that resulted in those 
formal actions were in meetings open to the public, all in compliance with the law 
including Section 121.22 of the Revised Code. 
 
 
VOTE ON RULE SUSPENSION:   YEAS____NAYS____  
          ABSTAIN ____ 
 
PASSED: _________________________, 2019 YEAS____ NAYS____ 
      ABSTAIN ____ 
 
 
ATTEST: _______________________________       ________________________ 

CITY CLERK    MAYOR 



  FACT SHEET 
 
 
AGENDA ITEM NO:  16    DATE: 11/25/2019 
 
ORDINANCE NO: 19-68    RESOLUTION NO: 
 
READING: SECOND    PUBLIC HEARING:  NO 
 
 
TO:  Mayor and Members of City Council  
 
FROM: R. Thomas Homan, City Manager 
 
VIA:  David Efland, Planning and Community Development Director 
 
 
TITLE OF PROPOSED ORDINANCE/RESOLUTION:  
AN ORDINANCE APPROVING AN AMENDED PRELIMINARY DEVELOPMENT 
PLAN FOR DELAWARE DEVELOPMENT PLAN LTD., FOR COUGHLIN’S 
CROSSING TO SUB-AREAS 2, 5 AND 6 ON APPROXIMATELY 80 ACRES 
LOCATED EAST OF US 23, WEST OF STRATFORD ROAD, NORTH OF 
MEEKER WAY AND SOUTH OF ELLIOT ESTATES SUBDIVISION AND ZONED 
A-1 PMU (AGRICULTURAL DISTRICT WITH A PLANNED MIXED-USE OVERLAY 
DISTRICT). 
 
BACKGROUND: 
See attached staff report. 
 
REASON WHY LEGISLATION IS NEEDED: 
To achieve compliance with Section 1129 requirements of the zoning code. 
 
COMMITTEE RECOMMENDATION: 
Planning Commission recommended approval by a vote of 7-0 on November 6, 
2019.  
 
FISCAL IMPACT(S): 
N/A 
  
POLICY CHANGES: 
N/A 



 
PRESENTER(S): 
David Efland, Planning and Community Development Director 
 
RECOMMENDATION: 
Staff recommends approval  
 
ATTACHMENT(S) 
See attached 



 ORDINANCE NO. 19-68 
 
AN ORDINANCE APPROVING AN AMENDED 
PRELIMINARY DEVELOPMENT PLAN FOR DELAWARE 
DEVELOPMENT PLAN LTD., FOR COUGHLIN’S 
CROSSING TO SUB-AREAS 2, 5 AND 6 ON 
APPROXIMATELY 80 ACRES LOCATED EAST OF US 23, 
WEST OF STRATFORD ROAD, NORTH OF MEEKER 
WAY AND SOUTH OF ELLIOT ESTATES SUBDIVISION 
AND ZONED A-1 PMU (AGRICULTURAL DISTRICT WITH 
A PLANNED MIXED-USE OVERLAY DISTRICT). 
 

 WHEREAS, the Planning Commission at its meeting of November 6, 2019 
recommended approval of an Amended Preliminary Development Plan for 
Delaware Development Plan LTD., for Coughlin’s Crossing to Sub-Areas 2, 5 and 6 
on approximately 80 acres located east of US 23, west of Stratford Road, north of 
Meeker Way and south of Elliot Estates Subdivision and zoned A-1 PMU 
(Agricultural District with a Planned Mixed Use Overlay District) (PC Case 2019-
1579). 
 

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT ORDAINED by the Council of the City of 
Delaware, State of Ohio: 
 
 SECTION 1.  That the Amended Preliminary Development Plan for Delaware 
Development Plan LTD., for Coughlin’s Crossing to Sub-Areas 2, 5 and 6 on 
approximately 80 acres located east of US 23, west of Stratford Road, north of 
Meeker Way and south of Elliot Estates Subdivision and zoned A-1 PMU 
(Agricultural District with a Planned Mixed Use Overlay District), is hereby 
confirmed, approved, and accepted with the following conditions that: 
 

1. In Sub-Area 2, the applicant needs to obtain engineering approvals, 
including any storm water and utility issues that need to be worked out 
through the Engineering and Utilities Departments.  All comments 
regarding the layout and details of the project are preliminary and subject 
to modification or change based on the final technical review by the 
Engineering Department once a complete plan set is submitted for review. 

2. In Sub-Area 2, the limestone on the building shall achieve compliance with 
the approved development text.  

3. In Sub-Area 2, all building appurtenances (coping, downspouts, etc.) shall 
be painted to match the adjacent building color. 

4. In Sub-Area 2, all roof top mechanical equipment shall be screened from 
public view. 



5. In Sub-Area 2, the applicant shall submit all building elevations along with 
material and color samples for all building materials for staff review and 
approval.  

6. In Sub-Area 2, the trach compactor enclosure shall be constructed of stone 
to match the building and have wood doors painted or stained to match. 
The trach compactor shall be screened with landscaping from Stratford 
Road. 

7. In Sub-Area 2, the proposed approximate 1.65-acre open space called 
“Stratford Commons”, located on the extreme northwestern portion of the 
Sub-Area, shall be programmed with amenities and view lines as originally 
conceived per the approved development text as well as enhanced with the 
Final Development Plan. 

8. In Sub-Area 2, the site shall require a payment in lieu of planting trees of 
$44,007.41 (9.734 acres x $4,521 per acre) prior to the approval of 
construction drawings. 

9. In Sub-Area 2, all the landscape plans shall be approved by the Shade Tree 
Commission. 

10. In Sub-Area 2, the lighting plan shall be reviewed and approved by 
the City and all lighting shall meet the requirements of the approved 
development text and the Planning & Zoning Code. 

11. In Sub-Area 2, all signage including size, material and color shall be 
submitted and reviewed by staff for approval. 

12. In Sub-Area 5, the applicant needs to obtain engineering approvals, 
including any storm water and utility issues that need to be worked out 
through the Engineering and Utilities Departments.  All comments 
regarding the layout and details of the project are preliminary and subject 
to modification or change based on the final technical review by the 
Engineering Department once a complete plan set is submitted for review. 

13. In Sub-Area 5, the limestone on the building shall achieve compliance 
with the approved development text.  

14. In Sub-Area 5, all building appurtenances (coping, downspouts, etc.) 
shall be painted to match the adjacent building color. 

15. In Sub-Area 5, all roof top mechanical equipment shall be screened 
from public view. 

16. In Sub-Area 5, the applicant shall submit all building elevations along 
with material and color samples for all building materials for staff review 
and approval.  

17. In Sub-Area 5 the dumpster enclosure shall be constructed of stone 
to match the building and have wood doors painted or stained to match. 

18. In Sub-Area 5 the site shall require a payment in lieu of planting trees 
of $22,852.39 an acre prior to the approval of construction drawings. 

19. In Sub-Area 5, all the landscape plans shall be approved by the 
Shade Tree Commission. 



20. In Sub-Area 5, the lighting plan shall be reviewed and approved by 
the City and all lighting must meet the requirements of the approved 
development text and the Planning & Zoning Code. 

21. In Sub-Area5, all signage including size, material and color shall be 
submitted and reviewed by staff for approval. 

22. In Sub-Area 5, a right-in only curb cut on the south side of Hawthorn 
Boulevard shall be permitted per the City Engineer requirements. 

23. In Sub-Area 5, there shall be no additional access points on Meeker 
Way between US 23 and Coughlin Lane. 

24. In Sub-Area 6 (Lot 12724), the applicant needs to obtain engineering 
approvals, including any storm water and utility issues that need to be 
worked out through the Engineering and Utilities Departments.  All 
comments regarding the layout and details of the project are preliminary 
and subject to modification or change based on the final technical review by 
the Engineering Department once a complete plan set is submitted for 
review. 

25. In Sub-Area 6 (Lot 12724), the limestone on the building shall achieve 
compliance with the approved development text.  

26. In Sub-Area 6 (Lot 12724), all building appurtenances (coping, 
downspouts, etc.) shall be painted to match the adjacent building color. 

27. In Sub-Area 6 (Lot 12724), all roof top mechanical equipment shall be 
screened from public view. 

28. In Sub-Area 6 (Lot 12724), the applicant shall submit all building 
elevations along with material and color samples for all building materials 
for staff review and approval.  

29. In Sub-Area 6 (Lot 12724), the dumpster enclosure shall be 
constructed of stone to match the building and have wood doors painted or 
stained to match. 

30. In Sub-Area 6 (Lot 12724), the site shall require a payment in lieu of 
planting trees of $11,939.96 (2.641 acres x $4,521 per acre) prior to the 
approval of construction drawings. 

31. In Sub-Area 6 (Lot 12724), all the landscape plans shall be approved 
by the Shade Tree Commission. 

32. In Sub-Area 6 (Lot 12724) the lighting plan shall be reviewed and 
approved by the City and all lighting must meet the requirements of the 
approved development text and the Planning & Zoning Code. 

33. In Sub-Area 6 (Lot 12724), all signage including size, material and 
color shall be submitted and reviewed by staff for approval. 

34. In Sub-Area 6, a right-in curb cut on the southside of Penny Way 
shall be permitted per the City Engineer. A right-out curb shall be permitted 
based on the proposed site plan if it achieves compliance with City 
Engineering requirements.  
 



 
SECTION 2.  This Council finds and determines that all formal actions of 

this Council and any of its committees concerning and relating to the passage of 
this Ordinance were taken in an open meeting of this Council, and that all 
deliberations of this Council and any of its committees that resulted in those 
formal actions were in meetings open to the public, all in compliance with the law 
including Section 121.22 of the Revised Code. 
 
 
VOTE ON RULE SUSPENSION:   YEAS____NAYS____  
          ABSTAIN ____ 
 
PASSED: _________________________, 2019 YEAS____ NAYS____ 
      ABSTAIN ____ 
 
 
ATTEST: _______________________________       ________________________ 

CITY CLERK    MAYOR 













































































































































































































































































































































































  FACT SHEET 
 
 
AGENDA ITEM NO:  17    DATE: 11/25/2019 
 
ORDINANCE NO:     RESOLUTION NO:  19-51 
 
READING: FIRST     PUBLIC HEARING:  NO 
 
 
TO:  Mayor and Members of City Council  
 
FROM: R. Thomas Homan, City Manager 
 
VIA:  Darren Shulman, City Attorney 
 
 
TITLE OF PROPOSED ORDINANCE/RESOLUTION:  
A RESOLUTION OF NO OBJECTION TO THE EXPANSION OF THE 
CONCORD/SCIOTO COMMUNITY AUTHORITY, A NEW COMMUNITY 
AUTHORITY UNDER CHAPTER 349 OF THE OHIO REVISED CODE. 
 
BACKGROUND: 
The CIFA is a new community authority formed in 2007 pursuant to a Petition 
filed by Developer Triangle Properties located in Liberty and Concord 
Townships.  Prior to its formation, the City of Delaware was identified as a 
“proximate city” (as defined in ORC Section 349.01(M)) and received notice of 
the proposed Petition to form the CIFA before it was filed with the Delaware 
County Board of Commissioners. Delaware provided its Consent to the 
formation of the CIFA before the filing, and a copy of said Consent was 
attached to the Petition.  The CIFA is now working through the process of 
adding new territory to the CIFA, consisting of five individual expansion 
applications.  
 
Council approved expansions of the NCA in June 2019, June 2017, July 2016 
and October 2014. 
 
REASON WHY LEGISLATION IS NEEDED: 
Under ORC Chapter 349.03(B), the CIFA must follow the same process as was 
used to establish the CIFA, which requires City Council approval.   
 



COMMITTEE RECOMMENDATION: 
N/A 
 
FISCAL IMPACT(S): 
N/A 
 
POLICY CHANGES: 
N/A 
 
PRESENTER(S): 
Darren Shulman, City Attorney 
 
RECOMMENDATION: 
Approval 
 
ATTACHMENT(S) 
Applications & Map Exhibits:  
City Approvals 



RESOLUTION NO. 19-51 
 

RESOLUTION OF NO OBJECTION TO THE 
EXPANSION OF THE CONCORD/SCIOTO 
COMMUNITY AUTHORITY, A NEW 
COMMUNITY AUTHORITY UNDER 
CHAPTER 349 OF THE OHIO REVISED 
CODE. 
 

 WHEREAS, the Concord/Scioto Community Authority (the “Authority”), as 
a new community authority under Chapter 349 of the Ohio Revised Code, exists 
within the boundaries of Delaware County, Ohio; and 
 
 WHEREAS, the Board of Trustees (the “Board”) of the Authority desires to 
expand the boundaries of the territory of the Authority (the “District”) to include 
the following additional property (the “Property”): 
 

• The Cottages at Hyatts property, consisting of approximately 23.18 acres 
in Concord Township, Delaware County, with parcel number 419-330-03-
001-000. 

 
WHEREAS, a community development charge will be levied against the 

property added to the District to pay the costs of community facilities that benefit 
the property; and 

 
WHEREAS, the City of Delaware (the “City”) may be defined as a 

“proximate city” under Section 349.01(M) of the Ohio Revised Code and has thus 
been informed of this proposed expansion. 

 
NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED BY THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE 

CITY OF DELAWARE, DELAWARE COUNTY, OHIO: 
 
SECTION 1.  The City does not object to the addition of the Property to the 

District. 
 
SECTION 2.  The City hereby authorizes and directs the Mayor or the City 

Manager to sign any petition or other documentation necessary to evidence the 
City’s consent to add the Property to the District. 

 
SECTION 3.  It is hereby found and determined that all formal actions of 

this Council concerning and relating to the passage of this resolution were taken 
in an open meeting of this Council, and that all deliberations of this Council and 
of any of its committees that resulted in such formal action were in meetings 
open to the public, in compliance with all legal requirements including Section 
121.22 of the Ohio Revised Code. 



 
SECTION 4.  This resolution shall be effective immediately upon its 

passage. 
 
 

PASSED: ___________________, 2019  YEAS ______NAYS ______ 
        ABSTAIN ______ 
 
 
ATTEST: ____________________________  ______________________________ 
  CITY CLERK     MAYOR 



Bricker&Eckler
ATTORNEYS AT LAW

COLUMBUS I CLEVELAND

CINCINNATI I DAYTON

MARIETTA

BRICKER & ECKLER LLP
100 South Third Street
Columbus, OH 43215-4291
MAIN: 614.227.2300
FAX: 614.227.2390

www.bricker.com
info@bricker.com

Michael L. Katz
614.227.4845
mkatz@bricker.com

November 6, 2019

VIA EMAIL AND HAND-DELIVERY

Darren Shulman, Esq.
City of Delaware
1 South Sandusky Street
Delaware, OH 43015

Re: Application to Add Cottages at Hyatts Property to the
Concord/Scioto Community Authority

Dear Mr. Shulman:

Enclosed please find a copy of the above-referenced application (the
"Application") to add certain real property to the Concord/Scioto Community
Authority (the "Authority") pursuant to Ohio Revised Code Chapter 349.
Prior to filing this Application with the Delaware County Board of
Commissioners, Concord/Scioto Development, LLC (the "Developer") seeks
the approval of the Application from the City Council of the City of Delaware,
Ohio (the "City Council") as the legislative authority of a "proximate city" of
the Authority as defined in Ohio Revised Code Section 349.01(M).

Also enclosed for City Council's consideration are (i) a draft copy of a
resolution of "no-objection" to the Application that authorizes the Mayor, the
City Manager, or the Clerk of City Council to sign the Application as evidence
of City Council's approval; and (ii) a draft copy of the signature page to the
Application to be executed if so authorized by City Council.

If passed by City Council, please return two (2) original copies of the
resolution and executed signature page for the Application.

Please contact me if you have any questions or comments. Thank you for
your assistance in this matter.

Sincerely yours,

Michael L. Katz

Enclosures



M-2 

APPROVAL OF THE CITY OF DELAWARE 

The City of Delaware, by resolution number 19-___, adopted by the City Council of the 
City of Delaware on __________, 2019 (a copy of which is attached hereto) approves the 
foregoing Application to add certain real property to the district (the “District”) of the 
Concord/Scioto Community Authority District (the “Authority”) and has authorized the Mayor, 
the City Manager, or the Clerk of Council to sign this Application, and the Application is 
herewith signed as evidence of that approval.  Pursuant to the Declaration of Covenants and 
Restrictions for the Authority, the community development charge with respect to any parcel 
within the District, including the real property to be added to the District by means of the instant 
petition, is chargeable and may be assessed by the Authority if a structure or building is located 
on a parcel and the parcel (i) receives approval to tap into the public sanitary sewer treatment 
system; (ii) receives approval to tap into the Del-Co Water Company, Inc. water system (or any 
successor thereto); or (iii) receives approval of a final development plan for lands, buildings, 
structures, and improvements to be included in said parcel from the applicable zoning 
jurisdiction. 

CITY OF DELAWARE 

By: __________________________ 
Name: __________________________ 
Title: __________________________ 

































  FACT SHEET 
 
 
AGENDA ITEM NO:  18    DATE: 11/25/2019 
 
ORDINANCE NO: 19-70    RESOLUTION NO: 
 
READING: FIRST     PUBLIC HEARING: NO 
 
 
TO:  Mayor and Members of City Council  
 
FROM: R. Thomas Homan, City Manager 
 
VIA: Judge Marianne Hemmeter and Clerk Cindy Dinovo 
 
 
TITLE OF PROPOSED ORDINANCE/RESOLUTION:  
AN ORDINANCE AMENDING THE DELAWARE MUNICIPAL COURT AND 
CLERK OF COURT EMPLOYEE BENEFITS AND LEAVE POLICIES, AND 
DECLARING AN EMERGENCY. 
 
BACKGROUND: 
The Municipal Court and Clerk of Court’s 2020 Employee Benefits and Leave 
Polices are attached. The only changes to the plan are adjustments to the 
salary ranges of two positions, highlighted in the attached exhibit. 
 
REASON WHY LEGISLATION IS NEEDED: 
 
COMMITTEE RECOMMENDATION: 
N/A 
 
FISCAL IMPACT(S): 
 
POLICY CHANGES: 
N/A 
 
PRESENTER(S): 
Judge David Sunderman and Clerk Cindy Dinovo 
 
 



RECOMMENDATION: 
Approval.     
   
ATTACHMENT(S) 
Amended Salary Range Exhibit 
2020 Pay Plan 



 ORDINANCE NO. 19-70 
 

AN ORDINANCE AMENDING THE DELAWARE 
MUNICIPAL COURT AND CLERK OF COURT EMPLOYEE 
BENEFITS AND LEAVE POLICIES, AND DECLARING AN 
EMERGENCY. 

 
BE IT ORDAINED by the Council of the City of Delaware, State of Ohio: 

 
SECTION 1.  That the Delaware Municipal Court and Clerk of Court 

Employee Benefits and Leave Policies shall be amended to reflect the noted 
changes (attached hereto). 
 

SECTION 2.  This Council finds and determines that all formal actions of 
this Council and any of its committees concerning and relating to the passage of 
this Ordinance were taken in an open meeting of this Council, and that all 
deliberations of this Council and any of its committees that resulted in those 
formal actions were in meetings open to the public, all in compliance with the law 
including Section 121.22 of the Revised Code. 

 
SECTON 3. EMERGENCY CLAUSE. This Ordinance is declared to be an 

emergency measure necessary for the immediate preservation of the public peace, 
property, health, safety and welfare of the City. The emergency clause is required 
to enact the changes effective on December 25, 2019.  Therefore, this Ordinance 
shall be in full force and effect immediately upon its passage. 
 
 
VOTE ON RULE SUSPENSION:    YEAS____NAYS____  
           ABSTAIN ____ 
 
VOTE ON EMERGENCY CLAUSE:    YEAS____NAYS____  
           ABSTAIN ____ 
 
PASSED: _________________________, 2019  YEAS____ NAYS____ 
       ABSTAIN ____ 
 
 
ATTEST: _______________________________        ________________________ 

CITY CLERK     MAYOR 



 
15 

 

SALARY RANGES - MUNICIPAL COURT: 

JOB TITLE HOURLY WAGE ANNUAL SALARY 

MINIMUM MAXIMUM MINIMUM MAXIMUM 

OFFICE ASSISTANT $12.37 $20 $25,730 $41,600 

ADMINISTRATIVE ASSISTANT $14.53 $20 $30,222 $41,600 

BAILIFF/SECURITY OFFICER $16.28 $27 $33,662 $56,160 

COMMUNITY CONTROL  OFFICER $16.35 $28 $34,000 $58,240 

OVI DOCKET COORDINATOR/  
COMMUNITY CONTROL OFFICER 

$16.35 $28 $34,000 $58,240 

MISSION DOCKET COORDINATOR/  
COMMUNITY CONTROL OFFICER* 

$16.35 $28 $34,000 $58,240 

VETERAN MENTOR COORDINATOR     $16        $24    $33,280    $49,920 

*  ASSIGNMENT ADMINISTRATOR $18.81 $32 $39,125 $66,560 

ASSIGNMENT COMMISSIONER/JURY COMMISSIONER $18.81 $28 $39,125 $58,240 

ADMIN.  ASSISTANT/JURY COMMISSIONER $18.81 $28 $39,125 $58,240 

CHIEF COMMUNITY CONTROL OFFICER $20.74 $32 $43,139 $66,560 

DEPUTY CHIEF COMMUNITY CONTROL OFFICER $20.74 $32 $43,139 $66,560 

*  MAGISTRATE $34.67 $56 $72,114 $116,480 

  *  Revised Nov. 2019 
        

SALARY RANGES - CLERK OF COURT: 

1901.31(H) Deputy Clerks of a municipal court other than the Carroll County Municipal Court 
may be appointed by the Clerk and shall receive the compensation, payable in either 
biweekly instalments or semi-monthly instalments, as determined by the payroll administrator, 
out of the City Treasury, that the Clerk may prescribe, except that the compensation of any 
Deputy Clerk of a county-operated municipal court shall be paid out of the treasury of the 
county in which the Court is located. The Judge of the Carroll County Municipal Court may 
appoint Deputy Clerks for the Court, and the Deputy Clerks shall receive the compensation, 
payable in biweekly instalments out of the county treasury, that the Judge may prescribe. 
Each Deputy Clerk shall take an oath of office before entering upon the duties of the Deputy 
Clerk’s office and, when so qualified, may perform the duties appertaining to the office of the 
Clerk. The Clerk may require any of the Deputy Clerks to give bond of not less than three 
thousand dollars, conditioned for the faithful performance of the Deputy Clerk’s duties. 

Policy 35.  Permanent Part-Time Employees 
 
Permanent part-time employees will receive the following wages and benefits: 
 

AMENDED SALARY RANGE HIGHLIGHTED

EMcCloskey
Highlight

EMcCloskey
Highlight



 
 
 

Delaware Municipal Court 
and 

Clerk of Court 
 

Employee Benefits 
And Leave Policies 

 
 

Effective December 25, 2019 
 
 
 
 

Delaware Municipal Court 
and 

Clerk of Court 
70 North Union Street 
Delaware, Ohio 43015 



 
2 

 

SECTION IV.  EMPLOYEE BENEFITS AND LEAVE 

Policy 23.  Holiday Pay and Personal Leave 
 

Section 1. The following are designated as paid holidays for the Municipal Court 
and the Clerk of Court employees: 

 
New Year’s Day, January 1     
Martin Luther King Day, 3rd Monday in January  
Memorial Day, last Monday in May 
Independence Day, July 4th 
Labor Day, 1st Monday in September 
Little Brown Jug Day, 1/2 day - 3rd Thursday after Labor Day 
Thanksgiving Day, 4th Thursday in November  
Day after Thanksgiving 
Day before Christmas, December 24, 1/2 day 
Christmas Day, December 25 

   Day before New Year’s, December 31, 1/2 day 
 
 

Holidays that fall on Saturday will be observed on Friday, and 
holidays that fall on Sunday will be observed on the following 
Monday. 

 
Section 2. If one of the holidays set forth above occurs while an employee is on 

vacation leave, that day will not be charged against his/her vacation. 
  
Section 3. Employees will be credited with 32 hours of personal leave a year.  Use 

of personal days will be at the employee’s discretion with approval of the 
Administrative Judge or his/her designee or the Clerk of Court or his/her 
designee. 

 
Section 4. Employees are permitted to accumulate two years’ worth of personal 

days.   
 
Section 5. At the time of separation, an employee will be compensated for all 

accrued but unused personal days. 

Policy 24.  Vacation Leave  
 

Section 1. The vacation year for employees will end at the close of business on the 
last pay period that ends in the month of December. 

 
Section 2. Each full-time employee will accrue vacation leave by pay period at the 

annual rate of work hours based on years of full-time total service which 
is established in the schedules contained in Section 3 of this article.  
Years of total full-time service is defined to be the total of all periods of 
full-time employment for the Delaware Municipal Court or Clerk of Court 
or as defined in Section 6.  Any period of interruption of service due to 
resignation, layoff, disciplinary suspension, or discharge for cause, will 



 
3 

 

not be included in the computation of total service.  Time not in paid 
status, excepting military leave, will also be excluded in computing total 
service.  In computing years of service, the higher rate of accrual will be 
on the first day of the first pay period in which a year of service is 
completed. 

 
If an employee of the Court or of the Clerk’s office has received or is 
receiving retirement benefits from any of the state retirement funds – the 
Ohio Public Employees Retirement System, the Police and Fire Pension 
Fund, the State Teachers Retirement System, the Public School 
Employees Retirement System, or the Highway Patrol Retirement 
System – the years of public service for which the employee has 
received or is receiving those retirement benefits will not be included in 
any computation of service time for vacation-leave accrual while the 
employee is working for the Court or for the Clerk. 
 
Notwithstanding the above provisions, the position of Chief Bailiff may 
accrue vacation time based on years of service with an Ohio public 
agency, as defined by State law. 

   
Section 3. For employees hired before December 31, 2013, vacation leave will 

accrue as follows: 
 

Years of Total Service Vacation 
Hours/Year 

Vacation 
Hours/Pay 

Start through 5 years   80.6 3.1 

6 through 10 years 119.6 4.6 

11 through 15 years 161.2 6.2 

16 or more years 200.2 7.7 
 

For employees hired after December 31, 2013, vacation leave will accrue 
as follows: 

 

Years of Total Service Vacation 
Hours/Year 

Vacation 
Hours/Pay 

Start through 5 years   80.6 3.1 

6 through 15 years 119.6 4.6 

16 or more years 161.2 6.2 
 

Section 4. Any vacation balance in excess of the maximum number of work hours 
established in the following paragraph will become void as of the close of 



 
4 

 

business on the last day of the last pay period that ends in the month of 
December. 

 

Years of Total Service Maximum Accrual 
of Vacation Hours 

Start through 5 years 161.2 

6 through 10 years 239.2 

11 through 15 years 322.4 

16 or more years 400.4 
 

The only exception to that chart will apply to any employee who – on the 
last day of the last pay period in December 2013 – has a vacation-leave 
balance of more than 500 hours.  The vacation-leave-accrual cap for any 
such employee will be 600.6 hours, and any vacation-leave hours that 
such an employee has accrued but not used in excess of 600.6 hours on 
the last day of the last pay period of 2013 – and on that same last-pay-
period day in each succeeding year – will be void.  

 
Section 5. 
 

A. To be eligible for bi-weekly (pay period) vacation accumulation, an 
employee must be in paid status for a minimum of 72 hours within that 
pay period; except that when an employee is required to report for work 
and does so report and is denied work because of circumstances beyond 
his/her control, absence from work for the balance of that day will not be 
construed as unpaid work status. 

 
B. An employee in full-time status who is to be separated from the 

Delaware Municipal Court or Clerk of Court service through discharge, 
resignation, retirement or layoff, and who has unused vacation leave to 
his/her credit, will be paid in a lump sum for such unused vacation leave 
in lieu of granting a vacation leave after his/her last day of active service 
with the Delaware Municipal Court or Clerk of Court.  That payment will 
be paid at the employee’s hourly rate of pay at the time of separation. 

 
C. When an employee dies while in paid status in the Delaware Municipal 

Court or Clerk of Court, any unused vacation leave to his/her credit will 
be paid in a lump sum to the surviving spouse, or other person the 
employee may have designated in writing. 

 
Section 6.  To be eligible to transfer years of service for determination of vacation 

benefits to the City of Delaware (Delaware Municipal Court or Clerk of 
Court) from prior employment inside the State of Ohio: 

 



 
5 

 

A. Employees are eligible to transfer prior years of service completed as 
employees of this Court, the Clerk of this Court, or the City of Delaware. 

 
B. The amount of years of service that can be transferred is unlimited. 

 
C. Prior employment must be in full-time status. 

 
Section 7. An employee may elect to convert up to two weeks of accrued and 

unused vacation time to cash during any calendar year.  An employee 
must inform the Administrative Judge or the Clerk of Court prior to 
August 1 of the year preceding the calendar year in which the employee 
intends to convert the unused vacation leave to cash, and the employee 
must maintain at least 40 hours of accrued and unused vacation leave in 
the employee’s account after that conversion takes place. 

Policy 25.  Funeral Leave 
Section 1. Each regular full-time employee is entitled to funeral leave with pay as 

follows: 
 

Leave for Death of: Days/Hours of Leave 

Immediate Family Member 1 - 3 days 

Other Relative 4 - 8 hours 

* One work day/shift is automatic for the day of the funeral, but 
additional time up to the maximum will be given only with approval 
of the Administrative Judge or his/her designee or the Clerk of 
Court or his/her designee. 

 
** All leave time with approval of the Administrative Judge or his/her 

designee or the Clerk of Court or his/her designee. 
  
Section 2. For the purposes of this section, Immediate Family Member means 

spouse, child, brother, sister, parents, step-child, step-brother, step-
sister, step-parents, grandparents, grandchildren, sister-in-law, brother-
in-law, and parents-in-law. 

 
Section 3. Funeral Leave time does not include an employee’s regularly scheduled 

day off to which the employee is already entitled. 

Policy 26.  Sick Leave 

The Court and the Clerk of Court may from time to time supplement these sick leave 
policies with additional terms that apply to their employees only.  For a full 
understanding of the use of sick leave, employees should consult not only this benefit 
manual but also the office policies promulgated by the particular officeholder – whether 
the Administrative Judge or the Clerk of Court – for whom the employee works. 



 
6 

 

Section 1. Each employee is entitled to sick leave with pay of 4.6 hours for each 
completed 80 hours of service.   

 
An employee may use sick leave upon approval of the Administrative 
Judge or his/her designee or the Clerk of Court or his/her designee for 
the following reasons: 

A. Illness or injury of the employee or his/her immediate family. 

B. Medical, dental, or optical examinations or treatment of an 
employee or his/her immediate family that requires the 
employee’s attendance. 

C. If a member of the immediate family is afflicted with a contagious 
disease, or when, through exposure to a contagious disease, the 
presence of the employee at his/her job will jeopardize the health 
of others. 

D. Pregnancy and/or childbirth and other conditions related thereto 
inclusive of leave for male employees for the care of the 
employee’s wife and family during postnatal period. 

For purposes of this section, the definition of immediate family is: 
grandparents, mother, mother-in-law, father, father-in-law, brother, sister, 
brother-in-law, sister-in-law, daughter-in-law, son-in-law, spouse, child, 
stepchild, grandchild, legal guardian, or other person who stands in the 
place of a parent (in loco parentis). 

Employees are required to report their intent to use sick leave prior to the 
start of each workday, unless the employee has made other reporting 
arrangements with the Administrative Judge or his/her designee or the 
Clerk of Court or his/her designee. The employee must make this phone 
call unless medically detained by a physician at the time.  The 
Administrative Judge, or his/her designee or the Clerk of Court or his/her 
designee, may contact the employee sometime during the day to discuss 
the reasons for the absence. 

Section 2. Sick leave must be taken in half-hour increments.  
 
Section 3. If an employee used zero hours of sick leave in any calendar year, that 

employee will be credited with an additional three vacation days the 
following year. If an employee uses between one and eight hours of sick 
leave in any one calendar year, that employee will be credited with an 
additional two vacation days the following year.  If an employee uses 
between nine and 16 hours of sick leave in any one calendar year, that 
employee will be credited with one additional vacation day the following 
year.  At the employee’s option, any additional vacation days earned can 
be taken in the form of vacation leave or compensation in cash. 



 
7 

 

Section 4. Any employee who has accumulated at least 800 hours of sick leave 
credit may, during any calendar year, convert up to 80 hours of sick 
leave to vacation on the basis of two hours of sick leave for one hour 
vacation leave. 

If an employee has earned sick leave in another public-sector job and 
then has transferred unused sick leave to the Court or Clerk of Court’s 
office at the start of the employee’s current period of employment with 
the Court or Clerk of Court that transferred sick leave cannot be 
converted to vacation leave under this section. 

All sick leave accumulated by the employee during the employee’s 
current period of employment with the Court or the Clerk of Court must 
be exhausted by the employee or converted to vacation leave before the 
employee may use any sick leave that has been added to the 
employee’s sick-leave balance in accordance with Section 5 of this sick-
leave policy. 

Section 5. To be eligible to transfer sick leave to the City of Delaware from prior 
public employment in the State of Ohio: 

 
A. Employees will only be eligible to transfer sick leave from a public 

agency as defined by the State of Ohio. 

B. Employment with the City of Delaware must take place within 10 
years of termination from their previous employer. 

C. The maximum amount of sick leave hours that can be transferred 
is unlimited. 

Section 6. Any employee who separates from the Delaware Municipal Court or 
Clerk of Court employment for other than just cause will be paid for all 
accumulated and unused sick leave on the basis of one hour of pay for 
every three hours of unused sick leave.  Total sick leave payout cannot 
exceed 12 weeks’ pay. 

Section 7. An employee must complete and sign a request for leave form provided 
by the City to justify the use of sick leave.  Payment for sick leave is 
subject to final approval by the Administrative Judge or his/her designee 
or the Clerk of Court or his/her designee.  The City, Delaware Municipal 
Court, or Clerk of Court may require the employee to furnish a statement 
from a licensed medical practitioner if medical attention was sought or for 
any absence in excess of three consecutive days whether for the 
employee or his/her immediate family.  Such statement must include the 
nature of the illness or injury, the inability to perform his/her duties, the 
prognosis, and the estimated date when the employee can be expected 
to return to work.  Failure of the employee to provide such statement and 
request for leave form when requested may result in the denial of sick 
leave pay. 



 
8 

 

Section 8. Falsification of a request for leave form or a medical practitioner’s 
statement may be grounds for disciplinary action.  The City, Delaware 
Municipal Court, or Clerk of Court maintains the right to have any 
employee examined by a licensed medical practitioner selected and paid 
by the City.  Alternatively, the employee required to see a physician may 
see a physician of his/her own choosing, but in that event will not be 
reimbursed for the costs incurred. 
 
The City, Delaware Municipal Court, or Clerk of Court may deny the 
payment of sick leave if the investigation indicates that the absence was 
not within the provisions of this article.  Denial of sick-leave payment will 
not preclude the Delaware Municipal Court or Clerk of Court from 
implementing any disciplinary action. 

Section 9.  Sick Leave Abuse 

It is the mutual interest of the employee and the Delaware Municipal 
Court or Clerk of Court to prevent the abuse or misuse of sick leave.  
The acceptable usage of sick leave is explained in this policy. 

Employees must not abuse or demonstrate a pattern of sick-leave and/or 
leave-without-pay usage.  The abuse of sick leave or the patterned use 
of sick leave will be just and sufficient cause for discipline.  A request of 
sick leave will be denied if the employee fails to comply with the 
procedures for proper sick leave usage, fails to present a required 
physician’s statement, or if an investigation of a request for sick leave 
discloses facts inconsistent with the proper use of sick leave.  
Falsification of applications for sick leave or the filing of sick leave 
applications and documentation with intent to defraud may result in the 
disapproval of sick leave and may be grounds for disciplinary action, up 
to and including discharge. 

Any employee who is hospitalized will not have such period of leave 
considered in determining whether the employee is abusing sick-leave 
benefits. 

The implementation of this section does not preclude the right of the 
Delaware Municipal Court or Clerk of Court to discipline an employee for 
the abuse of sick leave, to require a statement from the employee’s 
physician, or to have the employee examined by a physician.  Any 
employee who has been disciplined for abuse of sick leave may be 
required to furnish a statement from the employee’s physician for each 
use of sick leave up to six months in duration.  The City, Delaware 
Municipal Court, or Clerk of Court may, with mutual agreement of both 
parties, extend the need for sick leave verification for an additional six 
month period.  The City, Delaware Municipal Court, or Clerk of Court 
also maintains the right to investigate all absences. 



 
9 

 

 

Policy 27.  Injury Leave 
 
Section 1. All regular full-time employees are entitled to injury leave with pay, less 

any Worker’s Compensation weekly salary benefits that they may be 
awarded by the Industrial Commission of Ohio (ICO), for a period not to 
exceed 120 consecutive working days for employees working a 40 hour 
work week for each injury incurred in the performance of employment 
duties with the Delaware Municipal Court or Clerk of Court, provided that 
the following procedures are followed: 

 
A. In all cases of personal injury to any full-time Delaware Municipal 

Court or Clerk of Court employee as a result of the performance of 
employment duties, the employee must immediately complete an 
accident/injury investigation form and report the accident/injury to 
the Administrative Judge or his/her designee or the Clerk of Court 
or his/her designee, who must immediately report said 
accident/injury to the Department of Administrative Services and 
ensure that a claim is filed with ICO. 

 
B. In the event that time off from work is required by the injured 

employee, he/she will be granted injury leave from the first day of 
injury, if the proper documentation is submitted to the City of 
Delaware.  This documentation will include, but not be limited to, a 
statement from the employee’s physician, an Agreement covering 
Compensation Reimbursement, any necessary ICO forms and 
other documents as may be required by the City.  In the event that 
the ICO determines that the injury is NOT employment related, 
any time the employee is, or has been, absent from work will be 
deducted first, from any accrued sick leave, then accrued 
vacation, or accrued compensation time off, other than 
compensatory time for overtime worked. 

 
C. During the period of time an injured employee is being paid under 

this policy, all normal benefits given to regular full-time employees 
will remain in force with no deductions to earned sick leave and/or 
vacation time. 

 
D. In all cases where an injury leave of more than 120 consecutive 

working days is requested by an employee working a 40 hour 
work week, the Administrative Judge or his/her designee or Clerk 
of Court or his/her designee may extend such leave by an 
additional 120 consecutive working days if such necessity is 
determined to his/her satisfaction.  Each employee requesting 
such an extension under this policy may be required to furnish a 
current affidavit from a licensed physician setting forth the need 
for the extension. 



 
10 

 

Policy 28.  Insurance 
 

Section 1. Hospitalization, Surgical, and Major Medical.  The City will continue to 
provide comprehensive hospitalization, surgical, and major medical 
coverage for all full-time members and their dependents.  Beginning 
January 1, 1999, or at some date thereafter, the City may implement a 
Preferred Provider Organization (PPO).  The Plan if implemented will 
provide for the following deductibles and co-payments as follows: 

 

 NETWORK 
PROVIDERS 

NON-NETWORK 
PROVIDERS 

Annual Deductible      
Single 

           Family 

 
None 
None 

 
$   500.00 
$1,000.00 

Office Visit Co-Pay $10.00 N/A 

ER Visit 
 
 
Co-Pay 

$50.00 unless admitted 
into the hospital, 
otherwise co-insurance 
will apply in excess of 
the deductible. 

N/A 

Co-Insurance               
Single 
 
 

           Family 

 
90/10% of first $1,000 
80/20% of next $3,000 
 
90/10% of first $2,000 
80/20% of next $5,000 

 
50/50% of first $5,000 
 
 
50/50% of first $10,000 
 

 
Contributions will be deducted from the member’s gross income prior to taxes, subject 
to compliance with all applicable tax regulations. 
 
Employees will contribute to the cost of the health benefit plan in an amount 
determined annually by the City of Delaware.  Annual changes to the calculated 
COBRA rate will be applied to the monthly employee contributions on the first full pay-
period in April of each year.  Contributions will be deducted from all members in a paid 
status based on twelve months times the monthly rate, divided by the number of pay 
periods per year.  An example would be $56.95/mo. x 12 = $683.40, $683.40/26 pay 
periods = $26.28 per pay period.  In the event federal tax regulations are changed so 
that medical benefit plans are no longer tax exempt, the City will not be responsible to 
pick up the member’s tax burden.   
 
The City will permit employees who have alternate health plan options through a 
spouse to opt out of the City plan in return for a payment of $100.00 per month.  
Families who have both spouses employed full time by the City of Delaware will not be 
eligible to opt out of the plan.  Likewise, these employees will not be subject to monthly 
payroll contributions.  The employee will provide proof that they do in fact have other 



 
11 

 

coverage before the City will drop that employee's current coverage.  The City will 
continue to provide dental coverage if it is not provided under the employee's spouse's 
insurance.  A member may elect to return to coverage under the City's insurance plan 
by notifying the City in writing of any substantial changes in their qualifying family 
circumstances.  The member must give thirty days notice of his or her election to 
return to the City's plan, except in the case of an emergency, such as sudden loss of 
spouse's coverage, divorce or other change in family status.  The plan will comply with 
Internal Revenue Code Section 125 which governs this matter.  
 
Employees who opt out of the health insurance program will be compensated as 
follows: 
 

No Coverage     $100 per month 
Maintain Prescription Only   $ 60 per month 
Maintain Dental Only   $ 65 per month 
Maintain Prescription and Dental  $ 55 per month 
 
* An employee may not elect to have medical coverage only. 

 
Payments will begin on the first pay period of the month following 30 days notice of an 
employee’s desire to drop coverage.  A form will be provided which will contain all 
information necessary to discontinue coverage under the plan.  The form must be 
signed and returned to the Department of Administrative Services.  Until such time that 
an employee is effectively dropped from City coverage, they will be subject to any 
payroll contributions. 
 
All payments made in lieu of insurance coverage will be included as other pay on 
employee’s paycheck.  This income will not be included in income subject to PERS 
contributions but will be subject to all applicable taxes. 
 

A. Prescription Plan 
 
The City will provide a prescription card plan for members and their 
dependents. 
 
The retail benefits will be the following with the City paying the higher amount 
and the employee paying the lesser amount of prescription coinsurance: 
 

• 80/20% for generic drugs 
• 50/50% name brand drugs with a $25.00 co-pay for each 

disbursement 
 
The mail order benefits will be the following: 
 

• 90/10% for generic drugs and 
• 75/25% for name brand drugs with no $25.00 co-pay. 

 
The maximum expense an employee will pay for coinsurance is $250.00 
annually for single coverage and $500.00 for family annually for prescription 



 
12 

 

benefits, however, the $25.00 co-pay for retail name brand drugs will not count 
towards the calculation of the $250.00 or the $500.00 coinsurance maximum 
and will always apply even after an employee reaches the coinsurance 
maximum expenditure. 
 
B. Dental Care Plan 
 
The City will maintain the current dental coverage for all members.  Please 
contact Department of Administrative Services if you have questions. 
 
C. Vision Care Plan 
 
The City will contribute $6 a month towards vision coverage. The employee will 
be responsible for the balance of the monthly cost of the selected coverage. 
The City may cease to make this contribution if the City no longer offers vision 
coverage. Please contact the Department of Administrative Services if you have 
questions. 

 
Section 2. Life Insurance 
 
The City will provide the following amount of life insurance: 
 

Clerk of Court                    $ 100,000.00 
Magistrate                                                        $   45,000.00 
Clerk’s Chief Deputy                                        $   30,000.00 
Court IT Director                                              $   30,000.00 
All other full time employees                            $   20,000.00 

  
Section 3. Certificate of Coverage 
 
The City will provide a certificate of coverage for each Court employee.  Such 
certificate will be for the employee’s family situation. 

Policy 29.  Overtime Compensation  
 

Section 1.  Overtime Pay and Compensatory Time - Nonexempt Employees 
 
Employees who are entitled to overtime pay or compensatory time off under the 
provisions of the Fair Labor Standard Act are entitled to overtime pay or compensatory 
time as described below: 
 

 Employees must receive prior approval from the Administrative Judge or 
his/her designee or Clerk of Court or his/her designee. 

 
 Employees will be compensated at straight-time rates for all hours in 

active pay status, except that all hours in paid status in excess of 40 
hours in any work week will be compensated at a rate of time and one-
half.  Payment in cash will be made for any overtime due at the time of 
separation from City service. 



 
13 

 

 
 In lieu of cash payment, the employee may request to be compensated 

for overtime by compensatory time off in accordance with the law.  Such 
compensatory time off will be equal to 1.5 hours for each hour overtime 
compensation to which the employee is entitled.  All requests for 
compensatory time are subject to approval of the department head.  Any 
compensatory time that is used by an employee must be taken at a time 
mutually agreeable to the supervisor and the employee. 

 
 Employees can accumulate up to 80 hours of compensatory time.  When 

an employee has 80 hours of accumulated compensatory time, all further 
overtime will be paid in cash. 

 
 Compensatory time will be submitted on the regular payroll sheet 

detailing the time earned and taken. 
 
Section 2.  Overtime Pay and Compensatory Time - Exempt Employees 
 
Employees exempt under the Fair Labor Standard Act are not entitled to overtime pay 
but are entitled to compensatory time as described below: 
 

 Employees must receive prior approval from the Administrative Judge or 
his/her designee or Clerk of Court or his/her designee. 

 
 Compensatory time will be earned for approved work that exceeds the 

40 hour work week and such employees may receive said compensatory 
time at the rate of one hour for each hour worked in excess of 40 hours 
per week. 

 
 The maximum accrual of compensatory time is 80 hours. 

 
 Compensatory time must be used in minimum increments of one hour 

and maximum increments of 16 hours. 
 

 At no time will compensatory time be converted to any other form of 
leave or compensation. 

 
 Compensatory time must be listed on the regular payroll sheet detailing 

the time earned and taken. 

Policy 30.  Special Leave 
 
The Administrative Judge or his/her designee or the Clerk of Court or his/her designee, may 
authorize special leave of absence, with or without pay, for purposes beneficial to the 
employee and/or the Court or Clerk of Court. 
 

A. Jury Service Leave 
An employee, while serving on a jury in any court of record in Delaware County, the 
State of Ohio, or any adjoining county, will be paid his/her regular salary for each 



 
14 

 

workday during the period of time so served.  Time so served will be deemed active 
and continued service for all purposes.  All jury fees received from the court where the 
jury was seated will be assigned to the City of Delaware and submitted to the 
Administrative Judge or his/her designee or the Clerk of Court or his/her designee, to 
be forwarded to the City Finance Director. 

 
B. Court Leave 

 
Time off with pay will be allowed for work-related incidents where an employee is 
subpoenaed as a witness in civil matters in any court of record in Delaware County, 
State of Ohio, or any adjoining county.  All witness fees will be assigned to the City of 
Delaware and submitted to the Administrative Judge or his/her designee or the Clerk 
of Court or his/her designee, to be forwarded to the City Finance Director. 

Policy 31.  Family and Medical Leave Act  
 
The Family and Medical Leave Act policies in the City of Delaware’s Employment Handbook 
apply to the employees of both the Court and the Clerk of Court. 

Policy 32.  Parks and Recreation Credit 
 
The City will provide each employee with a credit to be applied to a City Pool membership, 
City Golf Course membership or punch-card, or City rentals (shelters or Hilborn Room).  The 
amount of the credit is $60.00. This membership is defined and regulated by the Recreation 
Services Department and employees must abide by the stipulations set forth by the 
department both in definition and restrictions.  This credit amount is fixed, regardless of 
changes in membership fees that may occur.  In addition, the City will provide to each 
member a 20% discount on all individual registrations for City recreation programs. 

Policy 33.  On-Call Compensation 
 
Both exempt and non-exempt employees of the Clerk of Court will be eligible for on-call 
compensation for weekly periods when assigned the responsibility of responding to law-
enforcement requests during non-scheduled work periods.  Employees assigned to this on-
call status will serve in this posture for weekly time periods as authorized by the Clerk or by 
the Clerk’s designee.  Employees assigned to on-call status will be compensated at a weekly 
rate of between $25 and $50 as determined by the Clerk of Court.  On-call compensation will 
be added to regular and overtime wages earned during the pay period and will be paid as 
taxable income through the bi-weekly payroll process. 

Policy 34.  Salary Ranges 

Each employee is required to pay all required employee contributions to the Ohio Public 
Employees Retirement System (OPERS). 
 
 
 
 
 



 
15 

 

SALARY RANGES - MUNICIPAL COURT: 

JOB TITLE HOURLY WAGE ANNUAL SALARY 

MINIMUM MAXIMUM MINIMUM MAXIMUM 

OFFICE ASSISTANT $12.37 $20 $25,730 $41,600 

ADMINISTRATIVE ASSISTANT $14.53 $20 $30,222 $41,600 

BAILIFF/SECURITY OFFICER $16.28 $27 $33,662 $56,160 

COMMUNITY CONTROL  OFFICER $16.35 $28 $34,000 $58,240 

OVI DOCKET COORDINATOR/  
COMMUNITY CONTROL OFFICER 

$16.35 $28 $34,000 $58,240 

MISSION DOCKET COORDINATOR/  
COMMUNITY CONTROL OFFICER* 

$16.35 $28 $34,000 $58,240 

VETERAN MENTOR COORDINATOR     $16        $24    $33,280    $49,920 

*  ASSIGNMENT ADMINISTRATOR $18.81 $32 $39,125 $66,560 

ASSIGNMENT COMMISSIONER/JURY COMMISSIONER $18.81 $28 $39,125 $58,240 

ADMIN.  ASSISTANT/JURY COMMISSIONER $18.81 $28 $39,125 $58,240 

CHIEF COMMUNITY CONTROL OFFICER $20.74 $32 $43,139 $66,560 

DEPUTY CHIEF COMMUNITY CONTROL OFFICER $20.74 $32 $43,139 $66,560 

*  MAGISTRATE $34.67 $56 $72,114 $116,480 

  *  Revised Nov. 2019 
        

SALARY RANGES - CLERK OF COURT: 

1901.31(H) Deputy Clerks of a municipal court other than the Carroll County Municipal Court 
may be appointed by the Clerk and shall receive the compensation, payable in either 
biweekly instalments or semi-monthly instalments, as determined by the payroll administrator, 
out of the City Treasury, that the Clerk may prescribe, except that the compensation of any 
Deputy Clerk of a county-operated municipal court shall be paid out of the treasury of the 
county in which the Court is located. The Judge of the Carroll County Municipal Court may 
appoint Deputy Clerks for the Court, and the Deputy Clerks shall receive the compensation, 
payable in biweekly instalments out of the county treasury, that the Judge may prescribe. 
Each Deputy Clerk shall take an oath of office before entering upon the duties of the Deputy 
Clerk’s office and, when so qualified, may perform the duties appertaining to the office of the 
Clerk. The Clerk may require any of the Deputy Clerks to give bond of not less than three 
thousand dollars, conditioned for the faithful performance of the Deputy Clerk’s duties. 

Policy 35.  Permanent Part-Time Employees 
 
Permanent part-time employees will receive the following wages and benefits: 
 



 
16 

 

 
Section 1.  Wages   
 

 Permanent part-time employees will be paid on an hourly basis in 
accordance with the table in Policy 34 above. 

 
Section 2.  Benefits 
 

A. Permanent part-time employees will accrue Universal Leave on a 
prorated basis of 4.6 hours for every eighty hours worked in a pay 
period. 

 
B. Permanent part-time employees are eligible for holiday pay if they work a 

major holiday, which includes the following:  Memorial Day, July 4, Labor 
Day, Thanksgiving, Christmas, and New Year’s Day.  Holiday Pay is 
defined as one and one-half times the permanent part-time employee’s 
regular hourly rate. 

 
C. Overtime will be compensated at straight time rates for all hours in paid 

status, except that all hours in paid status in excess of 40 hours in any 
work week will be compensated for a rate of time and one-half. 

 
D. The permanent part-time employee is responsible for payment of the 

employee contribution for the State of Ohio Retirement System. 
 

E. Upon termination of employment with the Court or Clerk of Court, 
permanent part-time employees will not receive pay-out for any leave 
accumulated. 

 
F. If a permanent part-time employee becomes full time with the Court or 

Clerk of Court, any accumulated Universal Leave will be added to the 
permanent part-time employee’s sick leave balance. 

Policy 37.  Intermittent Part-Time/Seasonal Employees 
 
Intermittent part-time and seasonal employees will receive the following wages and benefits: 
 

Section 1.  Wages 
 

Intermittent part-time and seasonal employees will be paid on an hourly basis in 
accordance with the table in Policy 35 above. 

 
Section 2.  Benefits 
 

Intermittent part-time and seasonal employees are not eligible for benefits, but 
the intermittent part-time, and/or seasonal employee is responsible for payment 
of the employee contribution for the State of Ohio Retirement System. 



 
17 

 

 

Receipt and Acknowledgment Form 
 
The employee policy manual and employee benefits manual include important information 
about employment at the Delaware Municipal Court and the Clerk of Court’s office, and I 
understand that I should consult my immediate supervisor regarding any questions that are 
not answered in those documents.  If my supervisor cannot answer my question, I should 
consult with the Administrative Judge or his/her designee or the Clerk of Court or his/her 
designee. 
 
I have entered into my employment relationship with the Delaware Municipal Court or the 
Clerk of Court voluntarily and I acknowledge that there is no specified length of employment.  
Accordingly, the Delaware Municipal Court, the Clerk of Court, or I may terminate the 
relationship at will, with or without cause, at any time. 
 
Because the information, policies, and benefits described here are necessarily subject to 
change, I acknowledge that revisions to the administrative policy manual and the employee-
benefits manual may occur, though I also understand that my position is and will remain an 
employment-at-will position.  Any changes in the manuals will be communicated through 
official notices, and I understand that that revised information may supersede, modify, or 
eliminate existing policies.  Only the Administrative Judge or Clerk of Court of the Delaware 
Municipal Court has the ability to adopt any revisions to the policies in this handbook. 
 
Furthermore, I acknowledge that this handbook is neither a contract of employment nor a 
legal document.  I have received the administrative policy manual and the employee-benefits 
manual, and I understand that it is my responsibility to read and to comply with the policies 
contained in these documents as well as any revisions made to them later. 
 
 
 
 
              
Employee's Signature     Date 
 
 
 
 
       
Employee’s Name (Please Print) 
 
 
 



  FACT SHEET 
 
 
AGENDA ITEM NO:  19    DATE:   11/25/2019  
 
ORDINANCE NO: 19-71    RESOLUTION NO: 
 
READING: SECOND     PUBLIC HEARING:  NO 
 
 
TO:  Mayor and Members of City Council  
 
FROM: R. Thomas Homan, City Manager 
 
VIA:  Jessica Feller, Human Resource Manager  
 
 
TITLE OF PROPOSED ORDINANCE/RESOLUTION:  
AN ORDINANCE AMENDING ORDINANCE NO. 18-111 ESTABLISHING THE PAY 
AND BENEFITS FOR VARIOUS PART-TIME AND INTERMITTENT/SEASONAL 
EMPLOYEES OF THE CITY OF DELAWARE AND DECLARING AN EMERGENCY. 
 
BACKGROUND: 
The proposed 2020 budget reflects an increase in wages by 3% for all permanent 
part-time, part-time fire fighter/paramedic and intermittent part-time/seasonal 
positions.   
 
REASON WHY LEGISLATION IS NEEDED: 
Legislation is necessary in order to process payroll changes. 
 
COMMITTEE RECOMMENDATION: 
N/A 
 
FISCAL IMPACT(S): 
3 percent increase for all permanent part-time, part-time fire fighter/paramedic 
and intermittent part-time/seasonal positions.   
 
POLICY CHANGES: 
N/A 
 
PRESENTER(S): 



Jessica Feller, Human Resource Manager 
 
RECOMMENDATION: 
Approval   
   
ATTACHMENT(S) 
N/A 



ORDINANCE NO. 19-71 
 

AN ORDINANCE AMENDING ORDINANCE NO. 18-111 
ESTABLISHING THE PAY AND BENEFITS FOR 
VARIOUS PART-TIME AND INTERMITTENT, AND 
SEASONAL EMPLOYEES OF THE CITY OF DELAWARE. 

 
WHEREAS, the City hires various part-time, intermittent/seasonal 

employees that can be divided into two classifications, to wit: permanent part- 
time and intermittent seasonal, and 

 
WHEREAS, Section 155.09, Appointment Status, of the Codified 

Ordinances of the City of Delaware defines part-time employment, and 
Ordinance No. 18-111 established pay and benefits for various part-time 
employees of the City, and 

 
WHEREAS, it is necessary to clarify the wages and benefits for each 

classification of part-time and intermittent/seasonal employees. 
 

NOW THEREFORE, BE IT ORDAINED by the Council of the City of 
Delaware, State of Ohio: 

 
SECTION 1. Ordinance No. 18-111 is hereby amended to read as follows: 

 
A. Effective December 26, 2018 25, 2019 permanent part-time 

employees shall receive the following wages and benefits: 
 

1. Wages. Permanent  part-time  employees  shall  be paid on an 
hourly basis in accordance with the following table: 

 
Pay Grade STEP 1 STEP 2 STEP 3 STEP 4 STEP 5 

PT 1 9.52 9.87 10.28 10.50 10.70 
PT 2 14.36 14.91 15.53 16.16 16.78 
PT 3 15.10 15.70 16.28 16.98 17.66 
PT 4 17.39 18.09 18.82 19.57 20.35 
PT 5 20.15 20.78 21.41 22.08 22.73 
PT 6 23.01 23.69 24.32 25.06 25.80 

 
 

PAY GRADE POSITION 
PT 1…………………………………. Facility Maintenance Technician I, 

FILE CLERK  
  PT 2…………………………………. Support Services Aide,  Parking 

 Control Officer 
PT 3…………………………………. Facility Maintenance Technician II 
 Clerical Specialist, Records Clerk, 
 Records Analyst, Front Counter 
 Clerk, Help-Desk Technician 
PT 4…………………………………. Communications Specialist,   



  Paralegal, Laborer 
  PT 5…………………………………. Investigator/Diversion 

   Manager, Code Enforcement   
  Officer 
PT 6…………………………………. Human Resource Coordinator 

 
2. Benefits.  Benefits for permanent part-time are as follows: 

(a) Employees will accrue Universal Leave on a prorated basis 
of 4.6 hours for every eighty hours worked in a pay period. 

(b) Employees are eligible for holiday pay if they work a major 
holiday which includes the following:  Christmas, Labor 
Day, Memorial Day, July 4, New Year's Day and 
Thanksgiving. Holiday Pay is defined as one and one half 
times the employee’s regular hourly rate. 

(c) Overtime shall be compensated at straight time rates for all 
hours in paid status, except that all hours in paid status in 
excess of 40 hours in any work week shall be compensated 
for a rate of time and one half. 

(d) The employee shall be responsible for payment of the 
employee contribution for the State of Ohio Retirement 
System. 

(e) Upon termination of employment with the City employees 
will not receive pay-out for any leave accumulated. 

(f) If an employee becomes full time with the City, any 
accumulated Universal Leave will be added to the 
employee’s sick leave balance. 

(g) Employees shall receive a Parks and Recreation Credit to 
be applied to a Jack Florance Pool membership, City Golf 
Course membership or punch-card, or City rentals 
(shelters or HIlborn Room). The amount of the credit shall 
be $60.00. Employees shall abide by the stipulations set 
forth by the managing organization both in definition and 
restrictions. This credit amount is fixed, regardless of 
changes in membership fees that may occur. Employees 
will also receive a 20% discount on all individual 
registrations for City recreation programs. Credits may not 
be used to purchase memberships or to secure rentals 
beyond the calendar year for which it is issued. Credits will 
not be re-issued if lost or stolen and must be surrendered 
at the time of registration/purchase.   Credits are non-
transferrable. 

 
B. Effective December 26, 2018 25, 2019 permanent part-time 

firefighters shall be paid on an hourly basis in accordance with the 
following table: 

 
 
 
 
 



PAY GRADE POSITION WAGE 

PTFF1 Firefighter/EMT 13.66/hour 

PTFF2 Firefighter/Paramedic 15.76/hour 
 

1. Benefits. Benefits for permanent part-time firefighters are as 
follows: 

 
(a) The City will provide $10,000 of life insurance. 
(b) Overtime shall be compensated at straight time rates for all 

hours in paid status, except that all hours in paid status in 
excess of 212 hours in any 28 day pay cycle shall be 
compensated for a rate of time and one half. 

(c) The employee will be responsible for payment of the 
employee contribution to their pension system. 

(d) Employees are eligible for holiday pay if they work a major 
holiday which includes the following:  Christmas, Labor 
Day, Memorial Day, July 4, New Year's Day and 
Thanksgiving. Holiday pay is defined as one and one half 
times the employee’s regular hourly rate. 

(e) Permanent part-time firefighters may not exceed 1500 
hours worked in a calendar year. 

(g)    Employees shall receive a Parks and Recreation Credit to be 
applied to a Jack Florance Pool membership, City Golf 
Course membership or punch-card, or City rentals 
(shelters or HIlborn Room). The amount of the credit shall 
be $60.00. Employees shall abide by the stipulations set 
forth by the managing organization both in definition and 
restrictions. This credit amount is fixed, regardless of 
changes in membership fees that may occur. Employees 
will also receive a 20% discount on all individual 
registrations for City recreation programs. Credits may not 
be used to purchase memberships or to secure rentals 
beyond the calendar year for which it is issued. Credits will 
not be re-issued if lost or stolen and must be surrendered 
at the time of registration/purchase.   Credits are non-
transferrable. 

 
C. Effective December 26, 2018 25, 2019 intermittent part-

time/seasonal employees shall receive the following wages and 
benefits: 

 
1. Wages. Intermittent part-time/seasonal employees shall be 

paid on an hourly basis in accordance with the following table: 
 
 
 
 
 



 
Pay 
Grade Position Step 1 Step 2 Step 3 
SL1 Cashier  $   10.30   $   10.82   $   11.33  
SL2 Laborer  $   11.85   $   12.88   $   13.91  
SL3 Intern  $   11.85   $   13.91   $   15.97  

SL4 
Clubhouse 
Manager  $   14.42   $   15.45   $   16.48  

 
 

For intermittent/seasonal positions not listed above, the wages shall be 
the entry-level pay rate reflected in the applicable pay plan for the 
equivalent permanent full-time position or a pay rate established by the 
City Manager. 

 
2. Benefits. Intermittent /seasonal employees are not eligible  for 

benefits, except the following: 
 

(a) The employee shall be responsible for payment of the 
employee contribution for the State of Ohio Retirement 
System. 

 
SECTION 2.  Existing Ordinance No. 18-111 is hereby repealed. 

 
SECTION 3. This Council finds and determines that all formal actions of 

this Council and any of its committees concerning and relating to the passage of 
this Ordinance were taken in an open meeting of this Council, and that all 
deliberations of this Council and any of its committees that resulted in those 
formal actions were in meetings open to the public, all in compliance with the 
law including Section 121.22 of the Revised Code. 

 
SECTION 4.  EMERGENCY CLAUSE.  This Ordinance is declared to be 

an emergency measure necessary for the immediate preservation of the public 
peace, property, health, safety and welfare of the City. The emergency clause is 
required to enact the changes effective on December 25, 2019. Therefore this 
Ordinance shall be in full force and effect immediately upon its passage. 

 
EMERGENCY CLAUSE: YEAS         NAYS             

ABSTAIN    
 
 

PASSED:   , 2019 YEAS NAYS    
ABSTAIN    

 
 
ATTEST:       

CITY CLERK MAYOR 



  FACT SHEET 
 
 
AGENDA ITEM NO:  20    DATE:  11/25/2019 
 
ORDINANCE NO: 19-72    RESOLUTION NO: 
 
READING: FIRST     PUBLIC HEARING: NO 
 
 
TO:  Mayor and Members of City Council  
 
FROM: R. Thomas Homan, City Manager 
 
VIA:  Jessica Feller, Human Resource Manager 
 
 
TITLE OF PROPOSED ORDINANCE/RESOLUTION:  
AN ORDINANCE AMENDING THE MANAGEMENT, PROFESSIONAL, 
TECHNICAL, CONFIDENTIAL, AND SUPERVISORY EMPLOYEES PAY PLAN, 
AND DECLARING AN EMERGENCY. 
 
BACKGROUND: 
The proposed 2020 budget reflects an increase in wages by 3% for the non-union 
employee pay plan and 3% for the department head pay plan ranges. 
 
Other notable changes include modified insurance language to provide for 
greater flexibility in overall plan design as staff work to implement cost 
containment measures.   
 
In addition, the ordinance includes a section authorizing the Finance Director to 
sign an annual OPERS earned time off conversion document.    
 
REASON WHY LEGISLATION IS NEEDED: 
Legislation is necessary in order to process payroll changes.   
 
COMMITTEE RECOMMENDATION: 
N/A 
 
FISCAL IMPACT(S): 



A 3 percent increase for all non-union pay plan positions and 3 percent increase 
to the department head pay plan ranges, as reflected in the proposed 2020 
budget.   
 
POLICY CHANGES: 
N/A 
 
PRESENTER(S): 
Jessica Feller, Human Resource Manager 
 
RECOMMENDATION: 
Approval   
 
ATTACHMENT(S) 
Amended Pay Plan 



ORDINANCE NO. 19-72 
 

AN ORDINANCE AMENDING THE MANAGEMENT, 
PROFESSIONAL, TECHNICAL, CONFIDENTIAL, AND 
SUPERVISORY EMPLOYEES PAY PLAN, AND 
DECLARING AN EMERGENCY. 

 
BE IT ORDAINED by the Council of the City of Delaware, State of Ohio: 

 
SECTION 1.  That the attached Management, Professional, Technical, 

Confidential and Supervisory Pay Plan shall be amended to reflect the noted 
changes. 

 
SECTION 2.   That the Finance Director is hereby authorized to execute 

and submit the annual OPERS earned time conversion document on behalf of 
the City. 
 

SECTION 3.  This Council finds and determines that all formal actions of 
this Council and any of its committees concerning and relating to the passage 
of this Ordinance were taken in an open meeting of this Council, and that all 
deliberations of this Council and any of its committees that resulted in those 
formal actions were in meetings open to the public, all in compliance with the 
law including Section 121.22 of the Revised Code. 
 

SECTION 4.  EMERGENCY CLAUSE.  This Ordinance is declared to be 
an emergency measure necessary for the immediate preservation of the public 
peace, property, health, safety and welfare of the City. The emergency clause is 
required to enact the changes effective on December 25, 2019 which coincides 
with the new calendar year. Therefore, this Ordinance shall be in full force and 
effect immediately upon its passage. 
 
 
VOTE ON RULE SUSPENSION: YEAS____NAYS____  
     ABSTAIN ____ 
 
VOTE ON EMERGENCY CLAUSE: YEAS____NAYS____  
     ABSTAIN ____ 
  
PASSED: _________________________, 2019 YEAS____ NAYS____ 
      ABSTAIN ____ 
 
 
ATTEST: _______________________________       ________________________ 

CITY CLERK    MAYOR 
 



 

 

 

  

THE CITY OF DELAWARE 2019 

SUMMARY OF BENEFITS 

Professional, Confidential, Supervisory and Non‐

Union Employees 

Revised 5/22/2019 12/25/2019 

      



 
2 

 

Article	I. WAGES	AND	PAY	PLAN	
 

Section	1.01 Non‐	Union	Employee	Pay	Plan	

(a) The following pay schedule is to be effective December 26, 2018 25,	2019 and the 
table below reflects a 2% 3% increase for each step. Step increase shall take effect 
the first full pay period following the employee’s anniversary date.  

Pay	Grade	 Position	
1M1	 Administrative Assistant, Police Administrative Aide, Desktop 

Technician, HELP	DESK	SUPPORT	TECHNICIAN  
M2	 Airport Technician, Watershed Coordinator, Police Assistant 
M3	 Economic Development Communications Specialist, COMMUNICATIONS	

SPECIALIST,	SERVICE	COORDINATOR,	CRIME	ANALYST 
M4	 Cemetery Manager, Financial Specialist I, Arborist 
M5	 GIS/CMMS Technician, Administrative Services Specialist, Right-of-Way 

Inspector, Zoning Technician, Golf Course Supervisor, WATERSHED	
COORDINATOR,	TECHNICAL	SUPPORT	SPECIALIST	 

M6	 Police Technician 
M7	 Code Enforcement Officer I, Customer Service Liaison, Facility 

Maintenance Supervisor 
M8	 Engineering Technician, Airport Operations Supervisor, Division 

Supervisor, Financial Specialist II, Executive Assistant, Code Enforcement 
Officer II, Project Manager I, Collections Manager, Construction Inspector, 
ECONOMIC	DEVELOPMENT	COORDINATOR,	GIS/CMMS	ANALYST	 

M9	 Assistant City Attorney/Prosecutor, Building Inspector I 
M10	 Development Planner, RECREATION	PROGRAM	COORDINATOR 
M11	 No current position 
M12	 GIS Coordinator, Project Manager II, Airport Manager, Construction 

Inspection Manager, IT	Project	Coordinator, Budget and Management 
Analyst 

M13	 Building Inspector II 
M14	 Information Systems & Network Administrator, Human Resource 

Manager, Assistant Prosecutor, Application System Specialist 
M15	 Project Engineer I, Assistant Water Manager, Assistant	Wastewater	

Manager, Parks Superintendent 
M16	 No current position 
M17	 Project	and	Maintenance	Manager, Public Works Superintendent, 

Accountant, Zoning Administrator, Water Manager, Wastewater 
Manager, Community Affairs Coordinator, Project Engineer II, Income 
Tax Administrator, UTILITIES	FIELD	SUPERINTENDENT  

M18	 Project Engineer III, DEPUTY	DIRECTOR  
M19	 Deputy City Engineer 
M20	 No current position  

                                                            
1 Per Amendment to Ordinance No. 18‐112 (December 20, 2018) Clerk of Council (M1) removed from Management 
Pay Plan effective January 15, 2019. 



 
3 

 

 

Pay	
Grade	 Step	1	 Step	2	 Step	3	 Step	4	 Step	5	

M1	 19.43 20.18 20.89 21.85 22.70 

M2	 19.98 21.17 21.61 22.52 23.39 

M3	 20.98 21.83 22.70 23.62 24.56 

M4	 21.83 22.69 23.61 24.59 25.54 

M5	 22.95 23.95 25.37 26.32 27.11 

M6	 23.88 24.98 26.36 27.36 28.20 

M7	 24.80 25.99 27.41 28.43 29.33 

M8	 26.18 27.30 28.39 29.59 30.84 

M9	 27.25 28.37 29.53 30.78 32.07 

M10	 28.34 29.51 30.75 32.03 33.38 

M11	 29.47 30.64 32.01 33.28 34.66 

M12	 30.68 31.91 33.25 34.61 36.08 

M13	 31.89 33.18 34.59 36.02 37.53 

M14	 33.12 34.53 35.97 37.46 39.04 

M15	 34.44 35.92 37.42 38.96 40.55 

M16	 35.86 37.34 38.90 40.51 42.17 

M17	 37.30 38.81 40.51 42.12 43.90 

M18	 38.75 40.37 42.12 43.84 45.66 

M19	 40.33 42.00 43.81 45.57 47.45 

M20	 41.93 43.64 45.57 47.40 49.36 
 

 



 
4 

 

Section	1.02 Department	Head	Pay	Plan	

(a) The following pay schedule for the positions below is to be effective December 26, 

2018 25,	2019 and reflects a 2.5% 3% increase to each range.  

 

Section	1.03 Safety	Forces	Pay	Plan	

(a) Police	Captain	Wages	

 

1) Maximum	Vacation	Accrual	
If an employee enters into the Management Pay Plan with more than the 
maximum accrual of vacation hours allowed, the following will occur: 1. the 
employee may request a pay out to take the current level below the maximum 
allowed of, 2. the current accrual will be “frozen” as a maximum cap for the 
calendar year.  

Pay	Grade
DH	III

Dean Stelzer Finance Director $108,547.99 to $151,967.19
Darren ShulmanCity Attorney
Bruce PijanowskPolice Chief
John Donahue Fire Chief

DH	II $90,456.66 to $126,638.58
Bill Ferrigno Public Works Director/City Engineer
David Efland Planning & Development Director
Susie Dailey Chief Information Officer
Vacant Assistant Fire Chief
Vacant Assistant Police Chief
Blake Jordan Public Utilities Director
Kyle Kridler Assistant City Manager

DH	I	 $75,380.55 to $105,532.77
Jerry Warner Chief Building Official
Sean Hughes Economic Development Director
Ted Miller Parks & Natural Resources Director
Natalia Harris Chief Prosecutor
Lee Yoakum Community Affairs Coordinator

Range



 
5 

 

2) Initial	Compensatory	Time	
Prior to entering the Management Pay Plan all compensatory time will be paid 
out according to the provision in the respective bargaining contract and the 
employee compensation time will be zero (0).  

3) Clothing	Maintenance	Allowance	
The positions of Police Chief and Police Captain shall receive an annual clothing 
maintenance allowance of three hundred and forty dollars ($340) in January of 
each year.  

4) Uniforms	Allowance	
The Management Pay Plan positions in the Police and Fire Departments will 
receive replacement uniform items when determined by the Chief that 
replacement is necessary. 

(b) Fire	Captain	Wages	
The following pay schedule is to be effective December 26, 2018. The table below 
reflects a 2% increase for each step. Step increase shall take effect the first full pay 
period following the employee’s anniversary date. 

 

 

1) Fire	Captain	Provision	

Wages and associated benefits for the 40-hour/week Management Fire Captain 
are identical to those provided to equivalent bargaining unit position. Position is 
considered overtime eligible. Additionally, incumbent will receive 5% out-of-
class pay (based on wage rate) when serving as Acting Chief.  

 

 

 

 

 

 

Pay	Grade
Hourly Annual Hourly Annual Hourly Annual

SF2

PAY	GRADE POSITION
SF2 Fire Captain

STEP	1 STEP	2 STEP	3

per contract per contract per contract



 
17 

 

Article	III. Insurance	

Section	3.01 Hospitalization,	Surgical	and	Major	Medical	

(a) The City will continue to provide comprehensive hospitalization, surgical and major 
medical coverage for all full-time members and their dependents. Beginning January 
1, 1999, or at some date thereafter, the City may implement a Preferred Provider 
Organization (PPO). The Plan if implemented will provide for the following 
deductibles and co-payments as follows:  

 Network	Providers	 Non‐Network	Providers	
Annual	
Deductible												
Single	
																																					
Family	

None 
None 

$500.00 
$1000.00 

Office	Visit	Co‐
pay	

$10.00 N/A 

ER	Visit	Co‐pay	 $50.00 unless admitted into the 
hospital, otherwise co-insurance 
will apply in excess of the 
deductible 

N/A 

Co‐insurance										
Single	
	
	
																																					
Family	

 
90/10% of first $1,000 
80/20% of next $3,000 
 
90/10% of first $2,000 
80/20% of next $5,000 

 
50/50% of first $5,000 
 
50/50% of first $5,000 

1)  Contributions will be deducted from the member’s gross income prior to 
taxes, subject to compliance with all applicable tax regulations. 

2)  Effective January 1, 2013 employees will contribute to the cost of the health 
benefit plan in an amount equal to the 15% of the established monthly COBRA rate 
utilized by the City. Annual changes to the calculated COBRA rate will be applied to 
the monthly employee contributions on the first full pay-period in April of each 
year. Contributions will be deducted from all members in paid status based on 
twelve (12) months times the monthly rate, divided by the number of pay periods 
per year. An example would be $56.95/mo. X 12 = $683.40, $683.40 / 26 pay 
periods = $26.28 per pay period. In the event federal tax regulations are changed 
so that medical benefit plans are no longer tax exempt, the City will not be 
responsible to pick up the member’s tax burden. 



 
18 

 

3)  The City will permit employees who have alternate health plan options 
through a spouse to opt out of the City plan in return for a payment of at	least 
$100.00 per month for	full	opt	out	of	all	health	insurance. Families who have 
both spouses employed full time by the City of Delaware will not be eligible to opt 
out of the plan. One spouse will carry the full	cost of the plan minus the opt out 
payment. The employee will provide proof that they do in fact have other coverage 
before the City will drop that employee’s current coverage.  

4)  The City will continue to provide dental coverage if it is not provided under 
the employee’s spouse’s insurance. A member may elect to return to coverage 
under the City’s insurance plan by notifying the City in writing of any substantial 
changes in their qualifying family circumstances. The member must give (30) days’ 
notice of his or her election to return to the City’s plan, except in the case of an 
emergency, such as sudden loss of spouse’s coverage, divorce or other change in 
family status. The plan will comply with Internal Revenue Code Section 125 which 
governs this matter. 

5) 	Employees	who	opt	out	of	the	health	insurance	program	will	be	
compensated	as	follows:		

	

No	coverage																																				$100	per	month	

Maintain	Dental	Only																			$65	per	month	

Note: An employee may not elect to have medical coverage only 

 

6)  Payments will begin on the first pay period of the month following 30 days’ 
notice of an employee’s desire to drop coverage. A form will be provided which 
will contain all information necessary to discontinue coverage under the plan. The 
form must be signed and returned to the Department of Administrative Services. 
Until such time that an employee is effectively dropped from City coverage, they 
will be subject to any payroll contributions.  

7) All payments made in lieu of insurance coverage will be included as other 
pay on employee’s paycheck. This income will not be included in income subject to 
OPERS contributions but will be subject to all applicable taxes.  

 



 
19 

 

Section	3.02 Prescription	Plan	

(a) The	City	will	provide	a	prescription	card	plan	for	members	and	their	
dependents.	

(b) The	retail	benefits	will	be	the	following	with	the	City	paying	the	higher	
amount	and	the	employee	paying	the	lesser	amount	of	prescription	
coinsurance:	

1) 	80/20%	for	generic	drugs	

2) 	50/50%	name	brand	drugs	with	a	$25	co‐pay	for	each	disbursement	

(c) The	mail	order	benefits	will	be	the	following:	
1) 	90/10%	for	generic	drugs	and	

2) 	75/25%	for	name	brand	drugs	with	no	$25	co‐pay	

(d) The	maximum	expense	an	employee	will	pay	for	coinsurance	is	$250	annually	
for	single	coverage	and	$500	for	family	annually	for	prescription	benefits,	
however,	the	$25	co‐pay	for	retail	name	brand	drugs	will	not	count	towards	
the	calculation	of	the	$250	or	the	$500	coinsurance	maximum	and	will	always	
apply	even	after	an	employee	reaches	the	coinsurance	maximum	expenditure.		

Section	3.03 Dental	Care	Plan	

(a) The City will maintain the	current dental coverage for all members. Please refer to 
the Plan Document for specific covered services.  

Section	3.04 Life	Insurance	

(a) The City will provide the following amount of life insurance: 

1)  Department Heads: $50,000 

2)  Assistant Fire and Police Chiefs: $50,000 

3)  Pay Grades M11 though M20: $40,000 

4)  Police Captain and Fire Captain: $40,000 

5)  Pay Grades M1 through M10: $30,000 

Section	3.05 Vision	Plan	

(a) The City will provide a vision plan for members and their dependents covered by 
this Summary of Benefits. The City will contribute $6.00 per month on behalf of the 
employee. The employee will be responsible for the balance of the monthly cost of 
the coverage selected. 

 



 

 

 

  

THE CITY OF DELAWARE 2019 
SUMMARY OF BENEFITS 

Professional, Confidential, Supervisory and Non-
Union Employees 

Revised 5/22/2019 12/25/2019 

      



 
1 

 

Contents 
Article I. WAGES AND PAY PLAN ............................................................................................................... 2 

Section 1.01 Non- Union Employee Pay Plan ................................................................................ 2 

Section 1.02 Department Head Pay Plan ........................................................................................ 4 

Section 1.03 Safety Forces Pay Plan .................................................................................................. 4 

Section 1.04 Overtime Pay and Compensatory Time: Non-Exempt Employees ......... 6 

Section 1.05 Compensatory Time: Exempt Employees ........................................................... 7 

Article II. ACCRUED TIME AND VARIOUS LEAVES ............................................................................. 8 

Section 2.01 Vacation ................................................................................................................................ 8 

Section 2.02 Sick Leave ......................................................................................................................... 10 

Section 2.03 Holiday and Personal Days ...................................................................................... 13 

Section 2.04 Funeral Leave ................................................................................................................. 14 

Section 2.05 Special Leave ................................................................................................................... 15 

Section 2.06 Jury Duty Leave.............................................................................................................. 15 

Section 2.07 Court Leave ...................................................................................................................... 15 

Section 2.08 Injury Leave ..................................................................................................................... 15 

Article III. Insurance ................................................................................................................................... 17 

Section 3.01 Hospitalization, Surgical and Major Medical ................................................. 17 

Section 3.02 Prescription Plan .......................................................................................................... 19 

Section 3.03 Dental Care Plan ............................................................................................................ 19 

Section 3.04 Life Insurance ................................................................................................................. 19 

Section 3.05 Vision Plan ....................................................................................................................... 19 

Article IV. Other Compensation ............................................................................................................ 20 

Section 4.01 Longevity Compensation .......................................................................................... 20 

Section 4.02 Automobile Expense Reimbursement ............................................................... 20 

Section 4.03 Non-Uniformed Clothing Allowance ................................................................... 20 

Section 4.04 Call In Pay ......................................................................................................................... 21 

Section 4.05 Tuition Reimbursement ........................................................................................... 21 

Article V. Miscellaneous .............................................................................................................................. 22 

Section 5.01 Personnel Files .............................................................................................................. 22 

Section 5.02 Parks and Recreation Credit .................................................................................. 23 

 



 
2 

 

Article I. WAGES AND PAY PLAN 
 

Section 1.01 Non- Union Employee Pay Plan 
(a) The following pay schedule is to be effective December 26, 2018 25, 2019 and the 

table below reflects a 2% 3% increase for each step. Step increase shall take effect 
the first full pay period following the employee’s anniversary date.  

Pay Grade Position 
1M1 Administrative Assistant, Police Administrative Aide, Desktop 

Technician, HELP DESK SUPPORT TECHNICIAN  
M2 Airport Technician, Watershed Coordinator, Police Assistant 
M3 Economic Development Communications Specialist, COMMUNICATIONS 

SPECIALIST, SERVICE COORDINATOR, CRIME ANALYST 
M4 Cemetery Manager, Financial Specialist I, Arborist 
M5 GIS/CMMS Technician, Administrative Services Specialist, Right-of-Way 

Inspector, Zoning Technician, Golf Course Supervisor, WATERSHED 
COORDINATOR, TECHNICAL SUPPORT SPECIALIST  

M6 Police Technician 
M7 Code Enforcement Officer I, Customer Service Liaison, Facility 

Maintenance Supervisor 
M8 Engineering Technician, Airport Operations Supervisor, Division 

Supervisor, Financial Specialist II, Executive Assistant, Code Enforcement 
Officer II, Project Manager I, Collections Manager, Construction Inspector, 
ECONOMIC DEVELOPMENT COORDINATOR, GIS/CMMS ANALYST  

M9 Assistant City Attorney/Prosecutor, Building Inspector I 
M10 Development Planner, RECREATION PROGRAM COORDINATOR 
M11 No current position 
M12 GIS Coordinator, Project Manager II, Airport Manager, Construction 

Inspection Manager, IT Project Coordinator, Budget and Management 
Analyst 

M13 Building Inspector II 
M14 Information Systems & Network Administrator, Human Resource 

Manager, Assistant Prosecutor, Application System Specialist 
M15 Project Engineer I, Assistant Water Manager, Assistant Wastewater 

Manager, Parks Superintendent 
M16 No current position 
M17 Project and Maintenance Manager, Public Works Superintendent, 

Accountant, Zoning Administrator, Water Manager, Wastewater 
Manager, Community Affairs Coordinator, Project Engineer II, Income 
Tax Administrator, UTILITIES FIELD SUPERINTENDENT  

M18 Project Engineer III, DEPUTY DIRECTOR  
M19 Deputy City Engineer 
M20 No current position  

                                                           
1 Per Amendment to Ordinance No. 18-112 (December 20, 2018) Clerk of Council (M1) removed from Management 
Pay Plan effective January 15, 2019. 



 
3 

 

 

Pay 
Grade Step 1 Step 2 Step 3 Step 4 Step 5 

M1 19.43 20.18 20.89 21.85 22.70 

M2 19.98 21.17 21.61 22.52 23.39 

M3 20.98 21.83 22.70 23.62 24.56 

M4 21.83 22.69 23.61 24.59 25.54 

M5 22.95 23.95 25.37 26.32 27.11 

M6 23.88 24.98 26.36 27.36 28.20 

M7 24.80 25.99 27.41 28.43 29.33 

M8 26.18 27.30 28.39 29.59 30.84 

M9 27.25 28.37 29.53 30.78 32.07 

M10 28.34 29.51 30.75 32.03 33.38 

M11 29.47 30.64 32.01 33.28 34.66 

M12 30.68 31.91 33.25 34.61 36.08 

M13 31.89 33.18 34.59 36.02 37.53 

M14 33.12 34.53 35.97 37.46 39.04 

M15 34.44 35.92 37.42 38.96 40.55 

M16 35.86 37.34 38.90 40.51 42.17 

M17 37.30 38.81 40.51 42.12 43.90 

M18 38.75 40.37 42.12 43.84 45.66 

M19 40.33 42.00 43.81 45.57 47.45 

M20 41.93 43.64 45.57 47.40 49.36 
 

 



 
4 

 

Section 1.02 Department Head Pay Plan 
(a) The following pay schedule for the positions below is to be effective December 26, 

2018 25, 2019 and reflects a 2.5% 3% increase to each range.  

 

Section 1.03 Safety Forces Pay Plan 
(a) Police Captain Wages 

 

1) Maximum Vacation Accrual 
If an employee enters into the Management Pay Plan with more than the 
maximum accrual of vacation hours allowed, the following will occur: 1. the 
employee may request a pay out to take the current level below the maximum 
allowed of, 2. the current accrual will be “frozen” as a maximum cap for the 
calendar year.  

Pay Grade
DH III

Dean Stelzer Finance Director $108,547.99 to $151,967.19
Darren ShulmanCity Attorney
Bruce PijanowskPolice Chief
John Donahue Fire Chief

DH II $90,456.66 to $126,638.58
Bill Ferrigno Public Works Director/City Engineer
David Efland Planning & Development Director
Susie Dailey Chief Information Officer
Vacant Assistant Fire Chief
Vacant Assistant Police Chief
Blake Jordan Public Utilities Director
Kyle Kridler Assistant City Manager

DH I $75,380.55 to $105,532.77
Jerry Warner Chief Building Official
Sean Hughes Economic Development Director
Ted Miller Parks & Natural Resources Director
Natalia Harris Chief Prosecutor
Lee Yoakum Community Affairs Coordinator

Range



 
5 

 

2) Initial Compensatory Time 
Prior to entering the Management Pay Plan all compensatory time will be paid 
out according to the provision in the respective bargaining contract and the 
employee compensation time will be zero (0).  

3) Clothing Maintenance Allowance 
The positions of Police Chief and Police Captain shall receive an annual clothing 
maintenance allowance of three hundred and forty dollars ($340) in January of 
each year.  

4) Uniforms Allowance 
The Management Pay Plan positions in the Police and Fire Departments will 
receive replacement uniform items when determined by the Chief that 
replacement is necessary. 

(b) Fire Captain Wages 
The following pay schedule is to be effective December 26, 2018. The table below 
reflects a 2% increase for each step. Step increase shall take effect the first full pay 
period following the employee’s anniversary date. 

 

 

1) Fire Captain Provision 
Wages and associated benefits for the 40-hour/week Management Fire Captain 
are identical to those provided to equivalent bargaining unit position. Position is 
considered overtime eligible. Additionally, incumbent will receive 5% out-of-
class pay (based on wage rate) when serving as Acting Chief.  

 

 

 

 

 

 

Pay Grade
Hourly Annual Hourly Annual Hourly Annual

SF2

PAY GRADE POSITION
SF2 Fire Captain

STEP 1 STEP 2 STEP 3

per contract per contract per contract



 
6 

 

Section 1.04 Overtime Pay & Compensatory Time: Non-Exempt 
Employees 

(a) For employees who are entitled to overtime pay or compensatory time off under the 
provisions of the Fair Labor Standard Act they shall be entitled to overtime pay or 
compensatory time as described below:  

1) Employees shall be compensated at straight-time rates for all hours in active pay 
status, except that all hours in paid status in excess of forty (40) hours in any 
workweek shall be compensated for at a rate of time and one-half. Payment in 
cash shall be made for any overtime due at the time of separation from City 
service. 

2) In lieu of cash payment, the employee may request to be compensated for 
overtime by compensatory time off in accordance with the law. Such 
compensatory time off shall be equal to one and one-half (1.5) hours for each 
hour of overtime compensation to which the employee is entitled. All requests for 
use of compensatory time are subject to approval of the department head. 
Compensatory time shall be taken at a time mutually agreeable to the supervisor 
and the employee.  

3) Employees can accumulate up to eighty (80) hours of compensatory time. When 
an employee has eighty (80) hours of accumulated compensatory time, all further 
overtime will be paid in cash. 

4) At no time shall compensatory time be converted to any other form of leave or 
compensation; except when an employee separates from City service. Upon 
termination of employment, a non-exempt employee shall be paid for unused 
compensatory time provided that the time was earned after April 14, 1986 at a 
rate of compensation not less than: 

i. The average regular rate (hourly rate) received by such employee during 
the last 3 years of the employee’s employment, or 

ii. The final regular rate (hourly rate) received by such employee, whichever is 
higher.  

5) Compensatory time shall be submitted on the regular payroll sheet detailing the 
time earned and taken. 

 

 

 

 

 



 
7 

 

 

 

Section 1.02 Compensatory Time: Exempt Employees 
(a) Employees exempt under the Fair Labor Standard Act shall not be entitled to 

overtime pay but shall be entitled to compensatory time as described below:  
1) No existing compensatory time balances will be carried over from an outside 

position or when the employee transfers in the Management Pay Plan 
2) Compensatory time shall be earned for approved work that exceeds eight (8) 

hours per day and such employees may receive said compensatory time at the 
rate of one (1) hour for each hour worked in excess of eight (8) hours per day. 

3) The maximum accrual of compensatory time shall be eighty (80) hours. 
4) Compensatory time must be used in minimum increments of one (1) hour and 

maximum increments of twenty four (24) hours per pay period.  
5) At no time shall compensatory time be converted to any other form of leave of 

compensation. Upon termination of employment, an exempt employee is not 
entitled to payment for unused compensatory time.  

6) Compensatory time shall be submitted on the regular payroll sheet detailing the 
time earned and taken.  

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 



 
8 

 

Article II. ACCRUED TIME AND VARIOUS LEAVES 
 

Section 2.01 Vacation 
(a) The vacation year for employees shall end at close of business on the last pay period 

that ends in the month of December. 
(b) Each full-time employee shall accrue vacation leave by pay period at the annual rate 

of work hours based on years of full-time total service which is established in the 
schedules contained in Section 3 of this article. Years of total full-time service is 
defined to be the total of all periods of employment for the City of Delaware. Any 
period of interruption of service due to resignation, layoff, disciplinary suspension, 
or discharge for cause, will not be included in the computation of total service. Time 
not in paid status, excepting military leave, shall also be excluded in computing total 
service. In computing years of service, the higher rate of accrual will be on the first 
day of the first pay period in which a year of service is completed.  

(c) The following vacation accrual schedules are established:  
 

Years of Total Service Vacation 
Hrs./Year 

Vacation 
Hrs./Pay 

Start through 5 years 80.6 3.1 
6 through 10 years 119.6 4.6 
11 through 15 years 161.20 6.2 
16 plus years 200.2 7.7 

 
(d) Any vacation balance in excess of the maximum accrual shall become void as of the 

close of business on the last day of the pay period that ends in the month of 
December.  

 

Years of Total Service Maximum Accrual of 
Vacation Hours 

Start through 5 years 241.8 
6 through 10 years 358.8 
11 through 15 years 483.6 
16 plus years 600.6 

 



 
9 

 

(e) Eligibility 
1) To be eligible for biweekly (pay period) vacation accumulation, an employee 

must be in paid status for a minimum of 72 hours within that pay period; except 
that when an employee is required to report for work and does so report and is 
denied work because of circumstances beyond their control, absence from work 
for the balance of that day shall not be construed as unpaid work status.  

2) An employee in full-time status who is to be separated from City service through 
discharge, resignation, retirement or layoff, and who has unused vacation leave 
to their credit, shall be paid in a lump sum for such unused vacation leave in lieu 
of granting a vacation leave after his last day of active service with the City. Such 
payment shall be paid at the employee’s hourly rate of pay at time of separation.  

3) When a member dies while in paid status in the City service, any unused 
vacation leave to their credit shall be paid in a lump sum to the surviving spouse, 
or such other person the employee may have designated in writing.  

4) Requests for vacation are to be submitted and approved, in advance of the 
intended use, by employee’s supervisor or department head. 

5) To be eligible to transfer years of service for determination of vacation benefits 
to the City of Delaware from prior employment inside the state of Ohio: 

i. Employees will only be eligible to transfer years of service from a public 
agency as defined by State law. 

ii. The amount of years of service that can be transferred is unlimited. 
iii. Prior employment must be in full-time status  

6)  To be eligible to transfer years of service for determination of vacation benefits 
to the City of Delaware from prior employment outside the State of Ohio:  

i. Employees will only be eligible to transfer years of service from their 
immediate previous employer.  

ii. Said previous employer must be a public agency. 
iii. Employment with the City of Delaware must take place within twelve 

months of termination from their immediate previous employer. 
iv. The maximum amount of years of service that can be transferred is five (5) 

years.  
v. Present employees are not eligible. 

vi. Prior employment must be in full-time status. 
7)  An employee may elect to trade three (3) weeks of vacation time, or the 

equivalent of vacation time earned in one year, whichever is greater, for 
equivalent pay during the calendar year. Conversion of vacation time may occur 
for pay periods ending in the months of January, June, or December of each year. 
For 2019, these dates are as follows:  

 



 
10 

 

Pay Period Ending Pay Date 
January 7, 2020 January 14, 2020 
January 21, 2020 January 28, 2020 
June 9, 2020 June 16, 2020 
June 23, 2020 June 30, 2020 
December 8, 2020 December 15, 2020 
December 22, 2020 December 29, 2020 

 
An employee must inform the Department Head prior to August 1 of the year 
preceding the calendar year in which he intends to make the trade and must 
maintain at least forty (40) hours of vacation time in the employee’s account after 
said trade takes place. Exceptions may be granted by the authority of the city 
manager. 

 

Section 2.02 Sick Leave 
(a) Each city employee shall be entitled to sick leave with pay for four and six-tenths 

(4.6) hours of each completed (80) hours of service. An employee may use sick 
leave, upon approval of his or her Department Head, for absence due to personal 
illness, pregnancy, injury, or exposure to contagious disease which could be 
communicated to other employees, and for illness or injury of the employee’s 
spouse, dependent children, step-children or parent. It is the option of a supervisor, 
with cause, to require return to work documentation from the employee.  

 

(b) If an employee used 0 hours of sick leave in any one calendar year, that employee 
shall be credited with an additional three (3) vacation days the following year. If an 
employee uses between one (1) and eight (8) hours of sick leave in any one calendar 
year that employee shall be credited with an additional two (2) vacation days the 
following year. If an employee uses between nine (9) and sixteen (16) hours of sick 
leave in any one calendar year that member shall be credited with one (1) additional 
vacation day the following year. To be eligible for this incentive, an employee must 
be active for the first pay period of the calendar year through the last pay period of 
the calendar year. At the employee’s option, any additional vacation days earned can 
be converted to pay for pay periods ending in the months of January, June, or 
December of the year the additional vacation is earned. For 2019, these dates are as 
follows:  

 



 
11 

 

Pay Period Ending Pay Date 
January 7, 2020 January 14, 2020 
January 21, 2020 January 28, 2020 
June 9, 2020 June 16, 2020 
June 23, 2020 June 30, 2020 
December 8, 2020 December 15, 2020 
December 22, 2020 December 29, 2020 

 
(c) To be eligible to transfer sick leave to the City of Delaware from prior employment 

inside the state of Ohio: 
1) Employees will only be eligible to transfer sick leave from a public agency as defined by 

the State of Ohio. 
2) Employment with the City of Delaware must take place within ten (10) years of 

termination from their previous employer. 
3) The maximum amount of sick leave hours that be transferred is unlimited as long as it is 

accrued at a rate of no greater than 15 days per year. 
(d) To be eligible to transfer sick leave of the City of Delaware from prior employment 

outside the state of Ohio:  
1) Employees will only be eligible to transfer sick leave from their immediate previous 

employer. 
2)  Said previous employer must be a public agency. 
3)  Employment with the City of Delaware must take place within twelve (12) months 

of termination from their immediate previous employer.  
4)  The maximum amount of sick leave hours that can be transferred is six hundred 

(600).  
5)  Any sick leave time so transferred shall have been accumulated at the rate of one 

and one-fourth days per month of employment.  
6)  Present employees are not eligible.  

(e) Any City employee who has accumulated at least 100 days of sick leave credit may 
convert any excess thereof up to fifteen (15) days per year of sick leave to vacation 
leave on the basis two (2) sick leave days for one (1) day vacation leave. Such annual 
conversion, if made, shall occur in December for the year of conversion.  

(f) Any employee separated from City service for other than just cause shall be paid for 
all accumulated and unused sick leave on the basis of one (1) hour of pay for every 
two (2) hours of unused sick leave. Total sick leave pay out cannot exceed sixteen 
(16) weeks pay. 

(g) For Employees Hired After November 1, 2013 



 
12 

 

1) Each member hired by the City of Delaware after November 1, 2013 may transfer 
accrued sick leave hours from previous employment with any public agency, but 
such sick leave hours will not be eligible for conversion or payment upon separation 
pursuant to section 5. In addition, sick leave usage by members who transfer in sick 
leave hours will first be charged to sick leave hours accumulated while employed by 
the City of Delaware. Members will only be eligible to utilize hours transferred in 
from prior public employment when they have no balance of sick leave available 
from sick leave accrued while employed by the City of Delaware.  

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 



 
13 

 

Section 2.03 Holiday and Personal Days2 
(a) The following are designated as paid holidays for covered employees: 

New Year’s Day, January 1 Little Brown Jug Day, ½ day2 
Martin Luther King Day Thanksgiving Day 
Memorial Day Day after Thanksgiving Day 
Independence Day, July 4 Day before Christmas, ½ day 
Labor Day Christmas Day, December 25 

(b) If one of the holidays set forth above occurs while an employee is on vacation leave, 
such day shall not be charged against his/her vacation leave.  

(c) In the event that the Federal Government designates a specific day for any of the 
aforesaid holidays, then such holiday shall be observed by the City in accordance 
with such federal designation. When any such holidays falls on a Saturday it shall be 
observed on the Friday immediately preceding, and when any such holiday falls on a 
Sunday, it shall be observed on the Monday immediately following, provided that 
the employee works their last regularly scheduled work day preceding the following 
the holiday. 

(d) For each of the holidays specified in Section 1 of this article on which a FLSA non-
exempt employee works, they shall be entitled to holiday compensation equal to 
double the employee’s regular rate of pay, except that the employee shall be entitled 
to holiday compensation at two and one-half times the employee’s regular rate of 
pay if they work on any of the following holidays: New Year’s Day, Memorial Day, 
Independent Day, Labor Day, Thanksgiving Day, Christmas Day. Only eight (8) hours 
per day will be used when computing the holiday rate. Compensation for holidays 
may be in the form of cash or compensatory time off. 

(e) Employees shall be credited 32 hours of personal leave a year, except for new hires 
who shall receive a prorated amount based on hire date. Use of holiday 
compensatory time or personal days shall be at the employee’s discretion with the 
approval of the employee’s supervisor or department head.  

(f) All employees will be permitted to accumulate three (3) years’ worth of holiday 
compensatory time and personal leave. Once an employee accumulates the 
maximum allowable number of personal leave/holiday compensatory time then 
future personal leave/holiday compensatory time will be compensated for in cash, 
at the time they are earned. An employee may elect to cash in up to one year’s worth 
of personal leave each year (32 hours) for pay periods ending in the months of 
January, June, or December each year. An employee must inform his or her 
Department Head prior to August 1 of the year preceding the calendar year in which 
they intend to make the trade. For 2019, the dates are as follows: 

 

 



 
14 

 

Pay Period Ending Pay Date 
January 7, 2020 January 14, 2020 
January 21, 2020 January 28, 2020 
June 9, 2020 June 16, 2020 
June 23, 2020 June 30, 2020 
December 8, 2020 December 15, 2020 
December 22, 2020 December 29, 2020 

 

Section 2.04 Funeral Leave 
(a) Each covered employee shall be entitled to funeral leave with pay according to the 

following schedule:  

Leave for Death of: 
Days/Hours of Leave 

Local Funeral Other Funeral 
Immediate Family Member 1 – 3 Days 1 – 5 Days 

Other Relative 
May Use Up to One 

Scheduled Work Day of 
Accrued Leave 

May Use Between 1 – 3 
Scheduled Work Days of 

Accrued Leave 
1) One work day/shift is automatic for the day of the funeral, but additional time up 

to the maximum shall be given only with approval of the Department Head. 
2) All leave time with approval of the Department Head.  

(b) For the purposes of this section, “Immediate Family Member” means spouse, child, 
brother, sister, parents, step-child, step-brother, step-sister and step-parents, 
grandparents, grandchildren, sister-in-law, brother-in-law, and parents-in-law. 

(c) For the purposes of the article, “Local Funeral” means a funeral in the City of 
Delaware, or within fifty (50) miles thereof.  

 



 
15 

 

Section 2.05 Special Leave 
(a) In additional to other leaves authorized herein, the City Manager may authorize a 

special leave of absence, with or without pay, for purposes beneficial to the 
employee and/or the City.  

(b) For exempt employees who are absent, if the absence cannot be covered or paid 
through appropriate leave time, said employees shall be subject to a reduction in 
pay, unless the absence is less than one workday.  

Section 2.06 Jury Duty Leave 
(a) An employee, while serving on a jury in any court of record in Delaware County, or 

any adjoining county, will be paid his regular salary for each of his workdays during 
the period of time so served. Time so served shall be deemed active and continuous 
service for all purposes. All jury fees received from the court of record shall be 
assigned to the City of Delaware.  

(b) When an employee has been released from Jury Duty they shall report back to work 
if more than two (2) hours are left in the workday. 

Section 2.07 Court Leave 
(a) Time off with pay shall be allowed employees who are subpoenaed to attend any 

court of record in Delaware County, Delaware, Ohio or any adjoining county, as a 
witness in civil matters, as they pertain to City matters. All witness fees shall be 
assigned to the City of Delaware. 

Section 2.08 Injury Leave 
(a) All regular full-time City employees shall be entitled to injury leave with pay, less 

any Worker’s Compensation weekly salary benefits which he/she may be awarded 
by the Ohio Industrial Commission (OIC), for a period not to exceed 30 consecutive 
working days for employees working a 40-hour workweek for each injury incurred 
in the performance of employment duties with the City, provided that the following 
procedures are followed: 

1) In all cases of personal injury to any regular full-time City employee as a result of 
the performance of employment duties, the employee shall complete an 
accident/injury investigation form and in conjunction with his/her Department 
Head shall report such injury to the Department of Administrative Services 
immediately and ensure that a claim is filed with the BWC. 



 
16 

 

2) In the event that time off from work is required by the injured employee, they 
will be granted injury leave from the first day of injury, if the proper 
documentation is submitted to the City of Delaware. This documentation will 
include, but not be limited to, a statement from the employee’s physician, an 
Agreement covering Compensation Reimbursement, any necessary BWC forms 
and other documents as may be required by the City. In the event that the BWC 
determines that the injury is NOT employment related, any time the employee is, 
or has been, absent from work shall be deducted first from any accrued sick 
leave, then accrued vacation, or accrued compensatory time off, other than 
compensatory time for overtime worked.  

3) During the period of time an injured employee is being paid under this policy, all 
normal benefits given to regular full-time City employees shall remain in force 
with no deductions to earned sick leave and/or vacation time. 

4) In all cases where more than 30 consecutive working days are needed for injury 
leave for employees working a 40-hour workweek, the City Manager may extend 
such leave, if such necessity is determined to his/her satisfaction. Each employee 
requesting such an extension under this policy may be required to furnish a 
current affidavit from a licensed physician setting forth the need for the 
extension.  

 



 
17 

 

Article III. Insurance 
Section 3.01 Hospitalization, Surgical and Major Medical 

(a) The City will continue to provide comprehensive hospitalization, surgical and major 
medical coverage for all full-time members and their dependents. Beginning January 
1, 1999, or at some date thereafter, the City may implement a Preferred Provider 
Organization (PPO). The Plan if implemented will provide for the following 
deductibles and co-payments as follows:  

 Network Providers Non-Network Providers 
Annual 
Deductible            
Single 
                                               
Family 

None 
None 

$500.00 
$1000.00 

Office Visit Co-
pay 

$10.00 N/A 

ER Visit Co-pay $50.00 unless admitted into the 
hospital, otherwise co-insurance 
will apply in excess of the 
deductible 

N/A 

Co-insurance                 
Single 
 
 
                                            
Family 

 
90/10% of first $1,000 
80/20% of next $3,000 
 
90/10% of first $2,000 
80/20% of next $5,000 

 
50/50% of first $5,000 
 
50/50% of first $5,000 

1)  Contributions will be deducted from the member’s gross income prior to 
taxes, subject to compliance with all applicable tax regulations. 

2)  Effective January 1, 2013 employees will contribute to the cost of the health 
benefit plan in an amount equal to the 15% of the established monthly COBRA rate 
utilized by the City. Annual changes to the calculated COBRA rate will be applied to 
the monthly employee contributions on the first full pay-period in April of each 
year. Contributions will be deducted from all members in paid status based on 
twelve (12) months times the monthly rate, divided by the number of pay periods 
per year. An example would be $56.95/mo. X 12 = $683.40, $683.40 / 26 pay 
periods = $26.28 per pay period. In the event federal tax regulations are changed 
so that medical benefit plans are no longer tax exempt, the City will not be 
responsible to pick up the member’s tax burden. 



 
18 

 

3)  The City will permit employees who have alternate health plan options 
through a spouse to opt out of the City plan in return for a payment of at least 
$100.00 per month for full opt out of all health insurance. Families who have 
both spouses employed full time by the City of Delaware will not be eligible to opt 
out of the plan. One spouse will carry the full cost of the plan minus the opt out 
payment. The employee will provide proof that they do in fact have other coverage 
before the City will drop that employee’s current coverage.  

4)  The City will continue to provide dental coverage if it is not provided under 
the employee’s spouse’s insurance. A member may elect to return to coverage 
under the City’s insurance plan by notifying the City in writing of any substantial 
changes in their qualifying family circumstances. The member must give (30) days’ 
notice of his or her election to return to the City’s plan, except in the case of an 
emergency, such as sudden loss of spouse’s coverage, divorce or other change in 
family status. The plan will comply with Internal Revenue Code Section 125 which 
governs this matter. 

5)  Employees who opt out of the health insurance program will be 
compensated as follows:  
 
No coverage                                    $100 per month 
Maintain Dental Only                   $65 per month 
Note: An employee may not elect to have medical coverage only 
 

6)  Payments will begin on the first pay period of the month following 30 days’ 
notice of an employee’s desire to drop coverage. A form will be provided which 
will contain all information necessary to discontinue coverage under the plan. The 
form must be signed and returned to the Department of Administrative Services. 
Until such time that an employee is effectively dropped from City coverage, they 
will be subject to any payroll contributions.  

7) All payments made in lieu of insurance coverage will be included as other 
pay on employee’s paycheck. This income will not be included in income subject to 
OPERS contributions but will be subject to all applicable taxes.  

 



 
19 

 

Section 3.02 Prescription Plan 
(a) The City will provide a prescription card plan for members and their 

dependents. 
(b) The retail benefits will be the following with the City paying the higher 

amount and the employee paying the lesser amount of prescription 
coinsurance: 
1)  80/20% for generic drugs 
2)  50/50% name brand drugs with a $25 co-pay for each disbursement 

(c) The mail order benefits will be the following: 
1)  90/10% for generic drugs and 
2)  75/25% for name brand drugs with no $25 co-pay 

(d) The maximum expense an employee will pay for coinsurance is $250 annually 
for single coverage and $500 for family annually for prescription benefits, 
however, the $25 co-pay for retail name brand drugs will not count towards 
the calculation of the $250 or the $500 coinsurance maximum and will always 
apply even after an employee reaches the coinsurance maximum expenditure.  

Section 3.03 Dental Care Plan 
(a) The City will maintain the current dental coverage for all members. Please refer to 

the Plan Document for specific covered services.  
Section 3.04 Life Insurance 

(a) The City will provide the following amount of life insurance: 
1)  Department Heads: $50,000 
2)  Assistant Fire and Police Chiefs: $50,000 
3)  Pay Grades M11 though M20: $40,000 
4)  Police Captain and Fire Captain: $40,000 
5)  Pay Grades M1 through M10: $30,000 

Section 3.05 Vision Plan 
(a) The City will provide a vision plan for members and their dependents covered by 

this Summary of Benefits. The City will contribute $6.00 per month on behalf of the 
employee. The employee will be responsible for the balance of the monthly cost of 
the coverage selected. 

 



 
20 

 

Article IV. Other Compensation 
Section 4.01 Longevity Compensation 

(a) Employees shall receive, in addition to other pay called for herein, Longevity 
Compensation based on completed years of service according to the following table: 

After five (5) years of continuous service $550.00/year 
After ten (10) years of continuous service $750.00/year 
After fifteen (15) years of continuous service $950.00/year 
After twenty (20) years of continuous service $1150.00/year 

1)  Longevity compensation shall be paid, in accordance with the above schedule, in 
two (2) separate lump sum payments during the first pay periods in June and 
December of each year. 

2)  Upon termination of service for any reason, employees who are eligible for 
longevity pay under this section (or in the event of death, the surviving spouse or 
estate) will be paid, as part of their terminal pay, the final partial year of 
longevity compensation, prorated to the name of months completed during said 
partial year since the employee’s last payment date.  

3) For the purpose of this section, continuous years of service shall include 
approved military leave. 

 

Section 4.02 Automobile Expense Reimbursement 
(a) Employees shall receive reimbursement for business use of their personal vehicle. 

Reimbursement will be in accordance with the Internal Revenue Service (IRS) 
regulations for not-taxable reimbursements and shall be at the IRS per mile 
reimbursement rate in effect when the business use miles were incurred. 
Department Heads as department heads employed by the City prior to January 1, 
1999 who had received a monthly automobile allowance will only be reimbursed for 
business use of their personal vehicle for travel outside the City limits. 

 

Section 4.03 Non-Uniformed Clothing Allowance 
(a) All employees covered under this pay plan in Pay Grades M1 through M9 who are 

not provided with a uniform shall receive an annual clothing allowance of $150.00. 
Such allowance shall be utilized to purchase necessary work-related items of 
clothing such as, but not limited to: steel toed boots, coats, rain gear, rubber boots, 
gloves etc. All purchases of clothing shall be the responsibility of the employee. 
Upon hire the clothing allowance will be prorated based on the full months of 
service for that year. 

 



 
21 

 

Section 4.04 Call-In Pay 
(a) Both exempt and nonexempt employees shall be eligible for “on call” compensation 

for weekly periods when assigned the responsibility of direct Parks, Public Works, 
or Utility personnel in response to service requests during non-scheduled work 
periods. Employees assigned to this “on call” status shall serve in this posture for 
weekly time periods are authorized by the respective Department Head. Said 
employees shall be responsible for responding to after hour service requests. 
Employees assigned to an “on call” status shall be compensated at a weekly rate of 
between $25.00 and $50.00 as determined by the City Manager. On call 
compensation shall be paid in addition to regular and overtime wages earned during 
the pay period. On call assignments will be posted in June and December of each 
year for the following six-month period. Changes to the schedule must be made in 
advance with approval of the Department Head. 

 
Section 4.05 Tuition Reimbursement 

(a) All full-time employees with one or more years of continuous active service shall be 
eligible for a reimbursement of instructional fees for undergraduate or graduate 
courses towards a degree or certification, pre-approved by the city and voluntarily 
undertaken by the employee. The tuition reimbursement program shall be subject 
to the following conditions: 

1)  All courses must be taken during other than scheduled working hours. Any 
situation which, in the discretion of the department head, would require an 
employee’s presence on the job shall take complete and final precedence over 
any time scheduled for courses. All courses are subject to approval by the 
department head and/or city manager. There must be a direct correlation 
between the employee’s duties and responsibilities and the courses taken or the 
degree program pursued. The city manager, or his designee, has the sole and final 
discretion to approve or disapprove tuition reimbursement requests. 

2)  Any financial assistance from any government or private agency available to the 
employee, whether applied for and regardless of when such assistance may have 
been received, shall be deducted in the entire amount from the tuition 
reimbursement the employee is eligible for under this section. If an employee’s 
tuition is fully covered by another governmental or private agency, then the 
employee is not entitled to any payment from the city. 



 
22 

 

3)  Employees seeking authorization of a tuition reimbursement must first submit to 
the department head for review, prior to September 30 of the year preceding 
when the classes are to be taken, all necessary information pertaining to the 
proposed course degree to be pursued, the educational institution and the 
employee’s best estimate of course costs, dates and times. Employees will be 
eligible for tuition reimbursement for properly approved and completed 
coursework up to $3,500 for calendar year (January 1 to December 31). Pre-
approval is subject to available appropriations. The employee will be responsible 
for any tuition in excess of the above mentioned amounts. An application for  
tuitions reimbursement must be completed by the employee prior to enrolling in 
the class work for which reimbursement is requested. 

4)  Courses must be taken at accredited colleges, universities, technical and business 
institutes or at their established extension centers and these must be first 
approved by the city. Seminars, conferences and workshops are not included. 

5)  Reimbursement for tuition will be made when the employee satisfactorily 
completes (attains at least a grade of “C” or its equivalent for undergraduate 
work and a grade of at least “B” or its equivalent and a receipt of payment or a 
copy of the unpaid bill from the institution confirming completion of the 
approved course.  

6)  No reimbursement will be granted for books, paper, supplies of whatever nature, 
transportation, meals, or any other expense connected with any course, except 
the cost of tuition fees outlined above. 

7)  Any employee participating in the tuition reimbursement program who resigns 
(except resignation due to disability), retires (except retirement due to 
disability), or is discharged for cause must repay the tuition reimbursement paid 
by the city for courses taken less than two years prior to the date of termination 
or discharge. If necessary, the amount will be deducted from the employee’s 
terminal leave pay or final paycheck.  

Article V. Miscellaneous 
Section 5.01 Personnel Files 

(a)  The official personnel files of all employees shall be maintained in the Department 
of Administrative Services (DAS). All employee personnel records shall include but 
not limited to, applications, performance evaluations, promotions, disciplinary 
actions and any other pertinent information pertaining to the job performance of 
the individual employee. Copies therein shall be available to the employee. 

(b)  DAS shall be responsible for the care and maintenance for all personnel files and 
records. Department heads shall be responsible for promptly forwarding all 
pertinent personnel information and documentation to DAS. Employees may, during 
normal office hours, review their official personnel files. 



 
23 

 

 

Section 5.02 Parks and Recreation Credit 
(a) The City shall provide each employee with a credit to be applied to a Jack Florance 

Pool membership, City Golf Course membership or punch-card, or City rentals 
(shelters or Hilborn Room). The amount of the credit shall be $60.00. Employees 
shall abide by the stipulations set forth by the managing organization both in 
definition and restrictions. This credit amount is fixed, regardless of changes in 
membership fees that may occur. In addition, the City will provide to each member a 
20% discount on all individual registrations for City recreation programs.  

(b) Credits may not be used to purchase memberships or to secure rentals beyond the 
calendar year for which it is issued. Credits will not be re-issued if lost or stolen and 
must be surrendered at the time of registration/purchase. Credits for non-
transferrable.  
 

 
 
 



TO: Members of City Council

FROM: Dean Stelzer, Finance Director

DATE: November 19, 2019

Reports Included

Page                     Reports                   Purpose

2 Revenues by Source This summary compares year-to-date revenues for 2019 to 2018 by source.

3  General Fund Summary of General Fund budgeted revenues, expenditures and fund 

  balance.

4 Other  Operating Funds Summary of budgeted revenues, expenditures, & fund balances for 

   non-general fund operating funds.

5 Other Funds Other non-operating funds revenues, expenditures and fund balance.

6 Insurance Summary of the City's self-funded health insurance costs with 

  comparisons to last year.

7 Income Tax Monthly income tax collections for last three years.  Also includes 

  tax collection projections for remainder of the year.

YTD 2019 Budget Supplementals

19-03 $150,000 - Donation Fund - Hayes Statue 

19-04 $28,000  -  CIP Fund Electric Parking System

19-15 $1,150,000 - CIP E. William St. Grant Project

19-16 $160,000 - CIP FUND Annex Improvements

19-17  $650,000 - General Fund Transfers to CIP and SMR

19-39 $10,000 - Gen Fund Regional Housing Study

19-45 $6,000 - Dev Res Fund Incentive Grant

19-55 $44,000 - Parks Master Plan

19-57 $100,000 - Cemetery Design and Maintenance

OCTOBER FINANCE REPORT



FINANCE DIRECTOR'S REPORT
REVENUES BY SOURCE

October 31, 2019
Revenues Revenues  
@ 10/31/19 @ 10/31/18 % Change

TAXES
Income Tax 24,726,961$         23,887,318$         3.52%

 Property Tax 2,166,676             2,069,446             4.70%
Local Government Fund 566,440                503,543                12.49%
Hotel/Motel Tax 66,423                  75,614                  -12.16%
Gasoline Taxes 1,158,444             986,491                17.43%
License Plate Tax 574,207                571,390                0.49%

 
FEES  

Franchise Fee (cable tv) 313,371$              307,367$              1.95%
Parking Meter & Lot Fees 67,328                  69,675                  -3.37%
Fines/Forfeitures/Court Diversion Fees 94,614                  126,504                -25.21%
Impact Fees 1,197,413             838,561                42.79%
Airport - Fuel 605,293                574,404                5.38%
Cemetery 139,182                113,991                22.10%
Golf Course 168,039                158,065                6.31%

REIMBURSEMENTS
Engineering Fees 322,770$              1,294,340$           -75.06%
Fire/EMS Reimbursement 188,718                684,303                -72.42%
Prosecutor Reimbursements 242,185                190,870                26.88%
Building Permits and Fees 1,115,789             914,861                21.96%

 
UTILITY CHARGES   

Water  -  Meter Charges 4,778,980$           4,678,056$           2.16%
           -  Capacity Fees 3,551,258             2,260,904             57.07%
Sewer  -  Meter Charges 5,740,509             5,595,952             2.58%
           -  Capacity Fees 3,397,935             2,174,280             56.28%
Refuse 2,966,411             2,896,851             2.40%
Storm Sewer 715,608                711,338                0.60%

MUNICIPAL COURT REVENUES 2,721,592$           2,546,918$           6.86%
 

2



FINANCE DIRECTOR'S REPORT
GENERAL FUND REVENUES

October 31, 2019
October 83.3% of year Comparative

Revenues 2019 Revenues As Revenues % Change
10/31/2019 Budget % of Budget 10/31/2018 YTD

GENERAL FUND
Property Tax 1,658,403 1,629,406 101.78% 1,593,916 4.05%

City Income Tax 13,368,259 15,645,000 85.45% 12,916,648 3.50%

Other Taxes 997 0 0.00% 975 2.26%

Local Government Fund 566,440 618,976 91.51% 503,543 12.49%

Fines and Forfeitures 94,614 148,000 63.93% 126,504 (25.21%)

Engineering Fees 322,770 1,200,000 26.90% 1,294,340 (75.06%)

Prosecutor Contracts 242,185 285,000 84.98% 190,870 26.88%

Parking Meters 28,052 38,000 73.82% 33,541 (16.37%)

Other Fees and Contracts 34,515 0 0.00% 36,395 (5.17%)

Liquor Permits 48,465 45,000 107.70% 43,024 12.65%

Franchise Fees 313,371 405,000 77.38% 307,367 1.95%

Licenses & Permits 1,115,789 830,000 134.43% 914,861 21.96%

Investment Income 733,050 650,000 112.78% 558,165 31.33%

Miscellaneous 175,574 110,000 159.61% 60,070 192.28%

Reimbursements 196,040 200,000 98.02% 187,665 4.46%

Transfers 1,701,907 1,920,000 88.64% 1,636,940 3.97%

TOTAL 20,600,431 23,724,382 86.83% 20,404,824 0.96%

GENERAL FUND EXPENDITURES 
Comparative

Expenses 2019 Expenses As Expenses % Change
10/31/2019 Budget % of Budget 10/31/2018 YTD

GENERAL FUND
City Council 134,206 184,347 72.80% 123,614 8.57%

City Manager 644,183 823,711 78.20% 556,576 15.74%

Human Resources 321,113 358,692 89.52% 236,174 35.96%

Economic Development 373,565 474,137 78.79% 323,924 15.32%

Legal Affairs/Prosecution 658,313 842,343 78.15% 626,294 5.11%

Finance 1,242,727 1,485,683 83.65% 1,186,862 4.71%

Income Tax Refunds 734,791 450,000 163.29% 440,999 66.62%

General Administration 5,540,557 6,090,255 90.97% 5,651,254 (1.96%)

Advance Payback (1,236,286)  

Risk Management 275,307 349,100 78.86% 283,975 (3.05%)

Police 7,157,894 9,105,357 78.61% 6,752,245 6.01%

Planning 949,915 1,268,512 74.88% 938,047 1.27%

Engineering 1,360,030 1,988,887 68.38% 1,421,930 (4.35%)

City Buildings 422,623 554,958 76.15% 392,587 7.65%

TOTAL 18,578,938 23,975,982 77.49% 18,934,481 (1.88%)

General Fund Beginning Balance January 1, 2019 5,184,249           

 2019 General Fund Revenues 20,600,431       

 2019 General Fund Expenditures (18,578,938)      

 Advances to Other Funds -                      

 Outstanding Encumbrances 10/31/19 (631,632)            

General Fund Ending Fund Balance Oct, 31, 2019 6,574,110         

3



FINANCE DIRECTOR'S REPORT
OTHER OPERATING FUNDs

October 31, 2019
 

REVENUES
Comparative

Revenues 2019 Revenues As Revenues % Change
10/31/2019 Budget % of Budget 10/31/2018 YTD

STREET MAINTENANCE & REPAIR 3,177,348 3,231,000 98.34% 2,429,214 30.80%

STORM SEWER 716,711 863,000 83.05% 712,400 0.61%

PARKS AND RECREATION 1,354,512 1,571,500 86.19% 1,077,811 25.67%

CEMETERY 222,516 256,000 86.92% 193,161 15.20%

AIRPORT OPERATIONS 768,406 924,840 83.09% 724,344 6.08%

FIRE/EMS INCOME TAX 9,804,529 11,866,361 82.62% 9,963,506 (1.60%)

MUNICIPAL COURT 2,420,608 2,744,000 88.21% 2,574,676 (5.98%)

GOLF COURSE 168,039 183,500 91.57% 158,065 6.31%

WATER 5,163,403 6,536,132 79.00% 4,946,882 4.38%

SEWER 6,202,669 7,407,971 83.73% 5,965,162 3.98%

REFUSE 3,040,702 3,672,095 82.81% 2,966,752 2.49%

GARAGE ROTARY 718,600 718,600 100.00% 490,701 46.44%

INFORMATION TECH. ROTARY 1,076,223 1,076,017 100.02% 807,013 33.36%

TOTAL 34,834,266 41,051,016 84.86% 33,009,687 5.53%

 

 EXPENDITURES
Comparative

Expenditures 2019 Expenses As Expenses % Change
10/31/2019 Budget % of Budget 10/31/2018 YTD

STREET MAINTENANCE & REPAIR 2,639,459 3,313,335 79.66% 2,474,947 6.65%

STORM SEWER 522,579 1,380,464 37.86% 387,089 35.00%

PARKS AND RECREATION 1,150,480 1,592,532 72.24% 111,387 932.87%

CEMETERY 209,623 315,113 66.52% 195,009 7.49%

AIRPORT OPERATIONS 814,465 974,226 83.60% 719,355 13.22%

FIRE/EMS INCOME TAX 9,358,636 11,182,079 83.69% 9,439,528 (0.86%)

MUNICIPAL COURT 2,192,139 2,734,190 80.18% 2,129,830 2.93%

GOLF COURSE 99,175 183,401 54.08% 154,162 (35.67%)

WATER OPERATIONS 4,432,489 6,336,213 69.95% 4,436,009 (0.08%)

SEWER OPERATIONS 4,830,367 7,075,047 68.27% 4,493,538 7.50%

REFUSE 2,939,980 3,813,216 77.10% 4,312,097 (31.82%)

GARAGE ROTARY 493,290 707,989 69.67% 502,631 (1.86%)

INFORMATION TECH. ROTARY 1,047,198 1,384,166 75.66% 818,746 27.90%

TOTAL 30,729,880 40,991,971 74.97% 30,174,328 1.84%

 

FUND BALANCES
Fund Fund

Balance Revenues Expenditures Outstanding Balance
1/1/2019 10/31/2019 10/31/2019 Encumb. 10/31/2019

STREET MAINTENANCE & REPAIR 461,581 3,177,348 2,639,459 773,838 225,632

STORM SEWER 1,868,735 716,711 522,579 126,196 1,936,671

PARKS AND RECREATION 218,433 1,354,512 1,150,480 194,900 227,565

CEMETERY 265,769 222,516 209,623 79,634 199,028

AIRPORT OPERATIONS 272,195 768,406 814,465 29,231 196,905

FIRE/EMS INCOME TAX 9,031,814 9,804,529 9,358,636 193,496 9,284,211

MUNICIPAL COURT 2,744,978 2,420,608 2,192,139 5,903 2,967,544

GOLF COURSE 39,762 168,039 99,175 2,872 105,754

WATER OPERATIONS 1,219,585 5,163,403 4,432,489 198,643 1,751,856

SEWER OPERATIONS 3,134,518 6,202,669 4,830,367 195,231 4,311,589

REFUSE 909,634 3,040,702 2,939,980 518,090 492,266

GARAGE ROTARY 385,951 718,600 493,290 38,951 572,310

INFORMATION TECH. ROTARY 864,189 1,076,223 1,047,198 49,914 843,300

TOTAL 21,417,144 34,834,266 30,729,880 2,406,899 23,114,6314



FINANCE DIRECTOR'S REPORT
OTHER FUND REVENUES/EXPENSES/FUND BALANCE

October 31, 2019
Beginning Ending

Fund Revenues Expenses Outstanding Fund
Balance 10/31/2019 10/31/2019 Encumbrances Balance

STATE HIGHWAY IMPROVEMENT 219,665 106,877 3,424 73 323,045

LICENSE FEE 238,083 377,259 77,083 551,105 (12,846)

TREE FUND 156,124 12,737 50,924 12,350 105,587

AIRPORT 2000 T-HANGAR 173,352 83,567 36,291 0 220,628

RECREATION FACILITIES TAX 4,583,228 2,093,336 1,531,932 0 5,144,632

AIRPORT TIF 109,485 27,251 0 78 136,658

GLENN RD BRIDGE TIF 2,878,284 994,365 1,659,748 79,665 2,133,236

SKY CLIMBER/V&P TIF 0 48,300 48,300 0 0

MILL RUN TIF 0 151,840 151,840 0 0

COURT IDIAM 30,321 26,638 35,260 4,656 17,043

DRUG ENFORCEMENT 57,260 11,165 18,106 0 50,319

COURT ALCOHOL TREATMENT 546,244 55,836 15,886 0 586,194

OMVI ENFORCEMENT/EDUCATION 6,468 1,499 3,471 0 4,496

POLICE JUDGEMENT 121,012 16,255 99,368 608 37,291

PARK DEVELOPMENT 184,116 0 0 0 184,116

COMPUTER LEGAL RESEARCH 714,293 224,786 174,275 51,804 713,000

COURT SPECIAL PROJECTS 752,409 227,732 259,117 4,903 716,121

PROBATION SERVICES 572,555 264,493 236,535 27,352 573,161

POLICE/FIRE DISABILITY 0 508,273 508,273 0 0

COMMUNITY PROMOTION FUND 69,220 66,423 88,985 26,206 20,452

CDBG GRANT 2,530 0 129,249 0 (126,719)

ED REVOLVING LOAN 270,186 88,085 109,687 27,524 221,060

HOUSING GRANT PROGRAM INCOME 0 8,150 0 0 8,150

CHIP GRANT 0 0 0 0 0

GENERAL BOND RETIREMENT 336,521 962,718 679,595 1,412 618,232

PARK IMPROV BONDS FUND 111,273 1,108,532 357,701 0 862,104

SE HIGHLAND SEWER BOND FUND 83,995 835,458 937,235 0 (17,782)

CAPITAL IMPROVEMENT 2,037,627 6,004,728 3,432,412 1,769,452 2,840,491

POINT PROJECT 565,337 462,645 347,074 2,222,047 (1,541,139)

FAA AIRPORT GRANT 48,413 0 0 0 48,413

FAA AIRPORT AIP GRANT 47,948 0 0 81,360 (33,412)

EQUIPMENT REPLACEMENT 158,550 500,000 347,787 254,025 56,738

PARK IMPACT FEE 1,455,146 644,972 74,397 99,585 1,926,136

POLICE IMPACT FEE 354,038 123,727 7,813 4,177 465,775

FIRE IMPACT FEE 397,705 221,907 79,954 6,204 533,454

MUNICIPAL SERVICES IMPACT FEE 361,999 258,871 159,076 227 461,567

GLENN ROAD CONSTRUCTION FUNDS 3,112,362 9,236,974 10,443,243 14,010 1,892,083

PARKING LOTS 45,944 39,276 29,489 12,188 43,543

WATER CIP 12,555,562 4,519,179 2,870,238 127,290 14,077,213

SEWER CIP 8,821,116 17,876,552 15,835,418 265,628 10,596,622

SELF INSURANCE 1,508,194 6,035,118 5,983,665 15,526 1,544,121

WORKERS COMP RESERVE 2,628,786 402,069 239,096 5,000 2,786,759

FIRE DONATION 6,345 150 5,462 0 1,033

PARK DONATION 16,410 111,724 107,883 27,276 (7,025)

POLICE DONATION 7,809 1,710 182 0 9,337

MAYOR'S DONATION 1,202 1,050 826 261 1,165

PROJECT TRUST 693,554 322,092 4,120 5,880 1,005,646

UNCLAIMED FUNDS 85,371 24,794 5,251 0 104,914

DEVELOPMENT RESERVE FUND 964,886 0 6,000 0 958,886

RESERVE ACCOUNT FUND 1,163,864 0 0 0 1,163,864

BERKSHIRE JEDD FUND 57,099 343,214 373,967 134,026 (107,680)

CEMETERY PERPETUAL CARE FUND 34,191 609 690 0 34,110

STATE PATROL TRANSFER 9,699 51,384 61,084 0 (1)

STATE BUILDING PERMIT FEES 466 13,965 13,098 0 1,333
PERFORMANCE BOND FUND 667,238 359,928 330,238 9,000 687,928

TOTAL 50,023,485 55,858,213 47,970,748 5,840,898 52,070,052

5



City of Delaware
      Employee Health Insurance Plan

 October 31, 2019
 

Oct YTD 2019 % of YTD % Change
Account 2019 2019 Budget Budget 2018 2018-19

Life Insurance 2,156$            21,291$          27,000$          78.9% 7,029$            202.9%

 

Insurance Opt-Out 2,095               21,650            30,500            71.0% 22,650            -4.4%

Preventative Care 1,462               17,966            55,000            32.7% 28,688            -37.4%

Vision Coverage 2,519               22,138            28,500            77.7% 26,738            0.0%

Administrative Fees

Excise Tax -                   2,891               5,000               0.0% 2,820               0.0%

 TPA Fees 8,329               81,845            99,500            82.3% 78,329            4.5%

 PPO Fees 3,174               31,556            40,000            78.9% 30,569            3.2%
 Broker Fees 425                  5,626               6,500               86.6% 5,043               0.0%

  Total Admin 11,928            121,918          151,000          80.7% 116,761          4.4%
 

Stop Loss Insurance 71,730            709,905          795,000          89.3% 615,239          15.4%

Claims   

 Medical 275,152          3,852,473       4,250,000       90.6% 3,281,302       17.4%

 Dental 28,154            223,109          285,000          78.3% 211,423          5.5%
 Prescription 82,751            993,214          850,000          116.8% 755,450          31.5%

  Total Claims 386,057          5,068,796       5,385,000       94.1% 4,248,175       19.3%

Total Costs 477,947          5,983,664       6,472,000       92.5% 5,065,280       18.1%

Employee Payment 78,891            840,444          893,568          94.1% 780,234          

Reimbursements 52,940            353,201          500,000          70.6% 713,146           

NET PLAN COSTS 346,116$        4,790,019$    5,078,432$    94.3% 3,571,900$    34.1%

6



MONTHLY INCOME TAX REVENUES 
2017-2019

 2017    2018    2019   

% OF % OF % OF

W/H PERSONAL BUSINESS TOTAL ACTUAL W/H PERSONAL BUSINESS TOTAL ACTUAL W/H PERSONAL BUSINESS TOTAL BUDGET
               

JANUARY 1,794,272 205,680 204,662 2,204,614 1,741,914 440,952 56,565 2,239,431 1,570,681 603,605 80,207 2,254,493

FEBRUARY 1,304,987 327,145 95,437 1,727,569 1,389,048 337,974 56,041 1,783,063 1,616,403 398,566 112,062 2,127,031

MARCH 1,175,241 625,299 195,522 1,996,062 1,240,476 682,589 192,027 2,115,092 1,308,699 737,799 133,499 2,179,997

APRIL 1,786,686 2,352,889 1,092,340 5,231,915 1,949,558 2,433,093 806,548 5,189,199 1,941,656 2,595,734 781,735 5,319,125

MAY 1,388,195 185,269 50,869 1,624,333 1,387,867 213,714 18,117 1,619,698 1,440,447 242,575 54,049 1,737,071

JUNE 1,284,197 481,309 167,392 1,932,898 1,407,521 622,838 374,208 2,404,567 1,696,517 732,504 153,590 2,582,611

JULY 1,680,268 158,901 62,961 1,902,130 1,718,647 227,721 28,964 1,975,332 1,630,973 329,142 27,910 1,988,025

AUGUST 1,395,822 124,025 26,462 1,546,309 1,363,624 171,517 142,149 1,677,290 1,393,601 220,627 97,863 1,712,091

SEPTEMBER 1,303,188 421,650 287,996 2,012,834 1,648,825 624,312 164,383 2,437,520 1,742,714 764,332 253,449 2,760,495

OCTOBER 1,697,249 257,687 81,440 2,036,376 1,675,716 307,591 462,819 2,446,126 1,688,264 281,632 96,126 2,066,022

SUBTOTAL 14,810,105 5,139,854 2,265,081 22,215,040 85.78% 15,523,196 6,062,301 2,301,821 23,887,318 85.83% 16,029,955 6,906,516 1,790,490 24,726,961 85.45%

NOVEMBER 1,438,751 175,718 30,847 1,645,316 1,442,983 252,947 59,435 1,755,365

DECEMBER 1,419,960 388,069 229,805 2,037,834 1,688,530 412,229 85,907 2,186,666  

   

  TOTALS 17,668,816 5,703,641 2,525,732 25,898,189 97.31% 18,654,709 6,727,477 2,447,163 27,829,349 101.43% 16,029,955 6,906,516 1,790,490 24,726,961 85.45%

   

  BUDGETED 26,614,811 27,437,537 28,936,941

Total OCT  % of Annual Projection based on ten year trend!  

Receipts Receipts  Collections OCT 2019 RECEIPTS = $24,726,961 

2009 14,719,896 12,706,855 86.32%

2010 15,185,348 13,050,971 85.94%   HIGH = 84.83% $29,147,628 

2011 17,765,717 15,333,480 86.31%   LOW = 86.49% $28,589,139 

2012 19,658,101 16,905,325 86.00%

2013 20,557,766 17,780,566 86.49%   LAST 3 YR 

2014 21,537,420 18,453,533 85.68%   AVG   = 85.92% $28,778,540 

2015 22,852,743 19,386,788 84.83%

2016 24,975,316 21,516,546 86.15% *2019 BUDGETED RECEIPTS $28,936,941 

2017 25,898,189 22,215,040 85.78%

2018 27,829,349 23,887,318 85.83%

10 Year Avg. 85.93%

7



City Manager Report 20191125 
 

 
 
 
 
TO:  Mayor Riggle and Members of Council 
 
FROM: R. Thomas Homan, City Manager 
 
SUBJECT: Miscellaneous Matters 
 
DATE: November 21, 2019 
 
 
1. Calendar 
 See Attached 
 
2. Per Section 73 Of The City Charter The City Manager Is To Report 

Contract Agreements 
 See Attached 
 
3. Manager Meetings/Events 
 November 6 
  First Commonwealth Bank – Networking and Hors D’oeuvres 
 November 11 
  Council Meeting 
 November 12 
  Economic Outlook Conference for 2020 
 November 18 
  Organizational Meeting 
 November 19 
  SID Discussion with Main Street 
  
  
  



November 
 

 

2019 
  

Sunday Monday Tuesday Wednesday Thursday Friday Saturday 
     1 2 

       

3 4 5 6 7 8 9 
  Public Works/Public 

Utilities Canceled 
Civil Service 
Commission 3pm 
Planning 6:30pm 

   

10 11 12 13 14 15 16 
 Council 7pm  BZA 6:30 pm    

17 18 19 20 21 22 23 
 Organizational Council 

Meeting 7pm 
Parks and Rec Advisory 
Board 6:30 pm 

HPC 6:30 pm 
Canceled 

   

24 25 26 27 28 29 30 
 Council 7pm   Thanksgiving – 

City Offices Closed 
City Offices Closed  

       
       

 



December 
 

 

2019 
  

Sunday Monday Tuesday Wednesday Thursday Friday Saturday 
1 2 3 4 5 6 7 

 Budget Work Session 
6:30 pm 

 Civil Service 3 pm-
cancelled 
Planning 6:30 pm 

Budget Work Session 
6:30 pm 

First Friday – 6 – 9 pm 
 Christmas Tree Lighting 
6:30 pm 

 

8 9 10 11 12 13 14 
Christmas Parade 3pm Council 7 pm  BZA 6 :30 pm Budget Work Session 

6:30 pm if needed 
  

15 16 17 18 19 20 21 
 Parking and Safety 6pm  HPC 6:30 pm Year End Council 

Meeting 7 pm 
  

22 23 24 25 26 27 28 
  City Offices Closed at 

noon 
City Offices Closed    

29 30 31     
       

       
       

 



CONTRACT APPROVAL – November 25, 2019 
 

VENDOR 
 

EXPLANATION OF AGREEMENT 
2019 

AMOUNT 
 

DEPARTMENT 
Carrolls Corporation Off-Site Development Agreement 

between the City of Delaware and 
Carrolls Corp for necessary SR 37 road 
work  

$50,000 
contribution 
for road 
improvement 
from Jackson 
Development 
and Buehlers 
TIF 

Public Works 

City Sourced Acquisition and implementation of City 
Sourced Software 

$5,166.67 IT 

SPS VAR, LLC IBM Service Contract for police dept $3,245 IT 
J Kuhn Enterprises Cheshire Road Multi-Use Path Project $43,503 Parks 
Planning Next Contract amendment for additional 

services relative to Comp Plan 
$9,950 Planning 

 



1 
 

CITY OF DELAWARE 
CITY COUNCIL 

CITY COUNCIL CHAMBERS 
1 SOUTH SANDUSKY STREET 

7:00 P.M.  
 

AGENDA 
 
6:30 P.M. EXECUTIVE SESSION: pursuant to Ohio Revised Code Section 
121.22 (G) (3) pending or imminent court action, Section 121.22 (G) (1) 
personnel, Section 121.22 (G) (5) matters required to be kept confidential by 
State statute, Section 121.22 (G) (2) acquisition of property for public purpose 
and 121.22(G) (8) consideration of confidential information related to a request 
for economic development assistance.  
 
7:00 P.M. REGULAR MEETING November 25, 2019 
 
1. ROLL CALL 

 
2. INVOCATION – Reverend Mike Cheek 

 
3. PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE led by the American Heritage Girls 

 
4. APPROVAL of the Motion Summary of the regular meeting of Council 

held on November 11, 2019, as recorded and transcribed. 
APPROVAL of the Motion Summary of the organizational meeting of 
Council held on November 18, 2019, as recorded and transcribed.  
 

5. CONSENT AGENDA 
A. Acceptance of the Motion Summary of the Board of Zoning Appeals 

meeting held on September 11, 2019, as recorded and transcribed.  
B. Acceptance of the Motion Summary of the Parks and Recreation 

Advisory Board meeting held on September 17, 2019, as recorded 
and transcribed. 

C. Resolution No. 19-50, a resolution appointing the initial city 
appointed member of the Board of Directors of the Berkshire 
Township Joint Economic Development District No. 2.  
 

6. LETTERS, PETITIONS, AND PUBLIC COMMENTS 
 

7. COMMITTEE REPORTS 
 
 

8. DIRECTOR’S UPDATE 



2 
 

A. Dave Efland – Planning and Community Development Director 
 

9. CONSIDERATION OF A LIQUOR PERMIT TRANFER 
A. To Penn Strikes LLC DBA Colony Lanes, 451 Pennsylvania Avenue, 

Delaware, Ohio 43015 from Dwight and Patricia Green DBA Colony 
Lanes, 451 Pennsylvania Avenue, Delaware, Ohio 43015.  Permit 
Class:  D1 

B. To Olivina Taproom, LLC DBA Olivina Taproom, 44 South 
Sandusky Street, Delaware, Ohio 43015, from Mystic Golf and 
Games LLC, 1159 Columbus Pike, Delaware, Ohio, 43015. Permit 
Class D2 

 
10. CONSIDERATION OF A NEW LIQUOR PERMIT 

A. Olivina Taproom, LLC DBA Olivina Taproom, 44 South Sandusky 
Street, Delaware, Ohio 43015.  Permit Class D3 

 
11. 7:30 P.M. PUBLIC HEARING AND FIRST READING of Ordinance No. 19- 

69, an ordinance making appropriations for the Year 2020 and declaring 
an emergency.  

 
12. SECOND READING of Ordinance No. 19-63, an ordinance accepting the 

annexation of 43.847± acres of land more or less, description and map 
are attached hereto as exhibits “A” and “B” for the annexation known as 
the Evans Farm Delaware, LLC Annexation by Andrew Wecker, Agent for 
the Petitioners.  
 

13. SECOND READING of Ordinance No. 19-65, an ordinance approving a 
Preliminary Development Plan request by T & R Properties for the 
Enclave at the Ravines at Olentangy containing 87 single family attached 
units on approximately 14.906 acres on property zoned R-6 PMU (Multi-
Family Residential District with a Planned Mixed-Use Overlay District) 
located on the north side of Curve Road and west of Rochdale Run.  
 

14. SECOND READING of Ordinance No. 19-66, an ordinance approving a 
Preliminary Subdivision Plat request by T & R Properties for the Enclave 
at the Ravines at Olentangy containing 87 single family attached units 
on approximately 14.906 acres on property zoned R-6 PMU (Multi-Family 
Residential District with a Planned Mixed-use Overlay District) located on 
the north side of Curve Road and West of Rochdale Run.  
 

15. 8:00 PUBLIC HEARING AND SECOND READING of Ordinance No. 19-67, 
an ordinance approving a Development Text Amendment for Delaware 
Development Plan LTD., for Coughlin’s Crossing to Sub-Areas 2, 5, and 6 
on approximately 80 acres located east of US 23, west of Stratford Road, 



3 
 

north of Meeker Way and south of Elliot Estates Subdivision and zoned 
A-1 PMU (Agricultural District with a Planned Mixed-Use Overlay 
District).  
 

16. SECOND READING of Ordinance No. 19-68, an ordinance approving an 
Amended Preliminary Development Plan for Delaware Development Plat, 
LTD., for Coughlin’s Crossing Sub-Areas 2, 5, and 6 on approximately 8- 
acres located east of US 23, west of Stratford Road, north of Meeker Way 
and south of Elliot Estates Subdivision and Zoned A-1 PMU (Agricultural 
District with a Planned Mixed-Use Overlay District).  
 

17. CONSIDERATION of Resolution No. 19-51, a resolution of no objection to 
the expansion of the Concord/Scioto Community Authority, a New 
Community Authority under Chapter 349 of the Ohio Revised Code.  
 

18. CONSIDERATION of Ordinance No. 19-70, an ordinance amending the 
Delaware Municipal Court and Clerk of Court Employee Benefits and 
Leave Policies, and declaring an emergency.  
A. 2020 Budget Presentation by Judge David Sunderman and Cindy 

Dinovo, Clerk of Courts 
 
19. CONSIDERATION of Ordinance No. 19-71, an ordinance amending 

Ordinance No. 18-111, establishing the pay and benefits for various part-
time and intermittent/seasonal employees of the City of Delaware and 
declaring and emergency.  
 

20. CONSIDERATION of Ordinance No. 19-72, an ordinance amending the 
Management, Professional, Technical, Confidential, and Supervisory 
Employees Pay Plan and declaring an emergency.  
 

21. FINANCE DIRECTOR’S REPORT 
 

22. CITY MANAGER’S REPORT 
 

23. COUNCIL COMMENTS 
 

24. ADJOURNMENT 































FACT SHEET

AGENDA ITEM NO:  CONSENT ITEM C DATE: 11/25/2019 

ORDINANCE NO:  RESOLUTION NO: 19-50 

READING: FIRST  PUBLIC HEARING: NO 

TO: Mayor and Members of City Council 

FROM: R. Thomas Homan, City Manager 

VIA: Darren Shulman, City Attorney 

TITLE OF PROPOSED ORDINANCE/RESOLUTION:  
A RESOLUTION APPOINTING THE INITIAL CITY APPOINTED MEMBER OF 
THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS OF THE BERKSHIRE TOWNSHIP JOINT 
ECONOMIC DEVELOPMENT DISTRICT NO. 2. 

BACKGROUND: 
In 2015, the City and Berkshire Township entered into a Joint Economic 
Development District agreement.  That agreement included a provision for the 
parties to work together on future agreements. Based on expected 
development, the parties approved a second JEDD. Under the JEDD agreement 
between the City and Berkshire Township, the first step in creating the JEDD 
is to appoint a Board.  Per the agreement, this should be done within 60 days 
after the effective date. The City and Township each get an appointment, and 
then three additional members are selected.  This is similar to the existing 
arrangement with Berkshire Township on the first JEDD.  This appointment if 
for the City Manager, as he already on the first JEDD.  Future legislation will 
be brought before Council to appoint a second City appointee. 

REASON WHY LEGISLATION IS NEEDED: 

COMMITTEE RECOMMENDATION: 
N/A 

FISCAL IMPACT(S): 



 
POLICY CHANGES: 
N/A 
 
PRESENTER(S): 
R. Thomas Homan, City Manager 
Darren Shulman, City Attorney 
 
RECOMMENDATION: 
Approval  
 
ATTACHMENT(S) 
Berkshire Township Draft Resolution 



RESOLUTION NO. 19-50 
 

A RESOLUTION APPOINTING THE INITIAL CITY 
APPOINTED MEMBER OF THE BOARD OF 
DIRECTORS OF THE BERKSHIRE TOWNSHIP JOINT 
ECONOMIC DEVELOPMENT DISTRICT NO. 2. 

 
WHEREAS, Berkshire Township (Delaware County), Ohio (the 

“Township”) and the City of Delaware, Ohio (the “City”) have approved, 
executed and delivered a Joint Economic Development District Contract (the 
“JEDD Contract”) creating the Berkshire Township Joint Economic 
Development District No. 2 (the “JEDD”); and 
 

WHEREAS, the JEDD Contract provides that the City is to appoint one 
member to the Board of Directors of the JEDD (the “Board”) to represent the 
City; 

 
NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED by the Council of the City of 

Delaware, State of Ohio, that: 
  
SECTION 1.   R. Thomas Homan is hereby appointed to the Board to 

represent the City for a term commencing the first day of the month in which 
the Board holds its first meeting and terminating one year thereafter. 

 
SECTION 2.   All formal actions of this Council and any of its committees 

concerning and relating to the adoption of this Resolution, and all deliberations 
of Council and of any of its committees that resulted in those formal actions, 
occurred in meetings open to the public in compliance with the law. 

 
SECTION 3.   This Resolution shall be in full force and effect immediately 

upon its adoption. 
 
 

PASSED: _________________________, 2019 YEAS____ NAYS____ 
      ABSTAIN ____ 
 
 
ATTEST: _______________________________     ________________________ 

CITY CLERK    MAYOR 
 
 



RESOLUTION NO. ________ 
 

A RESOLUTION APPOINTING MEMBERS OF THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS OF THE 
BERKSHIRE TOWNSHIP JOINT ECONOMIC DEVELOPMENT DISTRICT No. 2 

 
PREAMBLE 

 
WHEREAS, Berkshire Township (Delaware County), Ohio (the “Township”) and the City of 

Delaware, Ohio (the “City”) have approved, executed and delivered a Joint Economic Development District 
Contract (the “JEDD Contract”) creating the Berkshire Township Joint Economic Development District 
No. 2 (the “JEDD”); and 
 

WHEREAS, the JEDD Contract provides that this Board of Trustees is to appoint one member to 
the Board of Directors of the JEDD (the “Board”) to represent the Township, and one member to represent 
the persons working within the JEDD; 

 
RESOLUTION 

 
NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED by the Board of Township Trustees of Berkshire 

Township (Delaware County), Ohio, that: 
  
Section 1.       is hereby appointed to the Board to 

represent the Township for a term commencing the first day of the month in which the Board holds its first 
meeting and terminating two years thereafter. 

 
Section 2.       is hereby appointed to the Board to 

represent the persons working within the JEDD for a term commencing the first day of the month in which 
the Board holds its first meeting and terminating four years thereafter. 

 
Section 3.  All formal actions of this Board and any of its committees concerning and relating 

to the adoption of this Resolution, and all deliberations of this Board and of any of its committees that 
resulted in those formal actions, occurred in meetings open to the public in compliance with the law. 

 
Section 4. This Resolution shall be in full force and effect immediately upon its adoption. 

 
Adopted:     , 2019   BOARD OF TRUSTEES 
       BERKSHIRE TOWNSHIP 
       DELAWARE COUNTY, OHIO 
 
ATTEST:             
       Bill Holtry, Chairman 
 
              
Melody George, Township Fiscal Officer  Mike Datillo, Trustee 
 
              
       Rod Myers, Trustee 
 
\\bjgserver\Shares\Public\L&Bdocs\Local Gov't\Berkshire\JEDD 2\Resolution Appointing Board Members.docx 
 





















  FACT SHEET 
 
 
AGENDA ITEM NO:  11    DATE: 11/25/2019 
 
ORDINANCE NO: 19-69    RESOLUTION NO: 
 
READING: FIRST     PUBLIC HEARING: YES 
       November 25, 2019 at 7:30 p.m. 
       December 9, 2019 at 7:30 p.m. 
 
TO:  Mayor and Members of City Council  
 
FROM: R. Thomas Homan, City Manager 
 
VIA:  -- 
 
 
TITLE OF PROPOSED ORDINANCE/RESOLUTION:  
AN ORDINANCE MAKING APPROPRIATIONS FOR THE YEAR 2020 AND 
DECLARING AN EMERGENCY. 
 
BACKGROUND: 
This is the first reading and first public hearing of the budget.  The budget is 
required to be adopted by Council pursuant to Section 78 of the City Charter. 
 
The second reading and second public hearing is scheduled for December 9 
and work sessions are scheduled for December 2, December 5 and tentatively 
December 12. 
 
REASON WHY LEGISLATION IS NEEDED: 
 
COMMITTEE RECOMMENDATION: 
N/A 
 
FISCAL IMPACT(S): 
 
POLICY CHANGES: 
N/A 
 
PRESENTER(S): 



R. Thomas Homan, City Manager 
Dean Stelzer, Finance Director 
 
RECOMMENDATION: 
Approval at third reading 
   
ATTACHMENT(S) 



ORDINANCE NO. 19-69

AN ORDINANCE MAKING APPROPRIATIONS FOR THE
YEAR 2020 AND DECLARING AN EMERGENCY

BE IT ORDAINED by the Council of the City of Delaware, State of Ohio:

SECTION 1.  That from and out of the balances in the various funds of the City
of Delaware, and from money anticipated to be received into said funds, there are hereby 
appropriated the following sums for use by the various departments of the City in 
performance of their functions and activities during the year ending December 31, 2020.

GENERAL FUND
CITY COUNCIL

Personnel 168,020       
Other 18,500         

CITY MANAGER
Personnel 798,179       
Other 129,046       

ADMINISTRATIVE SERVICES
Personnel 253,903       
Other 170,350       

ECONOMIC DEVELOPMENT
Personnel 242,019       
Other 261,636       

LEGAL AFFAIRS/PROSECUTOR
Personnel 788,938       
Other 91,698         

FINANCE
Personnel 1,299,861    
Other 1,041,276    

GENERAL ADMINISTRATION
Other 6,410,873    

RISK MANAGEMENT
Other 349,100       

POLICE
Personnel 8,553,056    
Other 1,124,486    

PLANNING
Personnel 1,314,596    
Other 199,837       

ENGINEERING
Personnel 1,065,974    
Other 968,575       

MUNICIPAL BUILDINGS
Personnel 171,317       
Other 400,450       

TOTAL GENERAL FUND 25,821,690    

STREET MAINTENANCE & REPAIR
Administration

Personnel 692,607       
Other 290,300       

Street Maintenance
Personnel 822,252       
Other 1,665,773    

Traffic Division
Personnel 430,363       
Other 461,184       

TOTAL STREET MAINTENANCE 4,362,479      



STATE HIGHWAY IMPROVEMENT 180,000         

LICENSE FEE FUND 480,000         
  

STORM SEWER FUND  
Operations

Personnel 257,186       
Other 311,330       

Projects
Other 1,095,000    

TOTAL STORM SEWER 1,663,516      

PARKS & RECREATION FUND
Park Maintenance

Personnel 993,167       
Other 325,775       

Recreation
Other 208,866       

Urban Forestry
Personnel 95,728         
Other 72,050         

TOTAL PARKS & RECREATION 1,695,586      

CEMETERY FUND
Personnel 226,214       
Other 119,265       

TOTAL CEMETERY FUND 345,479         

TREE FUND 65,000           

AIRPORT OPERATIONS FUND
Personnel 211,654       
Other 735,456       

TOTAL AIRPORT OPERATIONS FUND 947,110         

AIRPORT 2000 T-HANGAR FUND 94,929           

FIRE/EMS OPERATINS FUND
Personnel 9,501,589    
Other 3,544,724    

TOTAL FIRE/EMS OPERATIONS FUND 13,046,313    

MUNICIPAL COURT
 Judicial  

Personnel 1,461,444    
Other 73,000         

Mission Court
Personnel 89,426         

 Clerk of Courts
Personnel 1,203,026    
Other 85,900         

TOTAL MUNICIPAL COURT 2,912,796      

RECREATION CENTER INCOME TAX 1,773,191      

SKY CLIMBER/V&P HYDRAULICS TIF FUND 70,000           

MILL RUN TIF FUND 170,000         

IDIAM FUND 50,000           

DRUG ENFORCEMENT FUND 49,822           

INDIGENT ALCOHOL TREATMENT FUND 100,000         



OMVI ENFORCEMENT & EDUCATION FUND 4,445             

POLICE JUDGMENT FUND 21,636           

POLICE FEDERAL JUDGMENT FUND 17,044           

PARKS EXACTION FEE FUND 138,000         

COMPUTER LEGAL RESEARCH FUND 298,240         

COURT SPECIAL PROJECTS FUND 378,298         

COURT PROBATION SERVICES FUND 241,350         

POLICE DISABILITY PENSION FUND 266,850         

FIRE DISABILITY PENSION FUND 266,850         

COMMUNITY PROMOTION FUND 114,000         

COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT BLOCK GRANT FUND 11,000           

REVOLVING LOAN FUND 200,000         

GENERAL BOND RETIREMENT FUND 2,015,332      

PARK IMPROVEMENT BOND FUND 1,331,202      

CAPITAL IMPROVEMENTS FUND 5,478,779      

POINT PROJECT CAPITAL FUND 2,625,000      

FAA AIRPORT AIP GRANT FUND 303,640         
 

EQUIPMENT REPLACEMENT FUND 868,328         

PARK IMPACT FEE FUND 583,000         

POLICE IMPACT FEE FUND 58,891           

FIRE IMPACT FEE FUND 100,000         

MUNICIPAL IMPACT FEE IMPROVEMENT FUND 348,160         

GLENN ROAD SOUTH CONSTRUCTION FUND 701,050         

GLENN ROAD NORTH CONSTRUCTION FUND 148,295         

GLENN ROAD TIF FUND 4,727,932      

GOLF COURSE FUND
Personnel 57,757         
Other 120,900       

TOTAL GOLF COURSE FUND 178,657         

PARKING LOT FUND 45,800           

WATER FUND
Administration

Personnel 325,759       
Other 2,964,438    

Treatment
Personnel 930,138       
Other 1,290,700    

Distribution
Personnel 617,833       
Other 407,935       

TOTAL WATER FUND 6,536,803      



WATER CONSTRUCTION FUND 2,760,728      

WATER CAPACITY FEE FUND 1,806,981      

WATER CUSTOMER DEPOSIT FUND 32,000           

SEWER FUND
Administration

Personnel 323,556       
Other 4,229,470    

Treatment
Personnel 975,531       
Other 1,200,200    

Maintenance
Personnel 291,090       
Other 373,960       

TOTAL SEWER FUND 7,393,807      

SEWER CONSTRUCTION FUND 1,583,415      

SEWER CAPACITY FEE FUND 1,015,000      

SE HIGHLAND SEWER FUND 838,320         

REFUSE FUND
Administration

Other 445,530       
Refuse Collection

Personnel 784,850       
Other 1,910,353    

Recycling Collection
Personnel 474,996       
Other 612,700       

TOTAL REFUSE FUND 4,228,429      

GARAGE ROTARY FUND
Personnel 390,770       
Other 454,200       

TOTAL GARAGE ROTARY FUND 844,970         

INFORMATION TECHNOLOGY ROTARY FUND
Staff Support

Personnel 541,911       
Other 31,605         

System Support
Other 943,247       

GIS Operations
Personnel 162,289       
Other 61,281         

TOTAL IT ROTARY FUND 1,740,333      

SELF INSURANCE FUND 7,399,000      

WORKERS COMPENSATION RESERVE FUND 560,000         

FIRE DONATION FUND 1,000             

PARKS DONATION FUND 6,315             

POLICE DONATION FUND 9,336             

MAYOR'S DONATION FUND 2,000             

PROJECT TRUST FUND 245,000         

UNCLAIMED FUNDS TRUST FUND 8,000             

UNCLAIMED FUNDS COURT FUND 7,500             



DEVELOPMENT RESERVE FUND 10,000           

JEDD INCOME TAX FUND 555,000         

CEMETERY PERPETUAL CARE FUND 2,000             

STATE HIGHWAY PATROL FUND 75,000           

STATE BUILDING PERMIT FEE FUND 18,000           

PERFORMANCE BOND FUND 900,000         

   TOTAL APPROPRIATIONS - ALL FUNDS 113,878,627  

SECTION 2.  That the Finance Director is hereby authorized to make payment from any
of the foregoing appropriations to the extent of the amounts contained in the respective
appropriations whenever claims, duly approved by the officer authorized by law to approve such
claims, are presented.

SECTION 3.  That the Finance Director is hereby authorized and empowered to make
necessary changes which are not in conflict with this ordinance within a given appropriation to
carry out the functions of the City.  No changes to the total amount of a departmental or fund
appropriation may be made without the legislative action of the City Council.

SECTION 4.  That any sums which shall be expended from the above appropriation and
which are a proper charge against any other department, or against any person, firm or corporation,
shall, if repaid within the period covered by such appropriation, be credited to the fund from which
such payment was made.

SECTION 5.  In accordance with Ohio Revised Code Sections 5705.14, 5705.15, 
and 5705.16 the Finance Director is hereby authorized to make the interfund transfers
identified in the 2020 Budget Detail presented to, and approved by, City Council as part of 
the 2020 Budget adoption process.

SECTION 6.  That the Clerk of Council is directed to certify a copy of this ordinance to
the Budget Commission of Delaware County.

SECTION 7. Emergency Clause.  That this ordinance is hereby declared to be an
emergency measure necessary to provide for the public peace, safety, health and welfare of the
City, and further to provide lawful appropriations available for expenditure by January 1, 2020, and
as such will be in full force and effect immediately upon its passage.

VOTE ON EMERGENCY CLAUSE: Yeas ____ Nays ____

PASSED: ________________, 2019 Yeas ____ Nays ____

ATTEST:
Clerk Mayor



  FACT SHEET 
 
 
AGENDA ITEM NO:  12    DATE: 11/25/2019 
 
ORDINANCE NO: 19-63    RESOLUTION NO: 
 
READING: SECOND    PUBLIC HEARING: NO 
 
 
TO:  Mayor and Members of City Council  
 
FROM: R. Thomas Homan, City Manager 
 
VIA:  Dave Efland, Planning and Community Development Director 
 
 
TITLE OF PROPOSED ORDINANCE/RESOLUTION:  
AN ORDINANCE ACCEPTING THE ANNEXATION OF 43.847± ACRES OF LAND 
MORE OR LESS, DESCRIPTION AND MAP ARE ATTACHED HERETO AS 
EXHIBITS “A” AND “B” FOR THE ANNEXATION KNOWN AS THE EVANS FARM 
DELAWARE, LLC ANNEXATION BY ANDREW WECKER, AGENT FOR THE 
PETITIONERS. 
 
BACKGROUND: 
11/18 Update: In consultation with the applicant’s attorney, staff has 
determined that the date the annexation must be voted on is March 9, 2020, 
which is a significant extension from the previously calculated date.  The City 
continues to work with the applicant on a resolution to the overlapping of New 
Community Authorities.  
 
This process involves several steps and actions by the County and City in order 
for an annexation to ultimately be accepted by the City.  The City took the first 
city step in the process which required determination of services the City could 
provide – the Resolution of Services passed August 12, 2019 via Resolution 19-
37.  The legislation before City Council currently is the final acceptance of 
annexation which would bring the property into the City.  City Council must 
decide to accept, accept with conditions, or deny the annexation.  If no action 
is taken by the ORC dictated time frame ending on March 9, 2020, ORC 
dictates that the annexation will be automatically denied.   The Applicant has 
brought a concept plan forward to Planning Commission for initial feedback 



which was generally well received by the Commission.  The Applicant has 
previously stated they wished to begin their zoning, preliminary plan, and 
preliminary plat process prior to annexation acceptance though Staff has not 
received applicants as of the date of writing.  At this time the earliest hearing 
date for these if applied for today would be the January 6, 2020 Planning 
Commission meeting.   
Perhaps the most important issue remaining to be agreed upon with the 
annexation is related to the inclusion of the property into the Delaware South 
New Community Authority as other properties are within this southeast area of 
the community.  Evans Farm is already included within its own NCA which is a 
complicating factor in this discussion.  City administration has offered the 
Applicant several alternatives that would address the issue but no conclusion 
has been reached as of the time of writing.  The options presented include:  (1) 
Pay the present value of the expected Delaware South NCA revenue that would 
have been collected if they joined the Delaware South NCA; (2) Direct the 
existing Evans Farm NCA to pay the City what the Delaware South NCA charge 
would collect until the Delaware South NCA debt is paid.  
 
Multiple readings of this annexation are anticipated as a result.  Because the 
final ORC required deadline is March 9, 2020, Council’s 3/19/20 is the final 
meeting date at which a decision would need to be made to avoid an automatic 
ORC denial of the annexation. 
 
Finally, as was noted in the Fact Sheet for the Resolution of Services for this 
annexation, Staff suggests several conditions of annexation that will provide 
certainty and clarity to the City as well as the Applicant: 
 

1. The applicant shall include the property in the Delaware South New 
Community Authority or make an equivalent financial contribution as 
determined by the City. 

2. A $1,000 per dwelling unit additional transportation fee shall be required 
similar to other properties in the area to ensure needed transportation 
improvements in the area. 

3. The property is within the South East Highland trunk sewer district 
requiring an additional sewer capacity charge of $3,200 per dwelling unit 
in addition to the standard and customary capacity fees of the city in 
effect at the time of permitting. 

4. The extension of any needed infrastructure for water, sewer, or roadways 
shall be at the cost to the development and as required by the City 
through the normal and customary development review process. 

5. Transportation considerations to be determined in final form through the 
zoning and development review process: 

a. Road connectivity shall be required to adjacent property. 
b. Any roadway connections to Peachblow Rd. shall be coordinated 

with the Delaware County Engineer as well as the city. 



 
REASON WHY LEGISLATION IS NEEDED: 
The Ohio Revised Code provides the process that annexations must follow 
throughout Ohio.  This legislation is the final City step in the process to 
formally accept the annexation of the property.  The City has until March 9, 
2020 to pass this acceptance of annexation Ordinance or it is considered by 
ORC to be denied.   
 
COMMITTEE RECOMMENDATION: 
 
FISCAL IMPACT(S): 
 
POLICY CHANGES: 
 
PRESENTER(S): 
Dave Efland, Planning and Community Development Director 
 
RECOMMENDATION: 
 
ATTACHMENT(S) 
County Resolution  
Petition 
Map 
City Resolution  



ORDINANCE NO. 19-63 
 

AN ORDINANCE ACCEPTING THE ANNEXATION OF 
43.847± ACRES OF LAND MORE OR LESS, 
DESCRIPTION AND MAP ARE ATTACHED HERETO AS 
EXHIBITS “A” AND “B” FOR THE ANNEXATION KNOWN 
AS THE EVANS FARM DELAWARE, LLC ANNEXATION 
BY ANDREW WECKER, AGENT FOR THE PETITIONERS. 

 
WHEREAS, Andrew Wecker, agent for the petitioners, has filed with the 

Delaware County Commissioners for annexation of 43.847 acres of land, more or 
less, the description and map are attached hereto as Exhibits A and B; and 
 

WHEREAS, Andrew Wecker, as agent for the petitioners on August 5, 2019 
delivered to the Clerk of the Delaware City Council the notice of his filing of the 
annexation petition with the Board of County Commissioners of Delaware County 
and its clerk on August 5, 2019; and 
 

WHEREAS, the Ohio Revised Code requires that within 20 days following 
the date the petition is filed, the City Council shall, by resolution, adopt a 
statement as to what services, if any, the City will provide and an approximate 
date by which it will provide them to the territory proposed for annexation, upon 
annexation, which was completed when City Council passed a Resolution of 
Services on August 12, 2019 via Resolution 19-37; and 

 
WHEREAS, the proposed annexation applied for in the petition to the 

Delaware County Commissioners has been approved, by them for annexation to 
the City of Delaware on September 5, 2019 (See attached).  The territory to be 
annexed is described in the attached Exhibits “A” and “B”; and 
 

WHEREAS, the certified transcript of the proceedings for annexation, with 
an accurate map of the territory, together with the petition of annexation and 
other papers relating to the proceedings of the County Commissioners, are on file 
with the Clerk of Council, and have been for more than sixty days. 

 
NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT ORDAINED by the Council of the City of 

Delaware, State of Ohio: 
 
 SECTION 1.  That Council hereby accepts the annexation of 43.847 acres of 
land, description and plat of which are hereby attached as Exhibits “A” and “B” on 
the annexation known as the Evans Farm Delaware, LLC by Andrew Wecker, 
agent for the petitioners with the following conditions that: 
 



1. The applicant shall include the property in the Delaware South New 
Community Authority or make an equivalent financial contribution as 
determined by the City. 

2. A $1,000 per dwelling unit additional transportation fee shall be required 
similar to other properties in the area to ensure needed transportation 
improvements in the area. 

3. The property is within the South East Highland trunk sewer district 
requiring an additional sewer capacity charge of $3,200 per dwelling unit in 
addition to the standard and customary capacity fees of the city in effect at 
the time of permitting. 

4. The extension of any needed infrastructure for water, sewer, or roadways 
shall be at the cost to the development and as required by the City through 
the normal and customary development review process. 

5. Transportation considerations to be determined in final form through the 
zoning and development review process: 

a. Road connectivity shall be required to adjacent property. 
b. Any roadway connections to Peachblow Rd. shall be coordinated with 

the Delaware County Engineer as well as the city. 

 
SECTION 2.  That the Clerk of Council is directed to make five copies of this 

ordinance, to each of which shall be attached a copy of the map accompanying the 
petition for annexation, a copy of the transcript of proceedings of the Board of 
County Commissioners relating thereto, and a certificate as to the correctness 
thereof. The Clerk shall then forthwith deliver one copy to the Secretary of State, 
and shall file notice of annexation with the Board of Elections, the County Auditor, 
the County Recorder, and the County Engineer within thirty days after it becomes 
effective, and the Clerk shall do all other things required by law. 

 
SECTION 3.  This Council finds and determines that all formal actions of 

this Council and any of its committees concerning and relating to the passage of 
this Ordinance were taken in an open meeting of this Council, and that all 
deliberations of this Council and any of its committees that resulted in those 
formal actions were in meetings open to the public, all in compliance with the law 
including Section 121.22 of the Revised Code. 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



VOTE FOR RULE SUSPENSION:    YEAS____ NAYS____ 
      ABSTAIN ____ 
 
PASSED: _________________________, 2019 YEAS____ NAYS____ 
      ABSTAIN ____ 
 
 
ATTEST: _______________________________       ________________________ 

CITY CLERK    MAYOR 

































  FACT SHEET 
 
 
AGENDA ITEM NO:  13    DATE: 11/25/2019 
 
ORDINANCE NO: 19-65    RESOLUTION NO: 
 
READING: SECOND    PUBLIC HEARING:  NO 
 
 
TO:  Mayor and Members of City Council  
 
FROM: R. Thomas Homan, City Manager 
 
VIA:  David Efland, Planning and Community Development Director 
 
 
TITLE OF PROPOSED ORDINANCE/RESOLUTION:  
AN ORDINANCE APPROVING A PRELIMINARY DEVELOPMENT PLAN REQUEST 
BY T&R PROPERTIES FOR THE ENCLAVE AT THE RAVINES AT OLENTANGY 
CONTAINING 87 SINGLE FAMILY ATTACHED UNITS ON APPROXIMATELY 
14.906 ACRES ON PROPERTY ZONED R-6 PMU (MULTI-FAMILY RESIDENTIAL 
DISTRICT WITH A PLANNED MIXED-USE OVERLAY DISTRICT) LOCATED ON 
THE NORTH SIDE OF CURVE ROAD AND WEST OF ROCHDALE RUN. 
 
BACKGROUND: 
See attached report and updated fact sheet recommendation.   
 
REASON WHY LEGISLATION IS NEEDED: 
To achieve compliance with Chapter 1129 Procedures of the zoning code. 
 
COMMITTEE RECOMMENDATION: 
Planning Commission approved this case 7-0 on November 6, 2019. 
 
FISCAL IMPACT(S): 
N/A 
 
POLICY CHANGES: 
N/A 
 
 



PRESENTER(S): 
David Efland, Planning and Community Development Director 
Bill Ferrigno, Public Works Director and City Engineer 
 
RECOMMENDATION: 
UPDATE 11/25/2019: 
Staff recommends approval as submitted with the documented conditions and 
noting the following requirements per the January 16, 2008 Consent Decree 
which remain in effect: 
 
The proposed 14.9 acre 87 lot Enclave at Ravines development is impacted by 
the terms of the January 16, 2008 Consent Decree.    
 
The approved language of the consent decree requires the following with status 
of each item according to the City Engineer after each: 
 

• Preparation of an Ohio EPA Approved Explosive Gas Monitoring Plan be in 
place when an enclosed structure is located within 1000 feet of the edge of 
limits of solid waste.   

o The plan was completed and approved by the OEPA on March 14, 
2006. 

• T&R (Developer) shall pay 50% of the cost to implement and monitor the 
plan.    

o This has occurred. 
• Monitoring is to occur within 1-year after occupancy of the first structure 

within the 1000 feet landfill monitoring zone.   
o Monitoring began in early 2019. 

• 40% to 50% of the lots included in the Enclave Development are within the 
1000 feet landfill waste offset area.   

o The preliminary development site plan should include the 
appearance of the line for the 1000 feet landfill waste offset area.   

• T&R will place a notice in all deeds for all properties that have or will have 
occupied structures within the 1000 feet landfill waste offset area.  The 
notice will identify the existence of the landfill and the general distance 
between the Landfill and occupied structures.   

o This should be a development approval condition. 
• The City is to reimburse T&R for engineering costs associated with 

preparation and approval of monitoring plan.   
o This has been completed. 



• City and T&R to agree on manner of payment for implementation of the 
plan and monitoring costs.   

o This was completed by MOU dated May 25, 2018 
 
In addition to the requirements of the Consent Decree, a separate letter to the 
City by T&R dated December 1, 2004 further specified the construction of a gas 
migration trench to be generally located somewhere between the limits of waste 
placement of the Landfill and the occupied structures on the T&R parcel that 
will be within the 1000 feet landfill waste offset area.  Cost of construction is 
the responsibility of T&R.   

o The consent decree, however, does not mention a requirement concerning 
the trench.  Additional discussions are planned with the OEPA and 
environmental consultant regarding the trench on Monday, December 9th.   

 
Curve Road Landfill Facts 

• The Curve Road landfill was opened in 1973 and used through 1990. 
• There is both a Corrective Measures Plan and Explosive Gas Monitoring 

Plan in place. 
• There are (15) groundwater monitoring wells and (2) surface water 

monitoring locations subject to bi-annual sampling. 
• A total of (4) Explosive gas monitoring points have been installed on the 

landfill subject to bi-annual sampling 
• (3) additional gas monitoring points have been installed on the T&R 

property west of the railway and are sampled bi-annually. 
• All groundwater sampling and explosive gas monitoring results are 

reported to the OEPA and are available for public review in the form of 
approved reports by the OEPA. 

• The landfill has been capped with over 1000 cubic yards of clay 
• An active groundwater leachate collection system was is installed in 2006 

and connected to a gravity transfer line in 2015 that directs leachate to the 
WWTP for processing 

 
 
ATTACHMENT(S) 
Landfill Wells and Monitoring Points 
Staff Report 



 ORDINANCE NO. 19-65 
 
AN ORDINANCE APPROVING A PRELIMINARY 
DEVELOPMENT PLAN REQUEST BY T&R PROPERTIES  
FOR THE ENCLAVE AT THE RAVINES AT OLENTANGY 
CONTAINING 87 SINGLE FAMILY ATTACHED UNITS ON 
APPROXIMATELY 14.906 ACRES ON PROPERTY ZONED 
R-6 PMU (MULTI-FAMILY RESIDENTIAL DISTRICT WITH 
A PLANNED MIXED-USE OVERLAY DISTRICT) 
LOCATED ON THE NORTH SIDE OF CURVE ROAD AND 
WEST OF ROCHDALE RUN. 
 

 WHEREAS, the Planning Commission at its meeting of November 6, 2019 
recommended approval of a Preliminary Development Plan request by T&R 
Properties for the Enclave at the Ravines at Olentangy containing 87 single family 
attached units on approximately 14.906 acres on property zoned R-6 PMU (Multi-
Family Residential District with a Planned Mixed Use Overlay District) located on 
the north side of Curve Road and west of Rochdale Run  (PC Case 2019-2344).  

 
NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT ORDAINED by the Council of the City of 

Delaware, State of Ohio: 
 
 SECTION 1.  That the Preliminary Development Plan request by T&R 
Properties for the Enclave at the Ravines at Olentangy containing 87 single family 
attached units on approximately 14.906 acres on property zoned R-6 PMU (Multi-
Family Residential District with a Planned Mixed Use Overlay District) located on 
the north side of Curve Road and west of Rochdale Run, is hereby confirmed, 
approved, and accepted with the following conditions that: 

 

1. The Applicant needs to obtain final engineering approvals, including 
any storm water and utility issues that need to be worked out through 
the Engineering and Utilities Departments. All comments regarding the 
layout and details of the project are preliminary and subject to 
modification or change based on the final technical review by the 
Engineering Department. 

2. The internal access roadway network shall be comprised of 24-
foot-wide private streets built to public street standards with no 
parking permitted on the streets. 

3. The street names shall be vetted and approved by the appropriate 
agencies to ensure compliance and non-duplication prior to recording 
the Final Plat.  

4. Internal sidewalks shall be located on one side of each private street.  



5. The lots and houses shall comply with the minimum bulk and 
setback requirements as shown on this plan and the approved 
development text. 

6. The single family attached units shall achieve compliance with 
Chapter 1171 Residential Design Criteria and Performance Standards 
and typical elevations shall be provided for review with the Final 
Development Plan.  

7. The minimum dwelling unit size shall be 1,200 square feet per the 
approved development text. 

8. A deck or patio (12’x16’ maximum size) shall be permitted on the lots 
identified on the Preliminary Development Plan per the developer. The 
location, size and setback of such deck or patio is identified on the 
Preliminary Development Plan. 

9. A minimum 6-foot-high mound with a double row of staggered 6-foot-
high minimum evergreen trees planted 20 feet on center shall be 
installed along Curve Road adjacent to lots 46-59. The maintenance of 
the mound and associated landscaping shall be the responsibility of the 
Homeowner’s Association. 

10. Individual building landscaping shall be required per Chapter 1171 
Design Criteria and Performance Standards of the zoning code. 

11. All landscaping plans shall be submitted, reviewed and approved by 
the Shade Tree Commission. 

12. A lighting plan that achieves compliance with the minimum zoning 
regulations shall be submitted in the Final Development Plan submittal 

13. Any ground signage shall achieve compliance with the adopted 
Gateways and Corridor Plan and the minimum zoning requirements. 

14. The Preliminary Development Plan shall include a line demarcating 
the 1,000 feet landfill waste offset area.  

15. The Applicant shall place a notice in all deed for all properties that 
have or will have occupied structures within the 1,000 feet landfill waste 
offset area.  The notice will identify the existence of the landfill and the 
general distance between the landfill and occupied structures.  

 
SECTION 2.  This Council finds and determines that all formal actions of 

this Council and any of its committees concerning and relating to the passage of 
this Ordinance were taken in an open meeting of this Council, and that all 
deliberations of this Council and any of its committees that resulted in those 
formal actions were in meetings open to the public, all in compliance with the law 
including Section 121.22 of the Revised Code. 
 
 
 



VOTE ON RULE SUSPENSION:   YEAS____NAYS____  
          ABSTAIN ____ 
 
PASSED: _________________________, 2019 YEAS____ NAYS____ 
      ABSTAIN ____ 
 
 
ATTEST: _______________________________       ________________________ 

CITY CLERK    MAYOR 





  FACT SHEET 
 
 
AGENDA ITEM NO:  14    DATE: 11/25/2019 
 
ORDINANCE NO:     RESOLUTION NO: 
 
READING: SECOND    PUBLIC HEARING: NO 
 
 
TO:  Mayor and Members of City Council  
 
FROM: R. Thomas Homan, City Manager 
 
VIA:  David Efland, Planning and Community Development Director 
 
 
TITLE OF PROPOSED ORDINANCE/RESOLUTION:  
AN ORDINANCE APPROVING A PRELIMINARY SUBDIVISION PLAT REQUEST 
BY T&R PROPERTIES FOR THE ENCLAVE AT THE RAVINES AT OLENTANGY 
CONTAINING 87 SINGLE FAMILY ATTACHED UNITS ON APPROXIMATELY 
14.906 ACRES ON PROPERTY ZONED R-6 PMU (MULTI-FAMILY RESIDENTIAL 
DISTRICT WITH A PLANNED MIXED-USE OVERLAY DISTRICT) LOCATED ON 
THE NORTH SIDE OF CURVE ROAD AND WEST OF ROCHDALE RUN. 
 
BACKGROUND: 
See attached report and updated fact sheet recommendation.   
 
REASON WHY LEGISLATION IS NEEDED: 
To achieve compliance with Chapter 1111 Procedures of the zoning code. 
 
COMMITTEE RECOMMENDATION: 
Planning Commission approved this case 7-0 on November 6, 2019. 
 
FISCAL IMPACT(S): 
N/A 
 
POLICY CHANGES: 
N/A 
 
 



PRESENTER(S): 
David Efland, Planning and Community Development Director 
Bill Ferrigno, Public Works Director and City Engineer 
 
RECOMMENDATION: 
UPDATE 11/25/2019: 
Staff recommends approval as submitted with the documented conditions and 
noting the following requirements per the January 16, 2008 Consent Decree 
which remain in effect: 
 
The proposed 14.9 acre 87 lot Enclave at Ravines development is impacted by 
the terms of the January 16, 2008 Consent Decree.    
 
The approved language of the consent decree requires the following with status 
of each item according to the City Engineer after each: 
 

• Preparation of an Ohio EPA Approved Explosive Gas Monitoring Plan be in 
place when an enclosed structure is located within 1000 feet of the edge of 
limits of solid waste.   

o The plan was completed and approved by the OEPA on March 14, 
2006. 

• T&R (Developer) shall pay 50% of the cost to implement and monitor the 
plan.    

o This has occurred. 
• Monitoring is to occur within 1-year after occupancy of the first structure 

within the 1000 feet landfill monitoring zone.   
o Monitoring began in early 2019. 

• 40% to 50% of the lots included in the Enclave Development are within the 
1000 feet landfill waste offset area.   

o The preliminary development site plan should include the 
appearance of the line for the 1000 feet landfill waste offset area.   

• T&R will place a notice in all deeds for all properties that have or will have 
occupied structures within the 1000 feet landfill waste offset area.  The 
notice will identify the existence of the landfill and the general distance 
between the Landfill and occupied structures.   

o This should be a development approval condition. 
• The City is to reimburse T&R for engineering costs associated with 

preparation and approval of monitoring plan.   
o This has been completed. 



• City and T&R to agree on manner of payment for implementation of the 
plan and monitoring costs.   

o This was completed by MOU dated May 25, 2018 
 
In addition to the requirements of the Consent Decree, a separate letter to the 
City by T&R dated December 1, 2004 further specified the construction of a gas 
migration trench to be generally located somewhere between the limits of waste 
placement of the Landfill and the occupied structures on the T&R parcel that 
will be within the 1000 feet landfill waste offset area.  Cost of construction is 
the responsibility of T&R.   

o The consent decree, however, does not mention a requirement concerning 
the trench.  Additional discussions are planned with the OEPA and 
environmental consultant regarding the trench on Monday, December 9th.   

 
Curve Road Landfill Facts 

• The Curve Road landfill was opened in 1973 and used through 1990. 
• There is both a Corrective Measures Plan and Explosive Gas Monitoring 

Plan in place. 
• There are (15) groundwater monitoring wells and (2) surface water 

monitoring locations subject to bi-annual sampling. 
• A total of (4) Explosive gas monitoring points have been installed on the 

landfill subject to bi-annual sampling 
• (3) additional gas monitoring points have been installed on the T&R 

property west of the railway and are sampled bi-annually. 
• All groundwater sampling and explosive gas monitoring results are 

reported to the OEPA and are available for public review in the form of 
approved reports by the OEPA. 

• The landfill has been capped with over 1000 cubic yards of clay 
• An active groundwater leachate collection system was is installed in 2006 

and connected to a gravity transfer line in 2015 that directs leachate to the 
WWTP for processing 

 
ATTACHMENT(S) 
See attached 



 ORDINANCE NO. 19-66 
 
AN ORDINANCE APPROVING A PRELIMINARY 
SUBDIVISION PLAT REQUEST BY T&R PROPERTIES  
FOR THE ENCLAVE AT THE RAVINES AT OLENTANGY 
CONTAINING 87 SINGLE FAMILY ATTACHED UNITS ON 
APPROXIMATELY 14.906 ACRES ON PROPERTY ZONED 
R-6 PMU (MULTI-FAMILY RESIDENTIAL DISTRICT WITH 
A PLANNED MIXED-USE OVERLAY DISTRICT) 
LOCATED ON THE NORTH SIDE OF CURVE ROAD AND 
WEST OF ROCHDALE RUN. 
 

WHEREAS, the Planning Commission at its meeting of November 6, 2019 
recommended approval of a Preliminary Subdivision Plat request by T&R 
Properties for the Enclave at the Ravines at Olentangy containing 87 single family 
attached units on approximately 14.906 acres on property zoned R-6 PMU (Multi-
Family Residential District with a Planned Mixed Use Overlay District) located on 
the north side of Curve Road and west of Rochdale Run  (PC Case 2019-2345). 

 
NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT ORDAINED by the Council of the City of 

Delaware, State of Ohio: 
 
 SECTION 1.  That the Preliminary Subdivision Plat request by T&R 
Properties for the Enclave at the Ravines at Olentangy containing 87 single family 
attached units on approximately 14.906 acres on property zoned R-6 PMU (Multi-
Family Residential District with a Planned Mixed Use Overlay District) located on 
the north side of Curve Road and west of Rochdale Run, is hereby confirmed, 
approved, and accepted with the following conditions that: 

 

1. The Applicant needs to obtain final engineering approvals, including 
any storm water and utility issues that need to be worked out through 
the Engineering and Utilities Departments. All comments regarding the 
layout and details of the project are preliminary and subject to 
modification or change based on the final technical review by the 
Engineering Department. 

2. The internal access roadway network shall be comprised of 24-
foot-wide private streets built to public street standards with no 
parking permitted on the streets. 

3. The street names shall be vetted and approved by the appropriate 
agencies to ensure compliance and non-duplication prior to recording 
the Final Plat.  

4. Internal sidewalks shall be located on one side of each private street.  



5. The lots and houses shall comply with the minimum bulk and 
setback requirements as shown on this plan and the approved 
development text. 

6. The single family attached units shall achieve compliance with 
Chapter 1171 Residential Design Criteria and Performance Standards 
and typical elevations shall be provided for review with the Final 
Development Plan. 

7. The minimum dwelling unit size shall be 1,200 square feet per the 
approved development text. 

8. A deck or patio (12’x16’ maximum size) shall be permitted on the lots 
identified on the Preliminary Development Plan per the developer. The 
location, size and setback of such deck or patio is identified on the 
Preliminary Development Plan and Preliminary Subdivision Plat. 

9. A minimum 6-foot-high mound with a double row of staggered 6-foot-
high minimum evergreen trees planted 20 feet on center shall be 
installed along Curve Road adjacent to lots 46-59. The maintenance of 
the mound and associated landscaping shall be the responsibility of the 
Homeowner’s Association. 

10. Individual building landscaping shall be required per Chapter 1171 
Design Criteria and Performance Standards of the zoning code. 

11. All landscaping plans shall be submitted, reviewed and approved by 
the Shade Tree Commission. 

12. A lighting plan that achieves compliance with the minimum zoning 
regulations shall be submitted in the Final Development Plan submittal 

13. Any ground signage shall achieve compliance with the adopted 
Gateways and Corridor Plan and the minimum zoning requirements. 

14. The Applicant shall place a notice in all deed for all properties that 
have or will have occupied structures within the 1,000 feet landfill waste 
offset area.  The notice will identify the existence of the landfill and the 
general distance between the landfill and occupied structures.  
  

SECTION 2.  This Council finds and determines that all formal actions of 
this Council and any of its committees concerning and relating to the passage of 
this Ordinance were taken in an open meeting of this Council, and that all 
deliberations of this Council and any of its committees that resulted in those 
formal actions were in meetings open to the public, all in compliance with the law 
including Section 121.22 of the Revised Code. 
 
 
 
 
 



VOTE ON RULE SUSPENSION:   YEAS____NAYS____  
          ABSTAIN ____ 
 
PASSED: _________________________, 2019 YEAS____ NAYS____ 
      ABSTAIN ____ 
 
 
ATTEST: _______________________________       ________________________ 

CITY CLERK    MAYOR 



































  FACT SHEET 
 
 
AGENDA ITEM NO: 15    DATE: 11/25/2019 
 
ORDINANCE NO: 19-67    RESOLUTION NO: 
 
READING: SECOND    PUBLIC HEARING:  YES 
       November 25, 2019 @ 8:00 p.m. 
 
 
TO:  Mayor and Members of City Council  
 
FROM: R. Thomas Homan, City Manager 
 
VIA:  David Efland, Planning and Community Development Director 
 
 
TITLE OF PROPOSED ORDINANCE/RESOLUTION:  
AN ORDINANCE APPROVING A DEVELOPMENT TEXT AMENDMENT FOR 
DELAWARE DEVELOPMENT PLAN LTD., FOR COUGHLIN’S CROSSING TO 
SUB-AREAS 2, 5 AND 6 ON APPROXIMATELY 80 ACRES LOCATED EAST OF 
US 23, WEST OF STRATFORD ROAD, NORTH OF MEEKER WAY AND SOUTH 
OF ELLIOT ESTATES SUBDIVISION AND ZONED A-1 PMU (AGRICULTURAL 
DISTRICT WITH A PLANNED MIXED-USE OVERLAY DISTRICT). 
 
BACKGROUND: 
See attached staff report. 
 
REASON WHY LEGISLATION IS NEEDED: 
To achieve compliance with Chapter 1130 Amendments of the Codified 
Ordinances. 
 
COMMITTEE RECOMMENDATION: 
Planning Commission recommended approval by a vote of 7-0 on November 6, 
2019.  
 
FISCAL IMPACT(S): 
N/A 
 
  



POLICY CHANGES: 
N/A 
 
PRESENTER(S): 
David Efland, Planning and Community Development Director 
 
RECOMMENDATION: 
Staff recommends approval  
 
ATTACHMENT(S) 
See attached 



 ORDINANCE NO. 19-67 
 
AN ORDINANCE APPROVING A DEVELOPMENT TEXT 
AMENDMENT FOR DELAWARE DEVELOPMENT PLAN 
LTD., FOR COUGHLIN’S CROSSING TO SUB-AREAS 2, 5 
AND 6 ON APPROXIMATELY 80 ACRES LOCATED EAST 
OF US 23, WEST OF STRATFORD ROAD, NORTH OF 
MEEKER WAY AND SOUTH OF ELLIOT ESTATES 
SUBDIVISION AND ZONED A-1 PMU (AGRICULTURAL 
DISTRICT WITH A PLANNED MIXED-USE OVERLAY 
DISTRICT). 
 

 WHEREAS, the Planning Commission at its meeting of November 6, 2019 
recommended approval of a Development Text Amendment for Delaware 
Development Plan LTD., for Coughlin’s Crossing to Sub-Areas 2, 5 and 6 on 
approximately 80 acres located east of US 23, west of Stratford Road, north of 
Meeker Way and south of Elliot Estates Subdivision zoned A-1 PMU (Agricultural 
District with a Planned Mixed Use Overlay District) (PC Case 2019-1578). 
 

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT ORDAINED by the Council of the City of 
Delaware, State of Ohio: 
 
 SECTION 1.  That the Development Text Amendment for Delaware 
Development Plan LTD., for Coughlin’s Crossing to Sub-Areas 2, 5 and 6 on 
approximately 80 acres located east of US 23, west of Stratford Road, north of 
Meeker Way and south of Elliot Estates Subdivision zoned A-1 PMU (Agricultural 
District with a Planned Mixed Use Overlay District), is hereby confirmed, 
approved, and accepted with the following conditions that: 
 
1. Any new structure(s) or any change of use of any proposed buildings or 

property shall require conformance to all provisions of the Development Text. 
2. The parcels and/or sites that have a layout on the Preliminary Development 

Plan shall require Final Development Plan approval while the parcels and/or 
sites that do not have a layout shall require Preliminary and Final Development 
Approval by the Planning Commission and City Council. 

3. The development text, renderings and all associated submitted plans (including 
the Comprehensive Sign Plan) comprise the zoning and development 
requirements for the site together with all other City applicable code and 
regulations.  

4. The number of multi-family units in Sub-Area 2 shall not exceed 178 dwelling 
units. 

5. In Sub-Area 2, the one-bedroom units shall be a minimum 790 square feet and 
the two bedroom units shall be a minimum 1,100 square feet.  



6. In Sub-Area 2, the carriage apartments shall be minimum 570 square feet and 
there shall only be 10 such units. 

7. In Sub-Area 2, the maximum building height shall be increased to 47 feet from 
35 feet for the three-story structures shown on the Development Plan.  

8. Convert the storm water detention area (approximately 3.29 acres) currently 
located in Sub-Area 5 adjacent to Hawthorn Boulevard to developable land (Lot 
12724) in accordance with the Sub-Area 5 zoning text and to have the storm 
water area be relocated to Sub-Area 5 on approximately 3.202 acres (Lot 
12730) located on the northwest corner of Coughlin Lane and Meeker Way. 

9. Amend Sub-Area 5 to permit the side setback for internal collector roads to 
be 40 feet as permitted in Sub-Area 6.  

10. Amend Sub-Areas 5 and 6 to permit internal side yard setbacks to be 30 
feet instead of 60 feet.   

11. Amend Sub-Area 6 to permit minimum lot area to be as approved with the 
Final Development Plan as permitted in Sub-Area 5 instead of 1.5-acre lot 
minimum. 

12. Amend Sub-Area 6 to permit minimum lot width and frontage to be as 
approved with the Final Development Plan as permitted in Sub-Area 5 instead 
of 120 feet minimum lot width. 

13. Amend Sub-Area 6 to permit minimum building coverage to be as approved 
with the Final Development Plan as permitted in Sub-Area 5 instead of 40% 
maximum building coverage. 

 
SECTION 2.  This Council finds and determines that all formal actions of 

this Council and any of its committees concerning and relating to the passage of 
this Ordinance were taken in an open meeting of this Council, and that all 
deliberations of this Council and any of its committees that resulted in those 
formal actions were in meetings open to the public, all in compliance with the law 
including Section 121.22 of the Revised Code. 
 
 
VOTE ON RULE SUSPENSION:   YEAS____NAYS____  
          ABSTAIN ____ 
 
PASSED: _________________________, 2019 YEAS____ NAYS____ 
      ABSTAIN ____ 
 
 
ATTEST: _______________________________       ________________________ 

CITY CLERK    MAYOR 



  FACT SHEET 
 
 
AGENDA ITEM NO:  16    DATE: 11/25/2019 
 
ORDINANCE NO: 19-68    RESOLUTION NO: 
 
READING: SECOND    PUBLIC HEARING:  NO 
 
 
TO:  Mayor and Members of City Council  
 
FROM: R. Thomas Homan, City Manager 
 
VIA:  David Efland, Planning and Community Development Director 
 
 
TITLE OF PROPOSED ORDINANCE/RESOLUTION:  
AN ORDINANCE APPROVING AN AMENDED PRELIMINARY DEVELOPMENT 
PLAN FOR DELAWARE DEVELOPMENT PLAN LTD., FOR COUGHLIN’S 
CROSSING TO SUB-AREAS 2, 5 AND 6 ON APPROXIMATELY 80 ACRES 
LOCATED EAST OF US 23, WEST OF STRATFORD ROAD, NORTH OF 
MEEKER WAY AND SOUTH OF ELLIOT ESTATES SUBDIVISION AND ZONED 
A-1 PMU (AGRICULTURAL DISTRICT WITH A PLANNED MIXED-USE OVERLAY 
DISTRICT). 
 
BACKGROUND: 
See attached staff report. 
 
REASON WHY LEGISLATION IS NEEDED: 
To achieve compliance with Section 1129 requirements of the zoning code. 
 
COMMITTEE RECOMMENDATION: 
Planning Commission recommended approval by a vote of 7-0 on November 6, 
2019.  
 
FISCAL IMPACT(S): 
N/A 
  
POLICY CHANGES: 
N/A 



 
PRESENTER(S): 
David Efland, Planning and Community Development Director 
 
RECOMMENDATION: 
Staff recommends approval  
 
ATTACHMENT(S) 
See attached 



 ORDINANCE NO. 19-68 
 
AN ORDINANCE APPROVING AN AMENDED 
PRELIMINARY DEVELOPMENT PLAN FOR DELAWARE 
DEVELOPMENT PLAN LTD., FOR COUGHLIN’S 
CROSSING TO SUB-AREAS 2, 5 AND 6 ON 
APPROXIMATELY 80 ACRES LOCATED EAST OF US 23, 
WEST OF STRATFORD ROAD, NORTH OF MEEKER 
WAY AND SOUTH OF ELLIOT ESTATES SUBDIVISION 
AND ZONED A-1 PMU (AGRICULTURAL DISTRICT WITH 
A PLANNED MIXED-USE OVERLAY DISTRICT). 
 

 WHEREAS, the Planning Commission at its meeting of November 6, 2019 
recommended approval of an Amended Preliminary Development Plan for 
Delaware Development Plan LTD., for Coughlin’s Crossing to Sub-Areas 2, 5 and 6 
on approximately 80 acres located east of US 23, west of Stratford Road, north of 
Meeker Way and south of Elliot Estates Subdivision and zoned A-1 PMU 
(Agricultural District with a Planned Mixed Use Overlay District) (PC Case 2019-
1579). 
 

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT ORDAINED by the Council of the City of 
Delaware, State of Ohio: 
 
 SECTION 1.  That the Amended Preliminary Development Plan for Delaware 
Development Plan LTD., for Coughlin’s Crossing to Sub-Areas 2, 5 and 6 on 
approximately 80 acres located east of US 23, west of Stratford Road, north of 
Meeker Way and south of Elliot Estates Subdivision and zoned A-1 PMU 
(Agricultural District with a Planned Mixed Use Overlay District), is hereby 
confirmed, approved, and accepted with the following conditions that: 
 

1. In Sub-Area 2, the applicant needs to obtain engineering approvals, 
including any storm water and utility issues that need to be worked out 
through the Engineering and Utilities Departments.  All comments 
regarding the layout and details of the project are preliminary and subject 
to modification or change based on the final technical review by the 
Engineering Department once a complete plan set is submitted for review. 

2. In Sub-Area 2, the limestone on the building shall achieve compliance with 
the approved development text.  

3. In Sub-Area 2, all building appurtenances (coping, downspouts, etc.) shall 
be painted to match the adjacent building color. 

4. In Sub-Area 2, all roof top mechanical equipment shall be screened from 
public view. 



5. In Sub-Area 2, the applicant shall submit all building elevations along with 
material and color samples for all building materials for staff review and 
approval.  

6. In Sub-Area 2, the trach compactor enclosure shall be constructed of stone 
to match the building and have wood doors painted or stained to match. 
The trach compactor shall be screened with landscaping from Stratford 
Road. 

7. In Sub-Area 2, the proposed approximate 1.65-acre open space called 
“Stratford Commons”, located on the extreme northwestern portion of the 
Sub-Area, shall be programmed with amenities and view lines as originally 
conceived per the approved development text as well as enhanced with the 
Final Development Plan. 

8. In Sub-Area 2, the site shall require a payment in lieu of planting trees of 
$44,007.41 (9.734 acres x $4,521 per acre) prior to the approval of 
construction drawings. 

9. In Sub-Area 2, all the landscape plans shall be approved by the Shade Tree 
Commission. 

10. In Sub-Area 2, the lighting plan shall be reviewed and approved by 
the City and all lighting shall meet the requirements of the approved 
development text and the Planning & Zoning Code. 

11. In Sub-Area 2, all signage including size, material and color shall be 
submitted and reviewed by staff for approval. 

12. In Sub-Area 5, the applicant needs to obtain engineering approvals, 
including any storm water and utility issues that need to be worked out 
through the Engineering and Utilities Departments.  All comments 
regarding the layout and details of the project are preliminary and subject 
to modification or change based on the final technical review by the 
Engineering Department once a complete plan set is submitted for review. 

13. In Sub-Area 5, the limestone on the building shall achieve compliance 
with the approved development text.  

14. In Sub-Area 5, all building appurtenances (coping, downspouts, etc.) 
shall be painted to match the adjacent building color. 

15. In Sub-Area 5, all roof top mechanical equipment shall be screened 
from public view. 

16. In Sub-Area 5, the applicant shall submit all building elevations along 
with material and color samples for all building materials for staff review 
and approval.  

17. In Sub-Area 5 the dumpster enclosure shall be constructed of stone 
to match the building and have wood doors painted or stained to match. 

18. In Sub-Area 5 the site shall require a payment in lieu of planting trees 
of $22,852.39 an acre prior to the approval of construction drawings. 

19. In Sub-Area 5, all the landscape plans shall be approved by the 
Shade Tree Commission. 



20. In Sub-Area 5, the lighting plan shall be reviewed and approved by 
the City and all lighting must meet the requirements of the approved 
development text and the Planning & Zoning Code. 

21. In Sub-Area5, all signage including size, material and color shall be 
submitted and reviewed by staff for approval. 

22. In Sub-Area 5, a right-in only curb cut on the south side of Hawthorn 
Boulevard shall be permitted per the City Engineer requirements. 

23. In Sub-Area 5, there shall be no additional access points on Meeker 
Way between US 23 and Coughlin Lane. 

24. In Sub-Area 6 (Lot 12724), the applicant needs to obtain engineering 
approvals, including any storm water and utility issues that need to be 
worked out through the Engineering and Utilities Departments.  All 
comments regarding the layout and details of the project are preliminary 
and subject to modification or change based on the final technical review by 
the Engineering Department once a complete plan set is submitted for 
review. 

25. In Sub-Area 6 (Lot 12724), the limestone on the building shall achieve 
compliance with the approved development text.  

26. In Sub-Area 6 (Lot 12724), all building appurtenances (coping, 
downspouts, etc.) shall be painted to match the adjacent building color. 

27. In Sub-Area 6 (Lot 12724), all roof top mechanical equipment shall be 
screened from public view. 

28. In Sub-Area 6 (Lot 12724), the applicant shall submit all building 
elevations along with material and color samples for all building materials 
for staff review and approval.  

29. In Sub-Area 6 (Lot 12724), the dumpster enclosure shall be 
constructed of stone to match the building and have wood doors painted or 
stained to match. 

30. In Sub-Area 6 (Lot 12724), the site shall require a payment in lieu of 
planting trees of $11,939.96 (2.641 acres x $4,521 per acre) prior to the 
approval of construction drawings. 

31. In Sub-Area 6 (Lot 12724), all the landscape plans shall be approved 
by the Shade Tree Commission. 

32. In Sub-Area 6 (Lot 12724) the lighting plan shall be reviewed and 
approved by the City and all lighting must meet the requirements of the 
approved development text and the Planning & Zoning Code. 

33. In Sub-Area 6 (Lot 12724), all signage including size, material and 
color shall be submitted and reviewed by staff for approval. 

34. In Sub-Area 6, a right-in curb cut on the southside of Penny Way 
shall be permitted per the City Engineer. A right-out curb shall be permitted 
based on the proposed site plan if it achieves compliance with City 
Engineering requirements.  
 



 
SECTION 2.  This Council finds and determines that all formal actions of 

this Council and any of its committees concerning and relating to the passage of 
this Ordinance were taken in an open meeting of this Council, and that all 
deliberations of this Council and any of its committees that resulted in those 
formal actions were in meetings open to the public, all in compliance with the law 
including Section 121.22 of the Revised Code. 
 
 
VOTE ON RULE SUSPENSION:   YEAS____NAYS____  
          ABSTAIN ____ 
 
PASSED: _________________________, 2019 YEAS____ NAYS____ 
      ABSTAIN ____ 
 
 
ATTEST: _______________________________       ________________________ 

CITY CLERK    MAYOR 













































































































































































































































































































































































  FACT SHEET 
 
 
AGENDA ITEM NO:  17    DATE: 11/25/2019 
 
ORDINANCE NO:     RESOLUTION NO:  19-51 
 
READING: FIRST     PUBLIC HEARING:  NO 
 
 
TO:  Mayor and Members of City Council  
 
FROM: R. Thomas Homan, City Manager 
 
VIA:  Darren Shulman, City Attorney 
 
 
TITLE OF PROPOSED ORDINANCE/RESOLUTION:  
A RESOLUTION OF NO OBJECTION TO THE EXPANSION OF THE 
CONCORD/SCIOTO COMMUNITY AUTHORITY, A NEW COMMUNITY 
AUTHORITY UNDER CHAPTER 349 OF THE OHIO REVISED CODE. 
 
BACKGROUND: 
The CIFA is a new community authority formed in 2007 pursuant to a Petition 
filed by Developer Triangle Properties located in Liberty and Concord 
Townships.  Prior to its formation, the City of Delaware was identified as a 
“proximate city” (as defined in ORC Section 349.01(M)) and received notice of 
the proposed Petition to form the CIFA before it was filed with the Delaware 
County Board of Commissioners. Delaware provided its Consent to the 
formation of the CIFA before the filing, and a copy of said Consent was 
attached to the Petition.  The CIFA is now working through the process of 
adding new territory to the CIFA, consisting of five individual expansion 
applications.  
 
Council approved expansions of the NCA in June 2019, June 2017, July 2016 
and October 2014. 
 
REASON WHY LEGISLATION IS NEEDED: 
Under ORC Chapter 349.03(B), the CIFA must follow the same process as was 
used to establish the CIFA, which requires City Council approval.   
 



COMMITTEE RECOMMENDATION: 
N/A 
 
FISCAL IMPACT(S): 
N/A 
 
POLICY CHANGES: 
N/A 
 
PRESENTER(S): 
Darren Shulman, City Attorney 
 
RECOMMENDATION: 
Approval 
 
ATTACHMENT(S) 
Applications & Map Exhibits:  
City Approvals 



RESOLUTION NO. 19-51 
 

RESOLUTION OF NO OBJECTION TO THE 
EXPANSION OF THE CONCORD/SCIOTO 
COMMUNITY AUTHORITY, A NEW 
COMMUNITY AUTHORITY UNDER 
CHAPTER 349 OF THE OHIO REVISED 
CODE. 
 

 WHEREAS, the Concord/Scioto Community Authority (the “Authority”), as 
a new community authority under Chapter 349 of the Ohio Revised Code, exists 
within the boundaries of Delaware County, Ohio; and 
 
 WHEREAS, the Board of Trustees (the “Board”) of the Authority desires to 
expand the boundaries of the territory of the Authority (the “District”) to include 
the following additional property (the “Property”): 
 

• The Cottages at Hyatts property, consisting of approximately 23.18 acres 
in Concord Township, Delaware County, with parcel number 419-330-03-
001-000. 

 
WHEREAS, a community development charge will be levied against the 

property added to the District to pay the costs of community facilities that benefit 
the property; and 

 
WHEREAS, the City of Delaware (the “City”) may be defined as a 

“proximate city” under Section 349.01(M) of the Ohio Revised Code and has thus 
been informed of this proposed expansion. 

 
NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED BY THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE 

CITY OF DELAWARE, DELAWARE COUNTY, OHIO: 
 
SECTION 1.  The City does not object to the addition of the Property to the 

District. 
 
SECTION 2.  The City hereby authorizes and directs the Mayor or the City 

Manager to sign any petition or other documentation necessary to evidence the 
City’s consent to add the Property to the District. 

 
SECTION 3.  It is hereby found and determined that all formal actions of 

this Council concerning and relating to the passage of this resolution were taken 
in an open meeting of this Council, and that all deliberations of this Council and 
of any of its committees that resulted in such formal action were in meetings 
open to the public, in compliance with all legal requirements including Section 
121.22 of the Ohio Revised Code. 



 
SECTION 4.  This resolution shall be effective immediately upon its 

passage. 
 
 

PASSED: ___________________, 2019  YEAS ______NAYS ______ 
        ABSTAIN ______ 
 
 
ATTEST: ____________________________  ______________________________ 
  CITY CLERK     MAYOR 



Bricker&Eckler
ATTORNEYS AT LAW

COLUMBUS I CLEVELAND

CINCINNATI I DAYTON

MARIETTA

BRICKER & ECKLER LLP
100 South Third Street
Columbus, OH 43215-4291
MAIN: 614.227.2300
FAX: 614.227.2390

www.bricker.com
info@bricker.com

Michael L. Katz
614.227.4845
mkatz@bricker.com

November 6, 2019

VIA EMAIL AND HAND-DELIVERY

Darren Shulman, Esq.
City of Delaware
1 South Sandusky Street
Delaware, OH 43015

Re: Application to Add Cottages at Hyatts Property to the
Concord/Scioto Community Authority

Dear Mr. Shulman:

Enclosed please find a copy of the above-referenced application (the
"Application") to add certain real property to the Concord/Scioto Community
Authority (the "Authority") pursuant to Ohio Revised Code Chapter 349.
Prior to filing this Application with the Delaware County Board of
Commissioners, Concord/Scioto Development, LLC (the "Developer") seeks
the approval of the Application from the City Council of the City of Delaware,
Ohio (the "City Council") as the legislative authority of a "proximate city" of
the Authority as defined in Ohio Revised Code Section 349.01(M).

Also enclosed for City Council's consideration are (i) a draft copy of a
resolution of "no-objection" to the Application that authorizes the Mayor, the
City Manager, or the Clerk of City Council to sign the Application as evidence
of City Council's approval; and (ii) a draft copy of the signature page to the
Application to be executed if so authorized by City Council.

If passed by City Council, please return two (2) original copies of the
resolution and executed signature page for the Application.

Please contact me if you have any questions or comments. Thank you for
your assistance in this matter.

Sincerely yours,

Michael L. Katz

Enclosures



M-2 

APPROVAL OF THE CITY OF DELAWARE 

The City of Delaware, by resolution number 19-___, adopted by the City Council of the 
City of Delaware on __________, 2019 (a copy of which is attached hereto) approves the 
foregoing Application to add certain real property to the district (the “District”) of the 
Concord/Scioto Community Authority District (the “Authority”) and has authorized the Mayor, 
the City Manager, or the Clerk of Council to sign this Application, and the Application is 
herewith signed as evidence of that approval.  Pursuant to the Declaration of Covenants and 
Restrictions for the Authority, the community development charge with respect to any parcel 
within the District, including the real property to be added to the District by means of the instant 
petition, is chargeable and may be assessed by the Authority if a structure or building is located 
on a parcel and the parcel (i) receives approval to tap into the public sanitary sewer treatment 
system; (ii) receives approval to tap into the Del-Co Water Company, Inc. water system (or any 
successor thereto); or (iii) receives approval of a final development plan for lands, buildings, 
structures, and improvements to be included in said parcel from the applicable zoning 
jurisdiction. 

CITY OF DELAWARE 

By: __________________________ 
Name: __________________________ 
Title: __________________________ 

































  FACT SHEET 
 
 
AGENDA ITEM NO:  18    DATE: 11/25/2019 
 
ORDINANCE NO: 19-70    RESOLUTION NO: 
 
READING: FIRST     PUBLIC HEARING: NO 
 
 
TO:  Mayor and Members of City Council  
 
FROM: R. Thomas Homan, City Manager 
 
VIA: Judge Marianne Hemmeter and Clerk Cindy Dinovo 
 
 
TITLE OF PROPOSED ORDINANCE/RESOLUTION:  
AN ORDINANCE AMENDING THE DELAWARE MUNICIPAL COURT AND 
CLERK OF COURT EMPLOYEE BENEFITS AND LEAVE POLICIES, AND 
DECLARING AN EMERGENCY. 
 
BACKGROUND: 
The Municipal Court and Clerk of Court’s 2020 Employee Benefits and Leave 
Polices are attached. The only changes to the plan are adjustments to the 
salary ranges of two positions, highlighted in the attached exhibit. 
 
REASON WHY LEGISLATION IS NEEDED: 
 
COMMITTEE RECOMMENDATION: 
N/A 
 
FISCAL IMPACT(S): 
 
POLICY CHANGES: 
N/A 
 
PRESENTER(S): 
Judge David Sunderman and Clerk Cindy Dinovo 
 
 



RECOMMENDATION: 
Approval.     
   
ATTACHMENT(S) 
Amended Salary Range Exhibit 
2020 Pay Plan 



 ORDINANCE NO. 19-70 
 

AN ORDINANCE AMENDING THE DELAWARE 
MUNICIPAL COURT AND CLERK OF COURT EMPLOYEE 
BENEFITS AND LEAVE POLICIES, AND DECLARING AN 
EMERGENCY. 

 
BE IT ORDAINED by the Council of the City of Delaware, State of Ohio: 

 
SECTION 1.  That the Delaware Municipal Court and Clerk of Court 

Employee Benefits and Leave Policies shall be amended to reflect the noted 
changes (attached hereto). 
 

SECTION 2.  This Council finds and determines that all formal actions of 
this Council and any of its committees concerning and relating to the passage of 
this Ordinance were taken in an open meeting of this Council, and that all 
deliberations of this Council and any of its committees that resulted in those 
formal actions were in meetings open to the public, all in compliance with the law 
including Section 121.22 of the Revised Code. 

 
SECTON 3. EMERGENCY CLAUSE. This Ordinance is declared to be an 

emergency measure necessary for the immediate preservation of the public peace, 
property, health, safety and welfare of the City. The emergency clause is required 
to enact the changes effective on December 25, 2019.  Therefore, this Ordinance 
shall be in full force and effect immediately upon its passage. 
 
 
VOTE ON RULE SUSPENSION:    YEAS____NAYS____  
           ABSTAIN ____ 
 
VOTE ON EMERGENCY CLAUSE:    YEAS____NAYS____  
           ABSTAIN ____ 
 
PASSED: _________________________, 2019  YEAS____ NAYS____ 
       ABSTAIN ____ 
 
 
ATTEST: _______________________________        ________________________ 

CITY CLERK     MAYOR 



 
15 

 

SALARY RANGES - MUNICIPAL COURT: 

JOB TITLE HOURLY WAGE ANNUAL SALARY 

MINIMUM MAXIMUM MINIMUM MAXIMUM 

OFFICE ASSISTANT $12.37 $20 $25,730 $41,600 

ADMINISTRATIVE ASSISTANT $14.53 $20 $30,222 $41,600 

BAILIFF/SECURITY OFFICER $16.28 $27 $33,662 $56,160 

COMMUNITY CONTROL  OFFICER $16.35 $28 $34,000 $58,240 

OVI DOCKET COORDINATOR/  
COMMUNITY CONTROL OFFICER 

$16.35 $28 $34,000 $58,240 

MISSION DOCKET COORDINATOR/  
COMMUNITY CONTROL OFFICER* 

$16.35 $28 $34,000 $58,240 

VETERAN MENTOR COORDINATOR     $16        $24    $33,280    $49,920 

*  ASSIGNMENT ADMINISTRATOR $18.81 $32 $39,125 $66,560 

ASSIGNMENT COMMISSIONER/JURY COMMISSIONER $18.81 $28 $39,125 $58,240 

ADMIN.  ASSISTANT/JURY COMMISSIONER $18.81 $28 $39,125 $58,240 

CHIEF COMMUNITY CONTROL OFFICER $20.74 $32 $43,139 $66,560 

DEPUTY CHIEF COMMUNITY CONTROL OFFICER $20.74 $32 $43,139 $66,560 

*  MAGISTRATE $34.67 $56 $72,114 $116,480 

  *  Revised Nov. 2019 
        

SALARY RANGES - CLERK OF COURT: 

1901.31(H) Deputy Clerks of a municipal court other than the Carroll County Municipal Court 
may be appointed by the Clerk and shall receive the compensation, payable in either 
biweekly instalments or semi-monthly instalments, as determined by the payroll administrator, 
out of the City Treasury, that the Clerk may prescribe, except that the compensation of any 
Deputy Clerk of a county-operated municipal court shall be paid out of the treasury of the 
county in which the Court is located. The Judge of the Carroll County Municipal Court may 
appoint Deputy Clerks for the Court, and the Deputy Clerks shall receive the compensation, 
payable in biweekly instalments out of the county treasury, that the Judge may prescribe. 
Each Deputy Clerk shall take an oath of office before entering upon the duties of the Deputy 
Clerk’s office and, when so qualified, may perform the duties appertaining to the office of the 
Clerk. The Clerk may require any of the Deputy Clerks to give bond of not less than three 
thousand dollars, conditioned for the faithful performance of the Deputy Clerk’s duties. 

Policy 35.  Permanent Part-Time Employees 
 
Permanent part-time employees will receive the following wages and benefits: 
 

AMENDED SALARY RANGE HIGHLIGHTED

EMcCloskey
Highlight

EMcCloskey
Highlight



 
 
 

Delaware Municipal Court 
and 

Clerk of Court 
 

Employee Benefits 
And Leave Policies 

 
 

Effective December 25, 2019 
 
 
 
 

Delaware Municipal Court 
and 

Clerk of Court 
70 North Union Street 
Delaware, Ohio 43015 



 
2 

 

SECTION IV.  EMPLOYEE BENEFITS AND LEAVE 

Policy 23.  Holiday Pay and Personal Leave 
 

Section 1. The following are designated as paid holidays for the Municipal Court 
and the Clerk of Court employees: 

 
New Year’s Day, January 1     
Martin Luther King Day, 3rd Monday in January  
Memorial Day, last Monday in May 
Independence Day, July 4th 
Labor Day, 1st Monday in September 
Little Brown Jug Day, 1/2 day - 3rd Thursday after Labor Day 
Thanksgiving Day, 4th Thursday in November  
Day after Thanksgiving 
Day before Christmas, December 24, 1/2 day 
Christmas Day, December 25 

   Day before New Year’s, December 31, 1/2 day 
 
 

Holidays that fall on Saturday will be observed on Friday, and 
holidays that fall on Sunday will be observed on the following 
Monday. 

 
Section 2. If one of the holidays set forth above occurs while an employee is on 

vacation leave, that day will not be charged against his/her vacation. 
  
Section 3. Employees will be credited with 32 hours of personal leave a year.  Use 

of personal days will be at the employee’s discretion with approval of the 
Administrative Judge or his/her designee or the Clerk of Court or his/her 
designee. 

 
Section 4. Employees are permitted to accumulate two years’ worth of personal 

days.   
 
Section 5. At the time of separation, an employee will be compensated for all 

accrued but unused personal days. 

Policy 24.  Vacation Leave  
 

Section 1. The vacation year for employees will end at the close of business on the 
last pay period that ends in the month of December. 

 
Section 2. Each full-time employee will accrue vacation leave by pay period at the 

annual rate of work hours based on years of full-time total service which 
is established in the schedules contained in Section 3 of this article.  
Years of total full-time service is defined to be the total of all periods of 
full-time employment for the Delaware Municipal Court or Clerk of Court 
or as defined in Section 6.  Any period of interruption of service due to 
resignation, layoff, disciplinary suspension, or discharge for cause, will 



 
3 

 

not be included in the computation of total service.  Time not in paid 
status, excepting military leave, will also be excluded in computing total 
service.  In computing years of service, the higher rate of accrual will be 
on the first day of the first pay period in which a year of service is 
completed. 

 
If an employee of the Court or of the Clerk’s office has received or is 
receiving retirement benefits from any of the state retirement funds – the 
Ohio Public Employees Retirement System, the Police and Fire Pension 
Fund, the State Teachers Retirement System, the Public School 
Employees Retirement System, or the Highway Patrol Retirement 
System – the years of public service for which the employee has 
received or is receiving those retirement benefits will not be included in 
any computation of service time for vacation-leave accrual while the 
employee is working for the Court or for the Clerk. 
 
Notwithstanding the above provisions, the position of Chief Bailiff may 
accrue vacation time based on years of service with an Ohio public 
agency, as defined by State law. 

   
Section 3. For employees hired before December 31, 2013, vacation leave will 

accrue as follows: 
 

Years of Total Service Vacation 
Hours/Year 

Vacation 
Hours/Pay 

Start through 5 years   80.6 3.1 

6 through 10 years 119.6 4.6 

11 through 15 years 161.2 6.2 

16 or more years 200.2 7.7 
 

For employees hired after December 31, 2013, vacation leave will accrue 
as follows: 

 

Years of Total Service Vacation 
Hours/Year 

Vacation 
Hours/Pay 

Start through 5 years   80.6 3.1 

6 through 15 years 119.6 4.6 

16 or more years 161.2 6.2 
 

Section 4. Any vacation balance in excess of the maximum number of work hours 
established in the following paragraph will become void as of the close of 



 
4 

 

business on the last day of the last pay period that ends in the month of 
December. 

 

Years of Total Service Maximum Accrual 
of Vacation Hours 

Start through 5 years 161.2 

6 through 10 years 239.2 

11 through 15 years 322.4 

16 or more years 400.4 
 

The only exception to that chart will apply to any employee who – on the 
last day of the last pay period in December 2013 – has a vacation-leave 
balance of more than 500 hours.  The vacation-leave-accrual cap for any 
such employee will be 600.6 hours, and any vacation-leave hours that 
such an employee has accrued but not used in excess of 600.6 hours on 
the last day of the last pay period of 2013 – and on that same last-pay-
period day in each succeeding year – will be void.  

 
Section 5. 
 

A. To be eligible for bi-weekly (pay period) vacation accumulation, an 
employee must be in paid status for a minimum of 72 hours within that 
pay period; except that when an employee is required to report for work 
and does so report and is denied work because of circumstances beyond 
his/her control, absence from work for the balance of that day will not be 
construed as unpaid work status. 

 
B. An employee in full-time status who is to be separated from the 

Delaware Municipal Court or Clerk of Court service through discharge, 
resignation, retirement or layoff, and who has unused vacation leave to 
his/her credit, will be paid in a lump sum for such unused vacation leave 
in lieu of granting a vacation leave after his/her last day of active service 
with the Delaware Municipal Court or Clerk of Court.  That payment will 
be paid at the employee’s hourly rate of pay at the time of separation. 

 
C. When an employee dies while in paid status in the Delaware Municipal 

Court or Clerk of Court, any unused vacation leave to his/her credit will 
be paid in a lump sum to the surviving spouse, or other person the 
employee may have designated in writing. 

 
Section 6.  To be eligible to transfer years of service for determination of vacation 

benefits to the City of Delaware (Delaware Municipal Court or Clerk of 
Court) from prior employment inside the State of Ohio: 

 



 
5 

 

A. Employees are eligible to transfer prior years of service completed as 
employees of this Court, the Clerk of this Court, or the City of Delaware. 

 
B. The amount of years of service that can be transferred is unlimited. 

 
C. Prior employment must be in full-time status. 

 
Section 7. An employee may elect to convert up to two weeks of accrued and 

unused vacation time to cash during any calendar year.  An employee 
must inform the Administrative Judge or the Clerk of Court prior to 
August 1 of the year preceding the calendar year in which the employee 
intends to convert the unused vacation leave to cash, and the employee 
must maintain at least 40 hours of accrued and unused vacation leave in 
the employee’s account after that conversion takes place. 

Policy 25.  Funeral Leave 
Section 1. Each regular full-time employee is entitled to funeral leave with pay as 

follows: 
 

Leave for Death of: Days/Hours of Leave 

Immediate Family Member 1 - 3 days 

Other Relative 4 - 8 hours 

* One work day/shift is automatic for the day of the funeral, but 
additional time up to the maximum will be given only with approval 
of the Administrative Judge or his/her designee or the Clerk of 
Court or his/her designee. 

 
** All leave time with approval of the Administrative Judge or his/her 

designee or the Clerk of Court or his/her designee. 
  
Section 2. For the purposes of this section, Immediate Family Member means 

spouse, child, brother, sister, parents, step-child, step-brother, step-
sister, step-parents, grandparents, grandchildren, sister-in-law, brother-
in-law, and parents-in-law. 

 
Section 3. Funeral Leave time does not include an employee’s regularly scheduled 

day off to which the employee is already entitled. 

Policy 26.  Sick Leave 

The Court and the Clerk of Court may from time to time supplement these sick leave 
policies with additional terms that apply to their employees only.  For a full 
understanding of the use of sick leave, employees should consult not only this benefit 
manual but also the office policies promulgated by the particular officeholder – whether 
the Administrative Judge or the Clerk of Court – for whom the employee works. 



 
6 

 

Section 1. Each employee is entitled to sick leave with pay of 4.6 hours for each 
completed 80 hours of service.   

 
An employee may use sick leave upon approval of the Administrative 
Judge or his/her designee or the Clerk of Court or his/her designee for 
the following reasons: 

A. Illness or injury of the employee or his/her immediate family. 

B. Medical, dental, or optical examinations or treatment of an 
employee or his/her immediate family that requires the 
employee’s attendance. 

C. If a member of the immediate family is afflicted with a contagious 
disease, or when, through exposure to a contagious disease, the 
presence of the employee at his/her job will jeopardize the health 
of others. 

D. Pregnancy and/or childbirth and other conditions related thereto 
inclusive of leave for male employees for the care of the 
employee’s wife and family during postnatal period. 

For purposes of this section, the definition of immediate family is: 
grandparents, mother, mother-in-law, father, father-in-law, brother, sister, 
brother-in-law, sister-in-law, daughter-in-law, son-in-law, spouse, child, 
stepchild, grandchild, legal guardian, or other person who stands in the 
place of a parent (in loco parentis). 

Employees are required to report their intent to use sick leave prior to the 
start of each workday, unless the employee has made other reporting 
arrangements with the Administrative Judge or his/her designee or the 
Clerk of Court or his/her designee. The employee must make this phone 
call unless medically detained by a physician at the time.  The 
Administrative Judge, or his/her designee or the Clerk of Court or his/her 
designee, may contact the employee sometime during the day to discuss 
the reasons for the absence. 

Section 2. Sick leave must be taken in half-hour increments.  
 
Section 3. If an employee used zero hours of sick leave in any calendar year, that 

employee will be credited with an additional three vacation days the 
following year. If an employee uses between one and eight hours of sick 
leave in any one calendar year, that employee will be credited with an 
additional two vacation days the following year.  If an employee uses 
between nine and 16 hours of sick leave in any one calendar year, that 
employee will be credited with one additional vacation day the following 
year.  At the employee’s option, any additional vacation days earned can 
be taken in the form of vacation leave or compensation in cash. 



 
7 

 

Section 4. Any employee who has accumulated at least 800 hours of sick leave 
credit may, during any calendar year, convert up to 80 hours of sick 
leave to vacation on the basis of two hours of sick leave for one hour 
vacation leave. 

If an employee has earned sick leave in another public-sector job and 
then has transferred unused sick leave to the Court or Clerk of Court’s 
office at the start of the employee’s current period of employment with 
the Court or Clerk of Court that transferred sick leave cannot be 
converted to vacation leave under this section. 

All sick leave accumulated by the employee during the employee’s 
current period of employment with the Court or the Clerk of Court must 
be exhausted by the employee or converted to vacation leave before the 
employee may use any sick leave that has been added to the 
employee’s sick-leave balance in accordance with Section 5 of this sick-
leave policy. 

Section 5. To be eligible to transfer sick leave to the City of Delaware from prior 
public employment in the State of Ohio: 

 
A. Employees will only be eligible to transfer sick leave from a public 

agency as defined by the State of Ohio. 

B. Employment with the City of Delaware must take place within 10 
years of termination from their previous employer. 

C. The maximum amount of sick leave hours that can be transferred 
is unlimited. 

Section 6. Any employee who separates from the Delaware Municipal Court or 
Clerk of Court employment for other than just cause will be paid for all 
accumulated and unused sick leave on the basis of one hour of pay for 
every three hours of unused sick leave.  Total sick leave payout cannot 
exceed 12 weeks’ pay. 

Section 7. An employee must complete and sign a request for leave form provided 
by the City to justify the use of sick leave.  Payment for sick leave is 
subject to final approval by the Administrative Judge or his/her designee 
or the Clerk of Court or his/her designee.  The City, Delaware Municipal 
Court, or Clerk of Court may require the employee to furnish a statement 
from a licensed medical practitioner if medical attention was sought or for 
any absence in excess of three consecutive days whether for the 
employee or his/her immediate family.  Such statement must include the 
nature of the illness or injury, the inability to perform his/her duties, the 
prognosis, and the estimated date when the employee can be expected 
to return to work.  Failure of the employee to provide such statement and 
request for leave form when requested may result in the denial of sick 
leave pay. 



 
8 

 

Section 8. Falsification of a request for leave form or a medical practitioner’s 
statement may be grounds for disciplinary action.  The City, Delaware 
Municipal Court, or Clerk of Court maintains the right to have any 
employee examined by a licensed medical practitioner selected and paid 
by the City.  Alternatively, the employee required to see a physician may 
see a physician of his/her own choosing, but in that event will not be 
reimbursed for the costs incurred. 
 
The City, Delaware Municipal Court, or Clerk of Court may deny the 
payment of sick leave if the investigation indicates that the absence was 
not within the provisions of this article.  Denial of sick-leave payment will 
not preclude the Delaware Municipal Court or Clerk of Court from 
implementing any disciplinary action. 

Section 9.  Sick Leave Abuse 

It is the mutual interest of the employee and the Delaware Municipal 
Court or Clerk of Court to prevent the abuse or misuse of sick leave.  
The acceptable usage of sick leave is explained in this policy. 

Employees must not abuse or demonstrate a pattern of sick-leave and/or 
leave-without-pay usage.  The abuse of sick leave or the patterned use 
of sick leave will be just and sufficient cause for discipline.  A request of 
sick leave will be denied if the employee fails to comply with the 
procedures for proper sick leave usage, fails to present a required 
physician’s statement, or if an investigation of a request for sick leave 
discloses facts inconsistent with the proper use of sick leave.  
Falsification of applications for sick leave or the filing of sick leave 
applications and documentation with intent to defraud may result in the 
disapproval of sick leave and may be grounds for disciplinary action, up 
to and including discharge. 

Any employee who is hospitalized will not have such period of leave 
considered in determining whether the employee is abusing sick-leave 
benefits. 

The implementation of this section does not preclude the right of the 
Delaware Municipal Court or Clerk of Court to discipline an employee for 
the abuse of sick leave, to require a statement from the employee’s 
physician, or to have the employee examined by a physician.  Any 
employee who has been disciplined for abuse of sick leave may be 
required to furnish a statement from the employee’s physician for each 
use of sick leave up to six months in duration.  The City, Delaware 
Municipal Court, or Clerk of Court may, with mutual agreement of both 
parties, extend the need for sick leave verification for an additional six 
month period.  The City, Delaware Municipal Court, or Clerk of Court 
also maintains the right to investigate all absences. 



 
9 

 

 

Policy 27.  Injury Leave 
 
Section 1. All regular full-time employees are entitled to injury leave with pay, less 

any Worker’s Compensation weekly salary benefits that they may be 
awarded by the Industrial Commission of Ohio (ICO), for a period not to 
exceed 120 consecutive working days for employees working a 40 hour 
work week for each injury incurred in the performance of employment 
duties with the Delaware Municipal Court or Clerk of Court, provided that 
the following procedures are followed: 

 
A. In all cases of personal injury to any full-time Delaware Municipal 

Court or Clerk of Court employee as a result of the performance of 
employment duties, the employee must immediately complete an 
accident/injury investigation form and report the accident/injury to 
the Administrative Judge or his/her designee or the Clerk of Court 
or his/her designee, who must immediately report said 
accident/injury to the Department of Administrative Services and 
ensure that a claim is filed with ICO. 

 
B. In the event that time off from work is required by the injured 

employee, he/she will be granted injury leave from the first day of 
injury, if the proper documentation is submitted to the City of 
Delaware.  This documentation will include, but not be limited to, a 
statement from the employee’s physician, an Agreement covering 
Compensation Reimbursement, any necessary ICO forms and 
other documents as may be required by the City.  In the event that 
the ICO determines that the injury is NOT employment related, 
any time the employee is, or has been, absent from work will be 
deducted first, from any accrued sick leave, then accrued 
vacation, or accrued compensation time off, other than 
compensatory time for overtime worked. 

 
C. During the period of time an injured employee is being paid under 

this policy, all normal benefits given to regular full-time employees 
will remain in force with no deductions to earned sick leave and/or 
vacation time. 

 
D. In all cases where an injury leave of more than 120 consecutive 

working days is requested by an employee working a 40 hour 
work week, the Administrative Judge or his/her designee or Clerk 
of Court or his/her designee may extend such leave by an 
additional 120 consecutive working days if such necessity is 
determined to his/her satisfaction.  Each employee requesting 
such an extension under this policy may be required to furnish a 
current affidavit from a licensed physician setting forth the need 
for the extension. 



 
10 

 

Policy 28.  Insurance 
 

Section 1. Hospitalization, Surgical, and Major Medical.  The City will continue to 
provide comprehensive hospitalization, surgical, and major medical 
coverage for all full-time members and their dependents.  Beginning 
January 1, 1999, or at some date thereafter, the City may implement a 
Preferred Provider Organization (PPO).  The Plan if implemented will 
provide for the following deductibles and co-payments as follows: 

 

 NETWORK 
PROVIDERS 

NON-NETWORK 
PROVIDERS 

Annual Deductible      
Single 

           Family 

 
None 
None 

 
$   500.00 
$1,000.00 

Office Visit Co-Pay $10.00 N/A 

ER Visit 
 
 
Co-Pay 

$50.00 unless admitted 
into the hospital, 
otherwise co-insurance 
will apply in excess of 
the deductible. 

N/A 

Co-Insurance               
Single 
 
 

           Family 

 
90/10% of first $1,000 
80/20% of next $3,000 
 
90/10% of first $2,000 
80/20% of next $5,000 

 
50/50% of first $5,000 
 
 
50/50% of first $10,000 
 

 
Contributions will be deducted from the member’s gross income prior to taxes, subject 
to compliance with all applicable tax regulations. 
 
Employees will contribute to the cost of the health benefit plan in an amount 
determined annually by the City of Delaware.  Annual changes to the calculated 
COBRA rate will be applied to the monthly employee contributions on the first full pay-
period in April of each year.  Contributions will be deducted from all members in a paid 
status based on twelve months times the monthly rate, divided by the number of pay 
periods per year.  An example would be $56.95/mo. x 12 = $683.40, $683.40/26 pay 
periods = $26.28 per pay period.  In the event federal tax regulations are changed so 
that medical benefit plans are no longer tax exempt, the City will not be responsible to 
pick up the member’s tax burden.   
 
The City will permit employees who have alternate health plan options through a 
spouse to opt out of the City plan in return for a payment of $100.00 per month.  
Families who have both spouses employed full time by the City of Delaware will not be 
eligible to opt out of the plan.  Likewise, these employees will not be subject to monthly 
payroll contributions.  The employee will provide proof that they do in fact have other 



 
11 

 

coverage before the City will drop that employee's current coverage.  The City will 
continue to provide dental coverage if it is not provided under the employee's spouse's 
insurance.  A member may elect to return to coverage under the City's insurance plan 
by notifying the City in writing of any substantial changes in their qualifying family 
circumstances.  The member must give thirty days notice of his or her election to 
return to the City's plan, except in the case of an emergency, such as sudden loss of 
spouse's coverage, divorce or other change in family status.  The plan will comply with 
Internal Revenue Code Section 125 which governs this matter.  
 
Employees who opt out of the health insurance program will be compensated as 
follows: 
 

No Coverage     $100 per month 
Maintain Prescription Only   $ 60 per month 
Maintain Dental Only   $ 65 per month 
Maintain Prescription and Dental  $ 55 per month 
 
* An employee may not elect to have medical coverage only. 

 
Payments will begin on the first pay period of the month following 30 days notice of an 
employee’s desire to drop coverage.  A form will be provided which will contain all 
information necessary to discontinue coverage under the plan.  The form must be 
signed and returned to the Department of Administrative Services.  Until such time that 
an employee is effectively dropped from City coverage, they will be subject to any 
payroll contributions. 
 
All payments made in lieu of insurance coverage will be included as other pay on 
employee’s paycheck.  This income will not be included in income subject to PERS 
contributions but will be subject to all applicable taxes. 
 

A. Prescription Plan 
 
The City will provide a prescription card plan for members and their 
dependents. 
 
The retail benefits will be the following with the City paying the higher amount 
and the employee paying the lesser amount of prescription coinsurance: 
 

• 80/20% for generic drugs 
• 50/50% name brand drugs with a $25.00 co-pay for each 

disbursement 
 
The mail order benefits will be the following: 
 

• 90/10% for generic drugs and 
• 75/25% for name brand drugs with no $25.00 co-pay. 

 
The maximum expense an employee will pay for coinsurance is $250.00 
annually for single coverage and $500.00 for family annually for prescription 



 
12 

 

benefits, however, the $25.00 co-pay for retail name brand drugs will not count 
towards the calculation of the $250.00 or the $500.00 coinsurance maximum 
and will always apply even after an employee reaches the coinsurance 
maximum expenditure. 
 
B. Dental Care Plan 
 
The City will maintain the current dental coverage for all members.  Please 
contact Department of Administrative Services if you have questions. 
 
C. Vision Care Plan 
 
The City will contribute $6 a month towards vision coverage. The employee will 
be responsible for the balance of the monthly cost of the selected coverage. 
The City may cease to make this contribution if the City no longer offers vision 
coverage. Please contact the Department of Administrative Services if you have 
questions. 

 
Section 2. Life Insurance 
 
The City will provide the following amount of life insurance: 
 

Clerk of Court                    $ 100,000.00 
Magistrate                                                        $   45,000.00 
Clerk’s Chief Deputy                                        $   30,000.00 
Court IT Director                                              $   30,000.00 
All other full time employees                            $   20,000.00 

  
Section 3. Certificate of Coverage 
 
The City will provide a certificate of coverage for each Court employee.  Such 
certificate will be for the employee’s family situation. 

Policy 29.  Overtime Compensation  
 

Section 1.  Overtime Pay and Compensatory Time - Nonexempt Employees 
 
Employees who are entitled to overtime pay or compensatory time off under the 
provisions of the Fair Labor Standard Act are entitled to overtime pay or compensatory 
time as described below: 
 

 Employees must receive prior approval from the Administrative Judge or 
his/her designee or Clerk of Court or his/her designee. 

 
 Employees will be compensated at straight-time rates for all hours in 

active pay status, except that all hours in paid status in excess of 40 
hours in any work week will be compensated at a rate of time and one-
half.  Payment in cash will be made for any overtime due at the time of 
separation from City service. 



 
13 

 

 
 In lieu of cash payment, the employee may request to be compensated 

for overtime by compensatory time off in accordance with the law.  Such 
compensatory time off will be equal to 1.5 hours for each hour overtime 
compensation to which the employee is entitled.  All requests for 
compensatory time are subject to approval of the department head.  Any 
compensatory time that is used by an employee must be taken at a time 
mutually agreeable to the supervisor and the employee. 

 
 Employees can accumulate up to 80 hours of compensatory time.  When 

an employee has 80 hours of accumulated compensatory time, all further 
overtime will be paid in cash. 

 
 Compensatory time will be submitted on the regular payroll sheet 

detailing the time earned and taken. 
 
Section 2.  Overtime Pay and Compensatory Time - Exempt Employees 
 
Employees exempt under the Fair Labor Standard Act are not entitled to overtime pay 
but are entitled to compensatory time as described below: 
 

 Employees must receive prior approval from the Administrative Judge or 
his/her designee or Clerk of Court or his/her designee. 

 
 Compensatory time will be earned for approved work that exceeds the 

40 hour work week and such employees may receive said compensatory 
time at the rate of one hour for each hour worked in excess of 40 hours 
per week. 

 
 The maximum accrual of compensatory time is 80 hours. 

 
 Compensatory time must be used in minimum increments of one hour 

and maximum increments of 16 hours. 
 

 At no time will compensatory time be converted to any other form of 
leave or compensation. 

 
 Compensatory time must be listed on the regular payroll sheet detailing 

the time earned and taken. 

Policy 30.  Special Leave 
 
The Administrative Judge or his/her designee or the Clerk of Court or his/her designee, may 
authorize special leave of absence, with or without pay, for purposes beneficial to the 
employee and/or the Court or Clerk of Court. 
 

A. Jury Service Leave 
An employee, while serving on a jury in any court of record in Delaware County, the 
State of Ohio, or any adjoining county, will be paid his/her regular salary for each 



 
14 

 

workday during the period of time so served.  Time so served will be deemed active 
and continued service for all purposes.  All jury fees received from the court where the 
jury was seated will be assigned to the City of Delaware and submitted to the 
Administrative Judge or his/her designee or the Clerk of Court or his/her designee, to 
be forwarded to the City Finance Director. 

 
B. Court Leave 

 
Time off with pay will be allowed for work-related incidents where an employee is 
subpoenaed as a witness in civil matters in any court of record in Delaware County, 
State of Ohio, or any adjoining county.  All witness fees will be assigned to the City of 
Delaware and submitted to the Administrative Judge or his/her designee or the Clerk 
of Court or his/her designee, to be forwarded to the City Finance Director. 

Policy 31.  Family and Medical Leave Act  
 
The Family and Medical Leave Act policies in the City of Delaware’s Employment Handbook 
apply to the employees of both the Court and the Clerk of Court. 

Policy 32.  Parks and Recreation Credit 
 
The City will provide each employee with a credit to be applied to a City Pool membership, 
City Golf Course membership or punch-card, or City rentals (shelters or Hilborn Room).  The 
amount of the credit is $60.00. This membership is defined and regulated by the Recreation 
Services Department and employees must abide by the stipulations set forth by the 
department both in definition and restrictions.  This credit amount is fixed, regardless of 
changes in membership fees that may occur.  In addition, the City will provide to each 
member a 20% discount on all individual registrations for City recreation programs. 

Policy 33.  On-Call Compensation 
 
Both exempt and non-exempt employees of the Clerk of Court will be eligible for on-call 
compensation for weekly periods when assigned the responsibility of responding to law-
enforcement requests during non-scheduled work periods.  Employees assigned to this on-
call status will serve in this posture for weekly time periods as authorized by the Clerk or by 
the Clerk’s designee.  Employees assigned to on-call status will be compensated at a weekly 
rate of between $25 and $50 as determined by the Clerk of Court.  On-call compensation will 
be added to regular and overtime wages earned during the pay period and will be paid as 
taxable income through the bi-weekly payroll process. 

Policy 34.  Salary Ranges 

Each employee is required to pay all required employee contributions to the Ohio Public 
Employees Retirement System (OPERS). 
 
 
 
 
 



 
15 

 

SALARY RANGES - MUNICIPAL COURT: 

JOB TITLE HOURLY WAGE ANNUAL SALARY 

MINIMUM MAXIMUM MINIMUM MAXIMUM 

OFFICE ASSISTANT $12.37 $20 $25,730 $41,600 

ADMINISTRATIVE ASSISTANT $14.53 $20 $30,222 $41,600 

BAILIFF/SECURITY OFFICER $16.28 $27 $33,662 $56,160 

COMMUNITY CONTROL  OFFICER $16.35 $28 $34,000 $58,240 

OVI DOCKET COORDINATOR/  
COMMUNITY CONTROL OFFICER 

$16.35 $28 $34,000 $58,240 

MISSION DOCKET COORDINATOR/  
COMMUNITY CONTROL OFFICER* 

$16.35 $28 $34,000 $58,240 

VETERAN MENTOR COORDINATOR     $16        $24    $33,280    $49,920 

*  ASSIGNMENT ADMINISTRATOR $18.81 $32 $39,125 $66,560 

ASSIGNMENT COMMISSIONER/JURY COMMISSIONER $18.81 $28 $39,125 $58,240 

ADMIN.  ASSISTANT/JURY COMMISSIONER $18.81 $28 $39,125 $58,240 

CHIEF COMMUNITY CONTROL OFFICER $20.74 $32 $43,139 $66,560 

DEPUTY CHIEF COMMUNITY CONTROL OFFICER $20.74 $32 $43,139 $66,560 

*  MAGISTRATE $34.67 $56 $72,114 $116,480 

  *  Revised Nov. 2019 
        

SALARY RANGES - CLERK OF COURT: 

1901.31(H) Deputy Clerks of a municipal court other than the Carroll County Municipal Court 
may be appointed by the Clerk and shall receive the compensation, payable in either 
biweekly instalments or semi-monthly instalments, as determined by the payroll administrator, 
out of the City Treasury, that the Clerk may prescribe, except that the compensation of any 
Deputy Clerk of a county-operated municipal court shall be paid out of the treasury of the 
county in which the Court is located. The Judge of the Carroll County Municipal Court may 
appoint Deputy Clerks for the Court, and the Deputy Clerks shall receive the compensation, 
payable in biweekly instalments out of the county treasury, that the Judge may prescribe. 
Each Deputy Clerk shall take an oath of office before entering upon the duties of the Deputy 
Clerk’s office and, when so qualified, may perform the duties appertaining to the office of the 
Clerk. The Clerk may require any of the Deputy Clerks to give bond of not less than three 
thousand dollars, conditioned for the faithful performance of the Deputy Clerk’s duties. 

Policy 35.  Permanent Part-Time Employees 
 
Permanent part-time employees will receive the following wages and benefits: 
 



 
16 

 

 
Section 1.  Wages   
 

 Permanent part-time employees will be paid on an hourly basis in 
accordance with the table in Policy 34 above. 

 
Section 2.  Benefits 
 

A. Permanent part-time employees will accrue Universal Leave on a 
prorated basis of 4.6 hours for every eighty hours worked in a pay 
period. 

 
B. Permanent part-time employees are eligible for holiday pay if they work a 

major holiday, which includes the following:  Memorial Day, July 4, Labor 
Day, Thanksgiving, Christmas, and New Year’s Day.  Holiday Pay is 
defined as one and one-half times the permanent part-time employee’s 
regular hourly rate. 

 
C. Overtime will be compensated at straight time rates for all hours in paid 

status, except that all hours in paid status in excess of 40 hours in any 
work week will be compensated for a rate of time and one-half. 

 
D. The permanent part-time employee is responsible for payment of the 

employee contribution for the State of Ohio Retirement System. 
 

E. Upon termination of employment with the Court or Clerk of Court, 
permanent part-time employees will not receive pay-out for any leave 
accumulated. 

 
F. If a permanent part-time employee becomes full time with the Court or 

Clerk of Court, any accumulated Universal Leave will be added to the 
permanent part-time employee’s sick leave balance. 

Policy 37.  Intermittent Part-Time/Seasonal Employees 
 
Intermittent part-time and seasonal employees will receive the following wages and benefits: 
 

Section 1.  Wages 
 

Intermittent part-time and seasonal employees will be paid on an hourly basis in 
accordance with the table in Policy 35 above. 

 
Section 2.  Benefits 
 

Intermittent part-time and seasonal employees are not eligible for benefits, but 
the intermittent part-time, and/or seasonal employee is responsible for payment 
of the employee contribution for the State of Ohio Retirement System. 



 
17 

 

 

Receipt and Acknowledgment Form 
 
The employee policy manual and employee benefits manual include important information 
about employment at the Delaware Municipal Court and the Clerk of Court’s office, and I 
understand that I should consult my immediate supervisor regarding any questions that are 
not answered in those documents.  If my supervisor cannot answer my question, I should 
consult with the Administrative Judge or his/her designee or the Clerk of Court or his/her 
designee. 
 
I have entered into my employment relationship with the Delaware Municipal Court or the 
Clerk of Court voluntarily and I acknowledge that there is no specified length of employment.  
Accordingly, the Delaware Municipal Court, the Clerk of Court, or I may terminate the 
relationship at will, with or without cause, at any time. 
 
Because the information, policies, and benefits described here are necessarily subject to 
change, I acknowledge that revisions to the administrative policy manual and the employee-
benefits manual may occur, though I also understand that my position is and will remain an 
employment-at-will position.  Any changes in the manuals will be communicated through 
official notices, and I understand that that revised information may supersede, modify, or 
eliminate existing policies.  Only the Administrative Judge or Clerk of Court of the Delaware 
Municipal Court has the ability to adopt any revisions to the policies in this handbook. 
 
Furthermore, I acknowledge that this handbook is neither a contract of employment nor a 
legal document.  I have received the administrative policy manual and the employee-benefits 
manual, and I understand that it is my responsibility to read and to comply with the policies 
contained in these documents as well as any revisions made to them later. 
 
 
 
 
              
Employee's Signature     Date 
 
 
 
 
       
Employee’s Name (Please Print) 
 
 
 



  FACT SHEET 
 
 
AGENDA ITEM NO:  19    DATE:   11/25/2019  
 
ORDINANCE NO: 19-71    RESOLUTION NO: 
 
READING: SECOND     PUBLIC HEARING:  NO 
 
 
TO:  Mayor and Members of City Council  
 
FROM: R. Thomas Homan, City Manager 
 
VIA:  Jessica Feller, Human Resource Manager  
 
 
TITLE OF PROPOSED ORDINANCE/RESOLUTION:  
AN ORDINANCE AMENDING ORDINANCE NO. 18-111 ESTABLISHING THE PAY 
AND BENEFITS FOR VARIOUS PART-TIME AND INTERMITTENT/SEASONAL 
EMPLOYEES OF THE CITY OF DELAWARE AND DECLARING AN EMERGENCY. 
 
BACKGROUND: 
The proposed 2020 budget reflects an increase in wages by 3% for all permanent 
part-time, part-time fire fighter/paramedic and intermittent part-time/seasonal 
positions.   
 
REASON WHY LEGISLATION IS NEEDED: 
Legislation is necessary in order to process payroll changes. 
 
COMMITTEE RECOMMENDATION: 
N/A 
 
FISCAL IMPACT(S): 
3 percent increase for all permanent part-time, part-time fire fighter/paramedic 
and intermittent part-time/seasonal positions.   
 
POLICY CHANGES: 
N/A 
 
PRESENTER(S): 



Jessica Feller, Human Resource Manager 
 
RECOMMENDATION: 
Approval   
   
ATTACHMENT(S) 
N/A 



ORDINANCE NO. 19-71 
 

AN ORDINANCE AMENDING ORDINANCE NO. 18-111 
ESTABLISHING THE PAY AND BENEFITS FOR 
VARIOUS PART-TIME AND INTERMITTENT, AND 
SEASONAL EMPLOYEES OF THE CITY OF DELAWARE. 

 
WHEREAS, the City hires various part-time, intermittent/seasonal 

employees that can be divided into two classifications, to wit: permanent part- 
time and intermittent seasonal, and 

 
WHEREAS, Section 155.09, Appointment Status, of the Codified 

Ordinances of the City of Delaware defines part-time employment, and 
Ordinance No. 18-111 established pay and benefits for various part-time 
employees of the City, and 

 
WHEREAS, it is necessary to clarify the wages and benefits for each 

classification of part-time and intermittent/seasonal employees. 
 

NOW THEREFORE, BE IT ORDAINED by the Council of the City of 
Delaware, State of Ohio: 

 
SECTION 1. Ordinance No. 18-111 is hereby amended to read as follows: 

 
A. Effective December 26, 2018 25, 2019 permanent part-time 

employees shall receive the following wages and benefits: 
 

1. Wages. Permanent  part-time  employees  shall  be paid on an 
hourly basis in accordance with the following table: 

 
Pay Grade STEP 1 STEP 2 STEP 3 STEP 4 STEP 5 

PT 1 9.52 9.87 10.28 10.50 10.70 
PT 2 14.36 14.91 15.53 16.16 16.78 
PT 3 15.10 15.70 16.28 16.98 17.66 
PT 4 17.39 18.09 18.82 19.57 20.35 
PT 5 20.15 20.78 21.41 22.08 22.73 
PT 6 23.01 23.69 24.32 25.06 25.80 

 
 

PAY GRADE POSITION 
PT 1…………………………………. Facility Maintenance Technician I, 

FILE CLERK  
  PT 2…………………………………. Support Services Aide,  Parking 

 Control Officer 
PT 3…………………………………. Facility Maintenance Technician II 
 Clerical Specialist, Records Clerk, 
 Records Analyst, Front Counter 
 Clerk, Help-Desk Technician 
PT 4…………………………………. Communications Specialist,   



  Paralegal, Laborer 
  PT 5…………………………………. Investigator/Diversion 

   Manager, Code Enforcement   
  Officer 
PT 6…………………………………. Human Resource Coordinator 

 
2. Benefits.  Benefits for permanent part-time are as follows: 

(a) Employees will accrue Universal Leave on a prorated basis 
of 4.6 hours for every eighty hours worked in a pay period. 

(b) Employees are eligible for holiday pay if they work a major 
holiday which includes the following:  Christmas, Labor 
Day, Memorial Day, July 4, New Year's Day and 
Thanksgiving. Holiday Pay is defined as one and one half 
times the employee’s regular hourly rate. 

(c) Overtime shall be compensated at straight time rates for all 
hours in paid status, except that all hours in paid status in 
excess of 40 hours in any work week shall be compensated 
for a rate of time and one half. 

(d) The employee shall be responsible for payment of the 
employee contribution for the State of Ohio Retirement 
System. 

(e) Upon termination of employment with the City employees 
will not receive pay-out for any leave accumulated. 

(f) If an employee becomes full time with the City, any 
accumulated Universal Leave will be added to the 
employee’s sick leave balance. 

(g) Employees shall receive a Parks and Recreation Credit to 
be applied to a Jack Florance Pool membership, City Golf 
Course membership or punch-card, or City rentals 
(shelters or HIlborn Room). The amount of the credit shall 
be $60.00. Employees shall abide by the stipulations set 
forth by the managing organization both in definition and 
restrictions. This credit amount is fixed, regardless of 
changes in membership fees that may occur. Employees 
will also receive a 20% discount on all individual 
registrations for City recreation programs. Credits may not 
be used to purchase memberships or to secure rentals 
beyond the calendar year for which it is issued. Credits will 
not be re-issued if lost or stolen and must be surrendered 
at the time of registration/purchase.   Credits are non-
transferrable. 

 
B. Effective December 26, 2018 25, 2019 permanent part-time 

firefighters shall be paid on an hourly basis in accordance with the 
following table: 

 
 
 
 
 



PAY GRADE POSITION WAGE 

PTFF1 Firefighter/EMT 13.66/hour 

PTFF2 Firefighter/Paramedic 15.76/hour 
 

1. Benefits. Benefits for permanent part-time firefighters are as 
follows: 

 
(a) The City will provide $10,000 of life insurance. 
(b) Overtime shall be compensated at straight time rates for all 

hours in paid status, except that all hours in paid status in 
excess of 212 hours in any 28 day pay cycle shall be 
compensated for a rate of time and one half. 

(c) The employee will be responsible for payment of the 
employee contribution to their pension system. 

(d) Employees are eligible for holiday pay if they work a major 
holiday which includes the following:  Christmas, Labor 
Day, Memorial Day, July 4, New Year's Day and 
Thanksgiving. Holiday pay is defined as one and one half 
times the employee’s regular hourly rate. 

(e) Permanent part-time firefighters may not exceed 1500 
hours worked in a calendar year. 

(g)    Employees shall receive a Parks and Recreation Credit to be 
applied to a Jack Florance Pool membership, City Golf 
Course membership or punch-card, or City rentals 
(shelters or HIlborn Room). The amount of the credit shall 
be $60.00. Employees shall abide by the stipulations set 
forth by the managing organization both in definition and 
restrictions. This credit amount is fixed, regardless of 
changes in membership fees that may occur. Employees 
will also receive a 20% discount on all individual 
registrations for City recreation programs. Credits may not 
be used to purchase memberships or to secure rentals 
beyond the calendar year for which it is issued. Credits will 
not be re-issued if lost or stolen and must be surrendered 
at the time of registration/purchase.   Credits are non-
transferrable. 

 
C. Effective December 26, 2018 25, 2019 intermittent part-

time/seasonal employees shall receive the following wages and 
benefits: 

 
1. Wages. Intermittent part-time/seasonal employees shall be 

paid on an hourly basis in accordance with the following table: 
 
 
 
 
 



 
Pay 
Grade Position Step 1 Step 2 Step 3 
SL1 Cashier  $   10.30   $   10.82   $   11.33  
SL2 Laborer  $   11.85   $   12.88   $   13.91  
SL3 Intern  $   11.85   $   13.91   $   15.97  

SL4 
Clubhouse 
Manager  $   14.42   $   15.45   $   16.48  

 
 

For intermittent/seasonal positions not listed above, the wages shall be 
the entry-level pay rate reflected in the applicable pay plan for the 
equivalent permanent full-time position or a pay rate established by the 
City Manager. 

 
2. Benefits. Intermittent /seasonal employees are not eligible  for 

benefits, except the following: 
 

(a) The employee shall be responsible for payment of the 
employee contribution for the State of Ohio Retirement 
System. 

 
SECTION 2.  Existing Ordinance No. 18-111 is hereby repealed. 

 
SECTION 3. This Council finds and determines that all formal actions of 

this Council and any of its committees concerning and relating to the passage of 
this Ordinance were taken in an open meeting of this Council, and that all 
deliberations of this Council and any of its committees that resulted in those 
formal actions were in meetings open to the public, all in compliance with the 
law including Section 121.22 of the Revised Code. 

 
SECTION 4.  EMERGENCY CLAUSE.  This Ordinance is declared to be 

an emergency measure necessary for the immediate preservation of the public 
peace, property, health, safety and welfare of the City. The emergency clause is 
required to enact the changes effective on December 25, 2019. Therefore this 
Ordinance shall be in full force and effect immediately upon its passage. 

 
EMERGENCY CLAUSE: YEAS         NAYS             

ABSTAIN    
 
 

PASSED:   , 2019 YEAS NAYS    
ABSTAIN    

 
 
ATTEST:       

CITY CLERK MAYOR 



TO: Members of City Council

FROM: Dean Stelzer, Finance Director

DATE: November 19, 2019

Reports Included

Page                     Reports                   Purpose

2 Revenues by Source This summary compares year-to-date revenues for 2019 to 2018 by source.

3  General Fund Summary of General Fund budgeted revenues, expenditures and fund 

  balance.

4 Other  Operating Funds Summary of budgeted revenues, expenditures, & fund balances for 

   non-general fund operating funds.

5 Other Funds Other non-operating funds revenues, expenditures and fund balance.

6 Insurance Summary of the City's self-funded health insurance costs with 

  comparisons to last year.

7 Income Tax Monthly income tax collections for last three years.  Also includes 

  tax collection projections for remainder of the year.

YTD 2019 Budget Supplementals

19-03 $150,000 - Donation Fund - Hayes Statue 

19-04 $28,000  -  CIP Fund Electric Parking System

19-15 $1,150,000 - CIP E. William St. Grant Project

19-16 $160,000 - CIP FUND Annex Improvements

19-17  $650,000 - General Fund Transfers to CIP and SMR

19-39 $10,000 - Gen Fund Regional Housing Study

19-45 $6,000 - Dev Res Fund Incentive Grant

19-55 $44,000 - Parks Master Plan

19-57 $100,000 - Cemetery Design and Maintenance

OCTOBER FINANCE REPORT



FINANCE DIRECTOR'S REPORT
REVENUES BY SOURCE

October 31, 2019
Revenues Revenues  
@ 10/31/19 @ 10/31/18 % Change

TAXES
Income Tax 24,726,961$         23,887,318$         3.52%

 Property Tax 2,166,676             2,069,446             4.70%
Local Government Fund 566,440                503,543                12.49%
Hotel/Motel Tax 66,423                  75,614                  -12.16%
Gasoline Taxes 1,158,444             986,491                17.43%
License Plate Tax 574,207                571,390                0.49%

 
FEES  

Franchise Fee (cable tv) 313,371$              307,367$              1.95%
Parking Meter & Lot Fees 67,328                  69,675                  -3.37%
Fines/Forfeitures/Court Diversion Fees 94,614                  126,504                -25.21%
Impact Fees 1,197,413             838,561                42.79%
Airport - Fuel 605,293                574,404                5.38%
Cemetery 139,182                113,991                22.10%
Golf Course 168,039                158,065                6.31%

REIMBURSEMENTS
Engineering Fees 322,770$              1,294,340$           -75.06%
Fire/EMS Reimbursement 188,718                684,303                -72.42%
Prosecutor Reimbursements 242,185                190,870                26.88%
Building Permits and Fees 1,115,789             914,861                21.96%

 
UTILITY CHARGES   

Water  -  Meter Charges 4,778,980$           4,678,056$           2.16%
           -  Capacity Fees 3,551,258             2,260,904             57.07%
Sewer  -  Meter Charges 5,740,509             5,595,952             2.58%
           -  Capacity Fees 3,397,935             2,174,280             56.28%
Refuse 2,966,411             2,896,851             2.40%
Storm Sewer 715,608                711,338                0.60%

MUNICIPAL COURT REVENUES 2,721,592$           2,546,918$           6.86%
 

2



FINANCE DIRECTOR'S REPORT
GENERAL FUND REVENUES

October 31, 2019
October 83.3% of year Comparative

Revenues 2019 Revenues As Revenues % Change
10/31/2019 Budget % of Budget 10/31/2018 YTD

GENERAL FUND
Property Tax 1,658,403 1,629,406 101.78% 1,593,916 4.05%

City Income Tax 13,368,259 15,645,000 85.45% 12,916,648 3.50%

Other Taxes 997 0 0.00% 975 2.26%

Local Government Fund 566,440 618,976 91.51% 503,543 12.49%

Fines and Forfeitures 94,614 148,000 63.93% 126,504 (25.21%)

Engineering Fees 322,770 1,200,000 26.90% 1,294,340 (75.06%)

Prosecutor Contracts 242,185 285,000 84.98% 190,870 26.88%

Parking Meters 28,052 38,000 73.82% 33,541 (16.37%)

Other Fees and Contracts 34,515 0 0.00% 36,395 (5.17%)

Liquor Permits 48,465 45,000 107.70% 43,024 12.65%

Franchise Fees 313,371 405,000 77.38% 307,367 1.95%

Licenses & Permits 1,115,789 830,000 134.43% 914,861 21.96%

Investment Income 733,050 650,000 112.78% 558,165 31.33%

Miscellaneous 175,574 110,000 159.61% 60,070 192.28%

Reimbursements 196,040 200,000 98.02% 187,665 4.46%

Transfers 1,701,907 1,920,000 88.64% 1,636,940 3.97%

TOTAL 20,600,431 23,724,382 86.83% 20,404,824 0.96%

GENERAL FUND EXPENDITURES 
Comparative

Expenses 2019 Expenses As Expenses % Change
10/31/2019 Budget % of Budget 10/31/2018 YTD

GENERAL FUND
City Council 134,206 184,347 72.80% 123,614 8.57%

City Manager 644,183 823,711 78.20% 556,576 15.74%

Human Resources 321,113 358,692 89.52% 236,174 35.96%

Economic Development 373,565 474,137 78.79% 323,924 15.32%

Legal Affairs/Prosecution 658,313 842,343 78.15% 626,294 5.11%

Finance 1,242,727 1,485,683 83.65% 1,186,862 4.71%

Income Tax Refunds 734,791 450,000 163.29% 440,999 66.62%

General Administration 5,540,557 6,090,255 90.97% 5,651,254 (1.96%)

Advance Payback (1,236,286)  

Risk Management 275,307 349,100 78.86% 283,975 (3.05%)

Police 7,157,894 9,105,357 78.61% 6,752,245 6.01%

Planning 949,915 1,268,512 74.88% 938,047 1.27%

Engineering 1,360,030 1,988,887 68.38% 1,421,930 (4.35%)

City Buildings 422,623 554,958 76.15% 392,587 7.65%

TOTAL 18,578,938 23,975,982 77.49% 18,934,481 (1.88%)

General Fund Beginning Balance January 1, 2019 5,184,249           

 2019 General Fund Revenues 20,600,431       

 2019 General Fund Expenditures (18,578,938)      

 Advances to Other Funds -                      

 Outstanding Encumbrances 10/31/19 (631,632)            

General Fund Ending Fund Balance Oct, 31, 2019 6,574,110         

3



FINANCE DIRECTOR'S REPORT
OTHER OPERATING FUNDs

October 31, 2019
 

REVENUES
Comparative

Revenues 2019 Revenues As Revenues % Change
10/31/2019 Budget % of Budget 10/31/2018 YTD

STREET MAINTENANCE & REPAIR 3,177,348 3,231,000 98.34% 2,429,214 30.80%

STORM SEWER 716,711 863,000 83.05% 712,400 0.61%

PARKS AND RECREATION 1,354,512 1,571,500 86.19% 1,077,811 25.67%

CEMETERY 222,516 256,000 86.92% 193,161 15.20%

AIRPORT OPERATIONS 768,406 924,840 83.09% 724,344 6.08%

FIRE/EMS INCOME TAX 9,804,529 11,866,361 82.62% 9,963,506 (1.60%)

MUNICIPAL COURT 2,420,608 2,744,000 88.21% 2,574,676 (5.98%)

GOLF COURSE 168,039 183,500 91.57% 158,065 6.31%

WATER 5,163,403 6,536,132 79.00% 4,946,882 4.38%

SEWER 6,202,669 7,407,971 83.73% 5,965,162 3.98%

REFUSE 3,040,702 3,672,095 82.81% 2,966,752 2.49%

GARAGE ROTARY 718,600 718,600 100.00% 490,701 46.44%

INFORMATION TECH. ROTARY 1,076,223 1,076,017 100.02% 807,013 33.36%

TOTAL 34,834,266 41,051,016 84.86% 33,009,687 5.53%

 

 EXPENDITURES
Comparative

Expenditures 2019 Expenses As Expenses % Change
10/31/2019 Budget % of Budget 10/31/2018 YTD

STREET MAINTENANCE & REPAIR 2,639,459 3,313,335 79.66% 2,474,947 6.65%

STORM SEWER 522,579 1,380,464 37.86% 387,089 35.00%

PARKS AND RECREATION 1,150,480 1,592,532 72.24% 111,387 932.87%

CEMETERY 209,623 315,113 66.52% 195,009 7.49%

AIRPORT OPERATIONS 814,465 974,226 83.60% 719,355 13.22%

FIRE/EMS INCOME TAX 9,358,636 11,182,079 83.69% 9,439,528 (0.86%)

MUNICIPAL COURT 2,192,139 2,734,190 80.18% 2,129,830 2.93%

GOLF COURSE 99,175 183,401 54.08% 154,162 (35.67%)

WATER OPERATIONS 4,432,489 6,336,213 69.95% 4,436,009 (0.08%)

SEWER OPERATIONS 4,830,367 7,075,047 68.27% 4,493,538 7.50%

REFUSE 2,939,980 3,813,216 77.10% 4,312,097 (31.82%)

GARAGE ROTARY 493,290 707,989 69.67% 502,631 (1.86%)

INFORMATION TECH. ROTARY 1,047,198 1,384,166 75.66% 818,746 27.90%

TOTAL 30,729,880 40,991,971 74.97% 30,174,328 1.84%

 

FUND BALANCES
Fund Fund

Balance Revenues Expenditures Outstanding Balance
1/1/2019 10/31/2019 10/31/2019 Encumb. 10/31/2019

STREET MAINTENANCE & REPAIR 461,581 3,177,348 2,639,459 773,838 225,632

STORM SEWER 1,868,735 716,711 522,579 126,196 1,936,671

PARKS AND RECREATION 218,433 1,354,512 1,150,480 194,900 227,565

CEMETERY 265,769 222,516 209,623 79,634 199,028

AIRPORT OPERATIONS 272,195 768,406 814,465 29,231 196,905

FIRE/EMS INCOME TAX 9,031,814 9,804,529 9,358,636 193,496 9,284,211

MUNICIPAL COURT 2,744,978 2,420,608 2,192,139 5,903 2,967,544

GOLF COURSE 39,762 168,039 99,175 2,872 105,754

WATER OPERATIONS 1,219,585 5,163,403 4,432,489 198,643 1,751,856

SEWER OPERATIONS 3,134,518 6,202,669 4,830,367 195,231 4,311,589

REFUSE 909,634 3,040,702 2,939,980 518,090 492,266

GARAGE ROTARY 385,951 718,600 493,290 38,951 572,310

INFORMATION TECH. ROTARY 864,189 1,076,223 1,047,198 49,914 843,300

TOTAL 21,417,144 34,834,266 30,729,880 2,406,899 23,114,6314



FINANCE DIRECTOR'S REPORT
OTHER FUND REVENUES/EXPENSES/FUND BALANCE

October 31, 2019
Beginning Ending

Fund Revenues Expenses Outstanding Fund
Balance 10/31/2019 10/31/2019 Encumbrances Balance

STATE HIGHWAY IMPROVEMENT 219,665 106,877 3,424 73 323,045

LICENSE FEE 238,083 377,259 77,083 551,105 (12,846)

TREE FUND 156,124 12,737 50,924 12,350 105,587

AIRPORT 2000 T-HANGAR 173,352 83,567 36,291 0 220,628

RECREATION FACILITIES TAX 4,583,228 2,093,336 1,531,932 0 5,144,632

AIRPORT TIF 109,485 27,251 0 78 136,658

GLENN RD BRIDGE TIF 2,878,284 994,365 1,659,748 79,665 2,133,236

SKY CLIMBER/V&P TIF 0 48,300 48,300 0 0

MILL RUN TIF 0 151,840 151,840 0 0

COURT IDIAM 30,321 26,638 35,260 4,656 17,043

DRUG ENFORCEMENT 57,260 11,165 18,106 0 50,319

COURT ALCOHOL TREATMENT 546,244 55,836 15,886 0 586,194

OMVI ENFORCEMENT/EDUCATION 6,468 1,499 3,471 0 4,496

POLICE JUDGEMENT 121,012 16,255 99,368 608 37,291

PARK DEVELOPMENT 184,116 0 0 0 184,116

COMPUTER LEGAL RESEARCH 714,293 224,786 174,275 51,804 713,000

COURT SPECIAL PROJECTS 752,409 227,732 259,117 4,903 716,121

PROBATION SERVICES 572,555 264,493 236,535 27,352 573,161

POLICE/FIRE DISABILITY 0 508,273 508,273 0 0

COMMUNITY PROMOTION FUND 69,220 66,423 88,985 26,206 20,452

CDBG GRANT 2,530 0 129,249 0 (126,719)

ED REVOLVING LOAN 270,186 88,085 109,687 27,524 221,060

HOUSING GRANT PROGRAM INCOME 0 8,150 0 0 8,150

CHIP GRANT 0 0 0 0 0

GENERAL BOND RETIREMENT 336,521 962,718 679,595 1,412 618,232

PARK IMPROV BONDS FUND 111,273 1,108,532 357,701 0 862,104

SE HIGHLAND SEWER BOND FUND 83,995 835,458 937,235 0 (17,782)

CAPITAL IMPROVEMENT 2,037,627 6,004,728 3,432,412 1,769,452 2,840,491

POINT PROJECT 565,337 462,645 347,074 2,222,047 (1,541,139)

FAA AIRPORT GRANT 48,413 0 0 0 48,413

FAA AIRPORT AIP GRANT 47,948 0 0 81,360 (33,412)

EQUIPMENT REPLACEMENT 158,550 500,000 347,787 254,025 56,738

PARK IMPACT FEE 1,455,146 644,972 74,397 99,585 1,926,136

POLICE IMPACT FEE 354,038 123,727 7,813 4,177 465,775

FIRE IMPACT FEE 397,705 221,907 79,954 6,204 533,454

MUNICIPAL SERVICES IMPACT FEE 361,999 258,871 159,076 227 461,567

GLENN ROAD CONSTRUCTION FUNDS 3,112,362 9,236,974 10,443,243 14,010 1,892,083

PARKING LOTS 45,944 39,276 29,489 12,188 43,543

WATER CIP 12,555,562 4,519,179 2,870,238 127,290 14,077,213

SEWER CIP 8,821,116 17,876,552 15,835,418 265,628 10,596,622

SELF INSURANCE 1,508,194 6,035,118 5,983,665 15,526 1,544,121

WORKERS COMP RESERVE 2,628,786 402,069 239,096 5,000 2,786,759

FIRE DONATION 6,345 150 5,462 0 1,033

PARK DONATION 16,410 111,724 107,883 27,276 (7,025)

POLICE DONATION 7,809 1,710 182 0 9,337

MAYOR'S DONATION 1,202 1,050 826 261 1,165

PROJECT TRUST 693,554 322,092 4,120 5,880 1,005,646

UNCLAIMED FUNDS 85,371 24,794 5,251 0 104,914

DEVELOPMENT RESERVE FUND 964,886 0 6,000 0 958,886

RESERVE ACCOUNT FUND 1,163,864 0 0 0 1,163,864

BERKSHIRE JEDD FUND 57,099 343,214 373,967 134,026 (107,680)

CEMETERY PERPETUAL CARE FUND 34,191 609 690 0 34,110

STATE PATROL TRANSFER 9,699 51,384 61,084 0 (1)

STATE BUILDING PERMIT FEES 466 13,965 13,098 0 1,333
PERFORMANCE BOND FUND 667,238 359,928 330,238 9,000 687,928

TOTAL 50,023,485 55,858,213 47,970,748 5,840,898 52,070,052

5



City of Delaware
      Employee Health Insurance Plan

 October 31, 2019
 

Oct YTD 2019 % of YTD % Change
Account 2019 2019 Budget Budget 2018 2018-19

Life Insurance 2,156$            21,291$          27,000$          78.9% 7,029$            202.9%

 

Insurance Opt-Out 2,095               21,650            30,500            71.0% 22,650            -4.4%

Preventative Care 1,462               17,966            55,000            32.7% 28,688            -37.4%

Vision Coverage 2,519               22,138            28,500            77.7% 26,738            0.0%

Administrative Fees

Excise Tax -                   2,891               5,000               0.0% 2,820               0.0%

 TPA Fees 8,329               81,845            99,500            82.3% 78,329            4.5%

 PPO Fees 3,174               31,556            40,000            78.9% 30,569            3.2%
 Broker Fees 425                  5,626               6,500               86.6% 5,043               0.0%

  Total Admin 11,928            121,918          151,000          80.7% 116,761          4.4%
 

Stop Loss Insurance 71,730            709,905          795,000          89.3% 615,239          15.4%

Claims   

 Medical 275,152          3,852,473       4,250,000       90.6% 3,281,302       17.4%

 Dental 28,154            223,109          285,000          78.3% 211,423          5.5%
 Prescription 82,751            993,214          850,000          116.8% 755,450          31.5%

  Total Claims 386,057          5,068,796       5,385,000       94.1% 4,248,175       19.3%

Total Costs 477,947          5,983,664       6,472,000       92.5% 5,065,280       18.1%

Employee Payment 78,891            840,444          893,568          94.1% 780,234          

Reimbursements 52,940            353,201          500,000          70.6% 713,146           

NET PLAN COSTS 346,116$        4,790,019$    5,078,432$    94.3% 3,571,900$    34.1%

6



MONTHLY INCOME TAX REVENUES 
2017-2019

 2017    2018    2019   

% OF % OF % OF

W/H PERSONAL BUSINESS TOTAL ACTUAL W/H PERSONAL BUSINESS TOTAL ACTUAL W/H PERSONAL BUSINESS TOTAL BUDGET
               

JANUARY 1,794,272 205,680 204,662 2,204,614 1,741,914 440,952 56,565 2,239,431 1,570,681 603,605 80,207 2,254,493

FEBRUARY 1,304,987 327,145 95,437 1,727,569 1,389,048 337,974 56,041 1,783,063 1,616,403 398,566 112,062 2,127,031

MARCH 1,175,241 625,299 195,522 1,996,062 1,240,476 682,589 192,027 2,115,092 1,308,699 737,799 133,499 2,179,997

APRIL 1,786,686 2,352,889 1,092,340 5,231,915 1,949,558 2,433,093 806,548 5,189,199 1,941,656 2,595,734 781,735 5,319,125

MAY 1,388,195 185,269 50,869 1,624,333 1,387,867 213,714 18,117 1,619,698 1,440,447 242,575 54,049 1,737,071

JUNE 1,284,197 481,309 167,392 1,932,898 1,407,521 622,838 374,208 2,404,567 1,696,517 732,504 153,590 2,582,611

JULY 1,680,268 158,901 62,961 1,902,130 1,718,647 227,721 28,964 1,975,332 1,630,973 329,142 27,910 1,988,025

AUGUST 1,395,822 124,025 26,462 1,546,309 1,363,624 171,517 142,149 1,677,290 1,393,601 220,627 97,863 1,712,091

SEPTEMBER 1,303,188 421,650 287,996 2,012,834 1,648,825 624,312 164,383 2,437,520 1,742,714 764,332 253,449 2,760,495

OCTOBER 1,697,249 257,687 81,440 2,036,376 1,675,716 307,591 462,819 2,446,126 1,688,264 281,632 96,126 2,066,022

SUBTOTAL 14,810,105 5,139,854 2,265,081 22,215,040 85.78% 15,523,196 6,062,301 2,301,821 23,887,318 85.83% 16,029,955 6,906,516 1,790,490 24,726,961 85.45%

NOVEMBER 1,438,751 175,718 30,847 1,645,316 1,442,983 252,947 59,435 1,755,365

DECEMBER 1,419,960 388,069 229,805 2,037,834 1,688,530 412,229 85,907 2,186,666  

   

  TOTALS 17,668,816 5,703,641 2,525,732 25,898,189 97.31% 18,654,709 6,727,477 2,447,163 27,829,349 101.43% 16,029,955 6,906,516 1,790,490 24,726,961 85.45%

   

  BUDGETED 26,614,811 27,437,537 28,936,941

Total OCT  % of Annual Projection based on ten year trend!  

Receipts Receipts  Collections OCT 2019 RECEIPTS = $24,726,961 

2009 14,719,896 12,706,855 86.32%

2010 15,185,348 13,050,971 85.94%   HIGH = 84.83% $29,147,628 

2011 17,765,717 15,333,480 86.31%   LOW = 86.49% $28,589,139 

2012 19,658,101 16,905,325 86.00%

2013 20,557,766 17,780,566 86.49%   LAST 3 YR 

2014 21,537,420 18,453,533 85.68%   AVG   = 85.92% $28,778,540 

2015 22,852,743 19,386,788 84.83%

2016 24,975,316 21,516,546 86.15% *2019 BUDGETED RECEIPTS $28,936,941 

2017 25,898,189 22,215,040 85.78%

2018 27,829,349 23,887,318 85.83%

10 Year Avg. 85.93%

7



City Manager Report 20191125 
 

 
 
 
 
TO:  Mayor Riggle and Members of Council 
 
FROM: R. Thomas Homan, City Manager 
 
SUBJECT: Miscellaneous Matters 
 
DATE: November 21, 2019 
 
 
1. Calendar 
 See Attached 
 
2. Per Section 73 Of The City Charter The City Manager Is To Report 

Contract Agreements 
 See Attached 
 
3. Manager Meetings/Events 
 November 6 
  First Commonwealth Bank – Networking and Hors D’oeuvres 
 November 11 
  Council Meeting 
 November 12 
  Economic Outlook Conference for 2020 
 November 18 
  Organizational Meeting 
 November 19 
  SID Discussion with Main Street 
  
  
  



November 
 

 

2019 
  

Sunday Monday Tuesday Wednesday Thursday Friday Saturday 
     1 2 

       

3 4 5 6 7 8 9 
  Public Works/Public 

Utilities Canceled 
Civil Service 
Commission 3pm 
Planning 6:30pm 

   

10 11 12 13 14 15 16 
 Council 7pm  BZA 6:30 pm    

17 18 19 20 21 22 23 
 Organizational Council 

Meeting 7pm 
Parks and Rec Advisory 
Board 6:30 pm 

HPC 6:30 pm 
Canceled 

   

24 25 26 27 28 29 30 
 Council 7pm   Thanksgiving – 

City Offices Closed 
City Offices Closed  

       
       

 



December 
 

 

2019 
  

Sunday Monday Tuesday Wednesday Thursday Friday Saturday 
1 2 3 4 5 6 7 

 Budget Work Session 
6:30 pm 

 Civil Service 3 pm-
cancelled 
Planning 6:30 pm 

Budget Work Session 
6:30 pm 

First Friday – 6 – 9 pm 
 Christmas Tree Lighting 
6:30 pm 

 

8 9 10 11 12 13 14 
Christmas Parade 3pm Council 7 pm  BZA 6 :30 pm Budget Work Session 

6:30 pm if needed 
  

15 16 17 18 19 20 21 
 Parking and Safety 6pm  HPC 6:30 pm Year End Council 

Meeting 7 pm 
  

22 23 24 25 26 27 28 
  City Offices Closed at 

noon 
City Offices Closed    

29 30 31     
       

       
       

 



CONTRACT APPROVAL – November 25, 2019 
 

VENDOR 
 

EXPLANATION OF AGREEMENT 
2019 

AMOUNT 
 

DEPARTMENT 
Carrolls Corporation Off-Site Development Agreement 

between the City of Delaware and 
Carrolls Corp for necessary SR 37 road 
work  

$50,000 
contribution 
for road 
improvement 
from Jackson 
Development 
and Buehlers 
TIF 

Public Works 

City Sourced Acquisition and implementation of City 
Sourced Software 

$5,166.67 IT 

SPS VAR, LLC IBM Service Contract for police dept $3,245 IT 
J Kuhn Enterprises Cheshire Road Multi-Use Path Project $43,503 Parks 
Planning Next Contract amendment for additional 

services relative to Comp Plan 
$9,950 Planning 

 


	01 20191125 council agenda
	CITY COUNCIL CHAMBERS
	CITY COUNCIL CHAMBERS

	02 20191111 council minutes
	03 20190911 bza minutes
	04 20190917 parks minutes
	05 Fact Sheet Res 19-50, berkshire jedd 2 appointment (2)
	06 res 19-50 ,  appt berkshire jedd
	07 Resolution Appointing Board Members
	08 Liquor Permit - Penn Strikes Colony Lanes
	09 colony lanes police report
	10 liquor permit - olivina
	11 olivina police report
	12 fact sheet ord 19-69, budget 2020
	13 2020 Appropriation Ord
	2019 Appropriations 

	15 fact sheet ord 19 -63, evans farm annex
	16 ord 19 -63, evans farm annex
	17 Granting of Prayer-Evans Farm Annex
	18 res 19-37, Evan Farms Res of Services
	19 Fact Sheet ord 19-65, 2019-2344 Enclaves at the Ravines at Olentangy PDP
	20 ord 19-65, 2019-2344 Enclaves at the Ravines of Olentangy PDP
	ORDINANCE NO. 19-65
	ORDINANCE NO. 19-65
	VOTE ON RULE SUSPENSION:   YEAS____NAYS____
	VOTE ON RULE SUSPENSION:   YEAS____NAYS____
	VOTE ON RULE SUSPENSION:   YEAS____NAYS____

	21 Landfill Wells & Monitoring Points
	22 Fact Sheet ord 19-66, 2019-2345 Enclaves at the Ravines at Olentangy PSP
	23 ord 19-66, 2019-2345 Enclaves at the Ravines of Olentangy PSP
	ORDINANCE NO. 19-66
	ORDINANCE NO. 19-66
	VOTE ON RULE SUSPENSION:   YEAS____NAYS____
	VOTE ON RULE SUSPENSION:   YEAS____NAYS____
	VOTE ON RULE SUSPENSION:   YEAS____NAYS____

	24 Landfill Wells & Monitoring Points
	25 2019-3344-2345 enclave at ravines staff report
	26 factsheet ord 19-67, 2019-1578 Couglins Crossing REZ
	27 ord 19-67, 2019-1578 Coughlin Crossing REZ
	ORDINANCE NO. 19-67
	ORDINANCE NO. 19-67
	VOTE ON RULE SUSPENSION:   YEAS____NAYS____
	VOTE ON RULE SUSPENSION:   YEAS____NAYS____

	28 factsheet ord 19-68 , 2019-1579 Couglins Crossing APDP
	29 ord 19-68 , 2019-1579 Coughlin Crossing APDP
	ORDINANCE NO. 19-68
	ORDINANCE NO. 19-68
	VOTE ON RULE SUSPENSION:   YEAS____NAYS____
	VOTE ON RULE SUSPENSION:   YEAS____NAYS____

	30 2019-1578-1579 Nov Submission - coughlin crossing
	31 fact sheet res 19-51, Concord-Scioto Ridge Proximate City
	32 res 19-51 , Concord_Scioto - Cottages at Hyatts - No-Objection for City
	33Concord_Scioto - Cottages at Hyatts - Cvr letter enc. Application to D. Shulman for City approval
	34 Cottages at Hyatts - City of Delaware Approval Page to Application to Add Property
	35 Application to add property concord sciotoa nca
	36 fact sheet ord 19-70, municipal court employees benefits
	37 ord 19-70 , amend municipal court employee benefits 2019
	38 Benefits Manual 2020 - Copy
	39 Benefits Manual 2020
	40 fact sheet ord 19-71 , ppt pay ord
	41 ord 19-71, 2020 PPT and Seasonal ordinance
	42 fact sheet ord 19-72,  mgt pay plan 2020
	43 ord 19-72 , mgt pay plan 2020
	44 20191121 2020 management pay plan_CHANGES ONLY
	45 20191121 2020 management pay plan
	Article I. WAGES AND PAY PLAN
	Section 1.01 Non- Union Employee Pay Plan
	(a) The following pay schedule is to be effective December 26, 2018 25, 2019 and the table below reflects a 2% 3% increase for each step. Step increase shall take effect the first full pay period following the employee’s anniversary date.

	Section 1.02 Department Head Pay Plan
	(a) The following pay schedule for the positions below is to be effective December 26, 2018 25, 2019 and reflects a 2.5% 3% increase to each range.

	Section 1.03 Safety Forces Pay Plan
	(a) Police Captain Wages
	1) Maximum Vacation Accrual
	2) Initial Compensatory Time
	3) Clothing Maintenance Allowance
	4) Uniforms Allowance

	(b) Fire Captain Wages
	The following pay schedule is to be effective December 26, 2018. The table below reflects a 2% increase for each step. Step increase shall take effect the first full pay period following the employee’s anniversary date.
	1) Fire Captain Provision


	Wages and associated benefits for the 40-hour/week Management Fire Captain are identical to those provided to equivalent bargaining unit position. Position is considered overtime eligible. Additionally, incumbent will receive 5% out-of-class pay (base...
	Section 1.04 Overtime Pay & Compensatory Time: Non-Exempt Employees
	(a) For employees who are entitled to overtime pay or compensatory time off under the provisions of the Fair Labor Standard Act they shall be entitled to overtime pay or compensatory time as described below:
	1) Employees shall be compensated at straight-time rates for all hours in active pay status, except that all hours in paid status in excess of forty (40) hours in any workweek shall be compensated for at a rate of time and one-half. Payment in cash sh...
	2) In lieu of cash payment, the employee may request to be compensated for overtime by compensatory time off in accordance with the law. Such compensatory time off shall be equal to one and one-half (1.5) hours for each hour of overtime compensation t...
	3) Employees can accumulate up to eighty (80) hours of compensatory time. When an employee has eighty (80) hours of accumulated compensatory time, all further overtime will be paid in cash.
	4) At no time shall compensatory time be converted to any other form of leave or compensation; except when an employee separates from City service. Upon termination of employment, a non-exempt employee shall be paid for unused compensatory time provid...
	i. The average regular rate (hourly rate) received by such employee during the last 3 years of the employee’s employment, or
	ii. The final regular rate (hourly rate) received by such employee, whichever is higher.

	5) Compensatory time shall be submitted on the regular payroll sheet detailing the time earned and taken.


	Section 1.02 Compensatory Time: Exempt Employees
	(a) Employees exempt under the Fair Labor Standard Act shall not be entitled to overtime pay but shall be entitled to compensatory time as described below:
	1) No existing compensatory time balances will be carried over from an outside position or when the employee transfers in the Management Pay Plan
	2) Compensatory time shall be earned for approved work that exceeds eight (8) hours per day and such employees may receive said compensatory time at the rate of one (1) hour for each hour worked in excess of eight (8) hours per day.
	3) The maximum accrual of compensatory time shall be eighty (80) hours.
	4) Compensatory time must be used in minimum increments of one (1) hour and maximum increments of twenty four (24) hours per pay period.
	5) At no time shall compensatory time be converted to any other form of leave of compensation. Upon termination of employment, an exempt employee is not entitled to payment for unused compensatory time.
	6) Compensatory time shall be submitted on the regular payroll sheet detailing the time earned and taken.



	Article II. ACCRUED TIME AND VARIOUS LEAVES
	Section 2.01 Vacation
	(a) The vacation year for employees shall end at close of business on the last pay period that ends in the month of December.
	(b) Each full-time employee shall accrue vacation leave by pay period at the annual rate of work hours based on years of full-time total service which is established in the schedules contained in Section 3 of this article. Years of total full-time ser...
	(c) The following vacation accrual schedules are established:
	(d) Any vacation balance in excess of the maximum accrual shall become void as of the close of business on the last day of the pay period that ends in the month of December.
	(e) Eligibility
	1) To be eligible for biweekly (pay period) vacation accumulation, an employee must be in paid status for a minimum of 72 hours within that pay period; except that when an employee is required to report for work and does so report and is denied work b...
	2) An employee in full-time status who is to be separated from City service through discharge, resignation, retirement or layoff, and who has unused vacation leave to their credit, shall be paid in a lump sum for such unused vacation leave in lieu of ...
	3) When a member dies while in paid status in the City service, any unused vacation leave to their credit shall be paid in a lump sum to the surviving spouse, or such other person the employee may have designated in writing.
	4) Requests for vacation are to be submitted and approved, in advance of the intended use, by employee’s supervisor or department head.
	5) To be eligible to transfer years of service for determination of vacation benefits to the City of Delaware from prior employment inside the state of Ohio:
	i. Employees will only be eligible to transfer years of service from a public agency as defined by State law.
	ii. The amount of years of service that can be transferred is unlimited.
	iii. Prior employment must be in full-time status

	6)  To be eligible to transfer years of service for determination of vacation benefits to the City of Delaware from prior employment outside the State of Ohio:
	i. Employees will only be eligible to transfer years of service from their immediate previous employer.
	ii. Said previous employer must be a public agency.
	iii. Employment with the City of Delaware must take place within twelve months of termination from their immediate previous employer.
	iv. The maximum amount of years of service that can be transferred is five (5) years.
	v. Present employees are not eligible.
	vi. Prior employment must be in full-time status.

	7)  An employee may elect to trade three (3) weeks of vacation time, or the equivalent of vacation time earned in one year, whichever is greater, for equivalent pay during the calendar year. Conversion of vacation time may occur for pay periods ending...
	An employee must inform the Department Head prior to August 1 of the year preceding the calendar year in which he intends to make the trade and must maintain at least forty (40) hours of vacation time in the employee’s account after said trade takes p...


	Section 2.02 Sick Leave
	(a) Each city employee shall be entitled to sick leave with pay for four and six-tenths (4.6) hours of each completed (80) hours of service. An employee may use sick leave, upon approval of his or her Department Head, for absence due to personal illne...
	(b) If an employee used 0 hours of sick leave in any one calendar year, that employee shall be credited with an additional three (3) vacation days the following year. If an employee uses between one (1) and eight (8) hours of sick leave in any one cal...
	(c) To be eligible to transfer sick leave to the City of Delaware from prior employment inside the state of Ohio:
	1) Employees will only be eligible to transfer sick leave from a public agency as defined by the State of Ohio.
	2) Employment with the City of Delaware must take place within ten (10) years of termination from their previous employer.
	3) The maximum amount of sick leave hours that be transferred is unlimited as long as it is accrued at a rate of no greater than 15 days per year.

	(d) To be eligible to transfer sick leave of the City of Delaware from prior employment outside the state of Ohio:
	1) Employees will only be eligible to transfer sick leave from their immediate previous employer.
	2)  Said previous employer must be a public agency.
	3)  Employment with the City of Delaware must take place within twelve (12) months of termination from their immediate previous employer.
	4)  The maximum amount of sick leave hours that can be transferred is six hundred (600).
	5)  Any sick leave time so transferred shall have been accumulated at the rate of one and one-fourth days per month of employment.
	6)  Present employees are not eligible.

	(e) Any City employee who has accumulated at least 100 days of sick leave credit may convert any excess thereof up to fifteen (15) days per year of sick leave to vacation leave on the basis two (2) sick leave days for one (1) day vacation leave. Such ...
	(f) Any employee separated from City service for other than just cause shall be paid for all accumulated and unused sick leave on the basis of one (1) hour of pay for every two (2) hours of unused sick leave. Total sick leave pay out cannot exceed six...
	(g) For Employees Hired After November 1, 2013
	1) Each member hired by the City of Delaware after November 1, 2013 may transfer accrued sick leave hours from previous employment with any public agency, but such sick leave hours will not be eligible for conversion or payment upon separation pursuan...


	Section 2.03 Holiday and Personal Days1F
	(a) The following are designated as paid holidays for covered employees:
	(b) If one of the holidays set forth above occurs while an employee is on vacation leave, such day shall not be charged against his/her vacation leave.
	(c) In the event that the Federal Government designates a specific day for any of the aforesaid holidays, then such holiday shall be observed by the City in accordance with such federal designation. When any such holidays falls on a Saturday it shall ...
	(d) For each of the holidays specified in Section 1 of this article on which a FLSA non-exempt employee works, they shall be entitled to holiday compensation equal to double the employee’s regular rate of pay, except that the employee shall be entitle...
	(e) Employees shall be credited 32 hours of personal leave a year, except for new hires who shall receive a prorated amount based on hire date. Use of holiday compensatory time or personal days shall be at the employee’s discretion with the approval o...
	(f) All employees will be permitted to accumulate three (3) years’ worth of holiday compensatory time and personal leave. Once an employee accumulates the maximum allowable number of personal leave/holiday compensatory time then future personal leave/...

	Section 2.04 Funeral Leave
	(a) Each covered employee shall be entitled to funeral leave with pay according to the following schedule:
	1) One work day/shift is automatic for the day of the funeral, but additional time up to the maximum shall be given only with approval of the Department Head.
	2) All leave time with approval of the Department Head.

	(b) For the purposes of this section, “Immediate Family Member” means spouse, child, brother, sister, parents, step-child, step-brother, step-sister and step-parents, grandparents, grandchildren, sister-in-law, brother-in-law, and parents-in-law.
	(c) For the purposes of the article, “Local Funeral” means a funeral in the City of Delaware, or within fifty (50) miles thereof.

	Section 2.05 Special Leave
	(a) In additional to other leaves authorized herein, the City Manager may authorize a special leave of absence, with or without pay, for purposes beneficial to the employee and/or the City.
	(b) For exempt employees who are absent, if the absence cannot be covered or paid through appropriate leave time, said employees shall be subject to a reduction in pay, unless the absence is less than one workday.

	Section 2.06 Jury Duty Leave
	(a) An employee, while serving on a jury in any court of record in Delaware County, or any adjoining county, will be paid his regular salary for each of his workdays during the period of time so served. Time so served shall be deemed active and contin...
	(b) When an employee has been released from Jury Duty they shall report back to work if more than two (2) hours are left in the workday.

	Section 2.07 Court Leave
	(a) Time off with pay shall be allowed employees who are subpoenaed to attend any court of record in Delaware County, Delaware, Ohio or any adjoining county, as a witness in civil matters, as they pertain to City matters. All witness fees shall be ass...

	Section 2.08 Injury Leave
	(a) All regular full-time City employees shall be entitled to injury leave with pay, less any Worker’s Compensation weekly salary benefits which he/she may be awarded by the Ohio Industrial Commission (OIC), for a period not to exceed 30 consecutive w...
	1) In all cases of personal injury to any regular full-time City employee as a result of the performance of employment duties, the employee shall complete an accident/injury investigation form and in conjunction with his/her Department Head shall repo...
	2) In the event that time off from work is required by the injured employee, they will be granted injury leave from the first day of injury, if the proper documentation is submitted to the City of Delaware. This documentation will include, but not be ...
	3) During the period of time an injured employee is being paid under this policy, all normal benefits given to regular full-time City employees shall remain in force with no deductions to earned sick leave and/or vacation time.
	4) In all cases where more than 30 consecutive working days are needed for injury leave for employees working a 40-hour workweek, the City Manager may extend such leave, if such necessity is determined to his/her satisfaction. Each employee requesting...



	Vacation Hrs./Pay
	Vacation Hrs./Year
	Years of Total Service
	3.1
	80.6
	Start through 5 years
	4.6
	119.6
	6 through 10 years
	6.2
	161.20
	11 through 15 years
	7.7
	200.2
	16 plus years
	Pay Date
	Pay Period Ending
	January 14, 2020
	January 7, 2020
	January 28, 2020
	January 21, 2020
	June 16, 2020
	June 9, 2020
	June 30, 2020
	June 23, 2020
	December 15, 2020
	December 8, 2020
	December 29, 2020
	December 22, 2020
	Pay Date
	Pay Period Ending
	January 14, 2020
	January 7, 2020
	January 28, 2020
	January 21, 2020
	June 16, 2020
	June 9, 2020
	June 30, 2020
	June 23, 2020
	December 15, 2020
	December 8, 2020
	December 29, 2020
	December 22, 2020
	Article III. Insurance
	Section 3.01 Hospitalization, Surgical and Major Medical
	(a) The City will continue to provide comprehensive hospitalization, surgical and major medical coverage for all full-time members and their dependents. Beginning January 1, 1999, or at some date thereafter, the City may implement a Preferred Provider...
	1)  Contributions will be deducted from the member’s gross income prior to taxes, subject to compliance with all applicable tax regulations.
	2)  Effective January 1, 2013 employees will contribute to the cost of the health benefit plan in an amount equal to the 15% of the established monthly COBRA rate utilized by the City. Annual changes to the calculated COBRA rate will be applied to the...
	3)  The City will permit employees who have alternate health plan options through a spouse to opt out of the City plan in return for a payment of at least $100.00 per month for full opt out of all health insurance. Families who have both spouses emplo...
	4)  The City will continue to provide dental coverage if it is not provided under the employee’s spouse’s insurance. A member may elect to return to coverage under the City’s insurance plan by notifying the City in writing of any substantial changes i...
	5)  Employees who opt out of the health insurance program will be compensated as follows:
	No coverage                                    $100 per month
	Maintain Dental Only                   $65 per month
	Note: An employee may not elect to have medical coverage only
	6)  Payments will begin on the first pay period of the month following 30 days’ notice of an employee’s desire to drop coverage. A form will be provided which will contain all information necessary to discontinue coverage under the plan. The form must...
	7) All payments made in lieu of insurance coverage will be included as other pay on employee’s paycheck. This income will not be included in income subject to OPERS contributions but will be subject to all applicable taxes.


	Section 3.02 Prescription Plan
	(a) The City will provide a prescription card plan for members and their dependents.
	(b) The retail benefits will be the following with the City paying the higher amount and the employee paying the lesser amount of prescription coinsurance:
	1)  80/20% for generic drugs
	2)  50/50% name brand drugs with a $25 co-pay for each disbursement

	(c) The mail order benefits will be the following:
	1)  90/10% for generic drugs and
	2)  75/25% for name brand drugs with no $25 co-pay

	(d) The maximum expense an employee will pay for coinsurance is $250 annually for single coverage and $500 for family annually for prescription benefits, however, the $25 co-pay for retail name brand drugs will not count towards the calculation of the...

	Section 3.03 Dental Care Plan
	(a) The City will maintain the current dental coverage for all members. Please refer to the Plan Document for specific covered services.

	Section 3.04 Life Insurance
	(a) The City will provide the following amount of life insurance:
	1)  Department Heads: $50,000
	2)  Assistant Fire and Police Chiefs: $50,000
	3)  Pay Grades M11 though M20: $40,000
	4)  Police Captain and Fire Captain: $40,000
	5)  Pay Grades M1 through M10: $30,000


	Section 3.05 Vision Plan
	(a) The City will provide a vision plan for members and their dependents covered by this Summary of Benefits. The City will contribute $6.00 per month on behalf of the employee. The employee will be responsible for the balance of the monthly cost of t...


	Article IV. Other Compensation
	Section 4.01 Longevity Compensation
	(a) Employees shall receive, in addition to other pay called for herein, Longevity Compensation based on completed years of service according to the following table:
	1)  Longevity compensation shall be paid, in accordance with the above schedule, in two (2) separate lump sum payments during the first pay periods in June and December of each year.
	2)  Upon termination of service for any reason, employees who are eligible for longevity pay under this section (or in the event of death, the surviving spouse or estate) will be paid, as part of their terminal pay, the final partial year of longevity...
	3) For the purpose of this section, continuous years of service shall include approved military leave.


	Section 4.02 Automobile Expense Reimbursement
	(a) Employees shall receive reimbursement for business use of their personal vehicle. Reimbursement will be in accordance with the Internal Revenue Service (IRS) regulations for not-taxable reimbursements and shall be at the IRS per mile reimbursement...

	Section 4.03 Non-Uniformed Clothing Allowance
	(a) All employees covered under this pay plan in Pay Grades M1 through M9 who are not provided with a uniform shall receive an annual clothing allowance of $150.00. Such allowance shall be utilized to purchase necessary work-related items of clothing ...

	Section 4.04 Call-In Pay
	(a) Both exempt and nonexempt employees shall be eligible for “on call” compensation for weekly periods when assigned the responsibility of direct Parks, Public Works, or Utility personnel in response to service requests during non-scheduled work peri...

	Section 4.05 Tuition Reimbursement
	(a) All full-time employees with one or more years of continuous active service shall be eligible for a reimbursement of instructional fees for undergraduate or graduate courses towards a degree or certification, pre-approved by the city and voluntari...
	1)  All courses must be taken during other than scheduled working hours. Any situation which, in the discretion of the department head, would require an employee’s presence on the job shall take complete and final precedence over any time scheduled fo...
	2)  Any financial assistance from any government or private agency available to the employee, whether applied for and regardless of when such assistance may have been received, shall be deducted in the entire amount from the tuition reimbursement the ...
	3)  Employees seeking authorization of a tuition reimbursement must first submit to the department head for review, prior to September 30 of the year preceding when the classes are to be taken, all necessary information pertaining to the proposed cour...
	4)  Courses must be taken at accredited colleges, universities, technical and business institutes or at their established extension centers and these must be first approved by the city. Seminars, conferences and workshops are not included.
	5)  Reimbursement for tuition will be made when the employee satisfactorily completes (attains at least a grade of “C” or its equivalent for undergraduate work and a grade of at least “B” or its equivalent and a receipt of payment or a copy of the unp...
	6)  No reimbursement will be granted for books, paper, supplies of whatever nature, transportation, meals, or any other expense connected with any course, except the cost of tuition fees outlined above.
	7)  Any employee participating in the tuition reimbursement program who resigns (except resignation due to disability), retires (except retirement due to disability), or is discharged for cause must repay the tuition reimbursement paid by the city for...



	$550.00/year
	After five (5) years of continuous service
	$750.00/year
	After ten (10) years of continuous service
	$950.00/year
	After fifteen (15) years of continuous service
	$1150.00/year
	After twenty (20) years of continuous service
	Article V. Miscellaneous
	Section 5.01 Personnel Files
	(a)  The official personnel files of all employees shall be maintained in the Department of Administrative Services (DAS). All employee personnel records shall include but not limited to, applications, performance evaluations, promotions, disciplinary...
	(b)  DAS shall be responsible for the care and maintenance for all personnel files and records. Department heads shall be responsible for promptly forwarding all pertinent personnel information and documentation to DAS. Employees may, during normal of...

	Section 5.02 Parks and Recreation Credit
	(a) The City shall provide each employee with a credit to be applied to a Jack Florance Pool membership, City Golf Course membership or punch-card, or City rentals (shelters or Hilborn Room). The amount of the credit shall be $60.00. Employees shall a...
	(b) Credits may not be used to purchase memberships or to secure rentals beyond the calendar year for which it is issued. Credits will not be re-issued if lost or stolen and must be surrendered at the time of registration/purchase. Credits for non-tra...



	50 October 2019
	51 city managers report 20191125
	52 November 2019
	53 December 2019
	54 contract approval 20191125
	CONTRACT APPROVAL – November 25, 2019
	2019
	DEPARTMENT
	AMOUNT
	VENDOR
	EXPLANATION OF AGREEMENT

	$50,000 contribution for road improvement from Jackson Development and Buehlers TIF
	Carrolls Corporation
	Off-Site Development Agreement between the City of Delaware and Carrolls Corp for necessary SR 37 road work 

	$5,166.67
	City Sourced
	Acquisition and implementation of City Sourced Software

	$3,245
	SPS VAR, LLC
	IBM Service Contract for police dept

	$43,503
	J Kuhn Enterprises
	Cheshire Road Multi-Use Path Project

	$9,950
	Planning Next
	Contract amendment for additional services relative to Comp Plan


	20191125 council packet
	01 20191125 council agenda
	CITY COUNCIL CHAMBERS
	CITY COUNCIL CHAMBERS

	02 20191111 council minutes
	03 20190911 bza minutes
	04 20190917 parks minutes
	05 Fact Sheet Res 19-50, berkshire jedd 2 appointment (2)
	06 res 19-50 ,  appt berkshire jedd
	07 Resolution Appointing Board Members
	08 Liquor Permit - Penn Strikes Colony Lanes
	09 colony lanes police report
	10 liquor permit - olivina
	11 olivina police report
	12 fact sheet ord 19-69, budget 2020
	13 2020 Appropriation Ord
	2019 Appropriations 

	15 fact sheet ord 19 -63, evans farm annex
	16 ord 19 -63, evans farm annex
	17 Granting of Prayer-Evans Farm Annex
	18 res 19-37, Evan Farms Res of Services
	19 Fact Sheet ord 19-65, 2019-2344 Enclaves at the Ravines at Olentangy PDP
	20 ord 19-65, 2019-2344 Enclaves at the Ravines of Olentangy PDP
	ORDINANCE NO. 19-65
	ORDINANCE NO. 19-65
	VOTE ON RULE SUSPENSION:   YEAS____NAYS____
	VOTE ON RULE SUSPENSION:   YEAS____NAYS____
	VOTE ON RULE SUSPENSION:   YEAS____NAYS____

	21 Landfill Wells & Monitoring Points
	22 Fact Sheet ord 19-66, 2019-2345 Enclaves at the Ravines at Olentangy PSP
	23 ord 19-66, 2019-2345 Enclaves at the Ravines of Olentangy PSP
	ORDINANCE NO. 19-66
	ORDINANCE NO. 19-66
	VOTE ON RULE SUSPENSION:   YEAS____NAYS____
	VOTE ON RULE SUSPENSION:   YEAS____NAYS____
	VOTE ON RULE SUSPENSION:   YEAS____NAYS____

	24 Landfill Wells & Monitoring Points
	25 2019-3344-2345 enclave at ravines staff report
	26 factsheet ord 19-67, 2019-1578 Couglins Crossing REZ
	27 ord 19-67, 2019-1578 Coughlin Crossing REZ
	ORDINANCE NO. 19-67
	ORDINANCE NO. 19-67
	VOTE ON RULE SUSPENSION:   YEAS____NAYS____
	VOTE ON RULE SUSPENSION:   YEAS____NAYS____

	28 factsheet ord 19-68 , 2019-1579 Couglins Crossing APDP
	29 ord 19-68 , 2019-1579 Coughlin Crossing APDP
	ORDINANCE NO. 19-68
	ORDINANCE NO. 19-68
	VOTE ON RULE SUSPENSION:   YEAS____NAYS____
	VOTE ON RULE SUSPENSION:   YEAS____NAYS____

	30 2019-1578-1579 Nov Submission - coughlin crossing
	31 fact sheet res 19-51, Concord-Scioto Ridge Proximate City
	32 res 19-51 , Concord_Scioto - Cottages at Hyatts - No-Objection for City
	33Concord_Scioto - Cottages at Hyatts - Cvr letter enc. Application to D. Shulman for City approval
	34 Cottages at Hyatts - City of Delaware Approval Page to Application to Add Property
	35 Application to add property concord sciotoa nca
	36 fact sheet ord 19-70, municipal court employees benefits
	37 ord 19-70 , amend municipal court employee benefits 2019
	38 Benefits Manual 2020 - Copy
	39 Benefits Manual 2020
	40 fact sheet ord 19-71 , ppt pay ord
	41 ord 19-71, 2020 PPT and Seasonal ordinance
	50 October 2019
	51 city managers report 20191125
	52 November 2019
	53 December 2019
	54 contract approval 20191125
	CONTRACT APPROVAL – November 25, 2019
	2019
	DEPARTMENT
	AMOUNT
	VENDOR
	EXPLANATION OF AGREEMENT

	$50,000 contribution for road improvement from Jackson Development and Buehlers TIF
	Carrolls Corporation
	Off-Site Development Agreement between the City of Delaware and Carrolls Corp for necessary SR 37 road work 

	$5,166.67
	City Sourced
	Acquisition and implementation of City Sourced Software

	$3,245
	SPS VAR, LLC
	IBM Service Contract for police dept

	$43,503
	J Kuhn Enterprises
	Cheshire Road Multi-Use Path Project

	$9,950
	Planning Next
	Contract amendment for additional services relative to Comp Plan






